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To enable the organization of outstanding
‘content on subjects of interest and relevance
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Journey of Success

Hum MNetwork Limited was launched on January 17, 20058, with its flagship channel Hum TV in 2005 to revive the demand for
guality content in Pakistan at a time when Indian serials were quite popular amongst the masses. Since then, Hum Metwork has
proudly produced ground-breaking serials and dramas that are highly popular in the South Asian diaspora. We have not only
provided the audience with quality entertainment but also educated them on =social izsues with dramas like Udaari and Sammi
which are now gaining international praise and recognition.

HUM was also launched in the Middle East and Morth African region via its beam HUM MENA. Which has not only provided
superior content but we also believe in showcasing the true essence of the region. Cur localized programming and presence at
local events prove Hum MEMNA te a be great platform for pecple from different countries and regions. The channel’s high- quality
programming and launch of specialized channels globally, marks the beginning of even better things to come.

Hum Europe won the Best Urdu Channel Award at the Asian Viewers Television Awards 2015 and 2017. Hum Europe was also
nominated in 2015 and 2016 as “TV channel of the yvear™ in Asian Media Swards.

In 2006 Hum Metwork launched Pakistan's only successful 24-hour live cooking channsl. Many competitors came but were
unable to compete with Masala Tv and were discontinued. With an excellent team of experienced and talented chefs and home
cooks, Masala TV became the only channeal in its cateqory out growing competition. With its international launch Masala leads in
itz category in Hindi' urdu speaking diazspora. Masala Film Festival attracts hundreds of thouzands of footfall in Karachi and
Lahore. The event provides them with an opportunity to interact with their favorite chefs and enjoy a fun day with their families.

Hum Films was launched in 2014 which instantly became the first choice for local & international film producers and studios for
distribution and marksting of movies in Pakistan. In the pre COVID-19 era Hum Films was the leading box office banner in
Pakiztan.

Hum Metwork has always played a Key role in supporting and developing the fashion industry in Pakistan. For the past few years
we have regularly been heolding events like Bridal Couture Week, Hum Style awards, Hum Showcase and Miss Vest Pakistan
contest which give a platform to the entertainment fraternity to showcase their talent and gain recognition.

Hum MNetwork has been congtantly syndicating its dramas internationally. After syndicating the content to Zee in India, Colors &
Rishtey in the UK and MBC in UAE; Hum Network has touched the Malaysian borders by syndicating blockbuster drama serial
‘Zindagi Gulzar Hai' on mainstream Malaysian channel TV3. Mauritius Broadeast Corporation (A Mauritius based channel) and
Sharjah TV {UAE based channel) are also acquiring content on regular basis.

HUM network has a well-establiched digital wing to entertain the everincreasing number of broadband users within the country
as well as the audience worldwide, who are increasingly turning to online sources for viewing and purchasing of content through
video on demand platforms.

HUM Mebwork has been the first Pakistani channel to have its content available on Netflix and Iflix, first to collaborate with Eros
MNow and first to have direct channels on YouTube & Daily Motion. Hum Network has strong footholds on social media platforms
likie YouTube with over 16 million subscribers and Facebook with 10 million followers respectively.

Mazala TV Food Magazine is a monthly magarine for all food lovers who want to collect their favourite recipes by their favourite
Mazala chefs. It is a home maker's guide to becoming a domestic expert

Hum Metwork launched it 24 hour news brand Hum News in May 2018. Dedicated to professional journalism, we aim to report
the truth without sensationalism and become the audiences’ preferred source of trusted information. Hum Mews has recently
launched in the UK and has started to gain attention ameng Pakistanis residing there due to its unique, independent, investigative
and inspirational approach. Hum Neaws is the fastest growing channel in the news category in Pakistan.

Hum Network has adopted a diversified business strategy by investing in ventures like HUM Mart, an online shopping platform
which offered hassle free grocery shopping experience.

Hum Awards has been the un-official ambassador of Pakistan throughout the world attracting thousands of expatriates in Dubai,
Toronto and Houston. Hum Awards is now locking at London and New York as next destinations. Hum Network also collaborates
with IPPA Awards to conduct events in UK, Norway and Turkey. Hum Women's Award is one of its kKind recognition of women
leaders net only in Pakistan but all over the world. It has been appreciated by President of Pakistan and foreign delegates in
Pakistan. The last event was held in the President House as first ever private event held in Pakistani media

Hum Metwork is synonymous with creativity, professionalism and quality. It iz one of the maost beloved brand of Pakistan and
prides itself in giving the best image of Pakistan.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Company Information
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Mr. Shunaid Qureshi
Lt. Gen. (R} Asif Yasin Malik
Mr. Sohail Anzar
Ms. Nabigha Masser Masood
Mr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi

Chief Executive Officer Mr. Duraid Qureshi
Chief Financial Officer Mr. Muhammad Abbas Hussain
Company Secretary Mr. Mohsin Nasem
Head of Internal Audit Mr. Kamran Shamshad Ahmed

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman Mr. Sohail Ansar

Members Mr. Shunaid Qureshi
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Lt. Gen. (R) Asif Yasin Malik

HUMAN RESQOURCE AND REMUNERATION (HR&R) COMMITTEE
Chairperson Mr. Sohail Anzar
Members Ms. Sultana Siddiqui
Mrs. Mahtak Akbar Rashdi

AUDITORS Mis. EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

7th Floor Progressive Plaza,
Beaumont Road, Karachi

INTERNAL AUDITORS Mis. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Company
Chartered Accountants
1st Floor, Sheikh Sultan Trust Building
Mo.2, Beaumont Road, Karachi

LEGAL ADVISOR Mrs. l|az Ahmed & Associates
Mo.7, 11th Zamzama Strest Phaze-V
D.H.A. Karachi.

BANKERS Bank Alfalah Limited

Faysal Bank Limited
Mational Bank of Pakistan
The Bank of Punjab

Allied Bank Limited
United Bank Limited
Aslari Bank Limitad
Habib Metropoliton Bank
MCB Bank Limited
Boston Private Bank & Trust
Barclay=s Bank PLC

Dubai Islamic Bank

Wells Fargo Bank

REGISTERED & HEAD OFFICE Hum TV, Plot No. 10411, Hassan Ali Street,
Off. L1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi -74000 UAN: 111 -486-111

REGISTRAR/TRANSFER AGENT M/s. ED. Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt.) Ltd
17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A,

LI. Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000

WEBSITE wanw humnetwork tv

PAKISTAN STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED HUMNL

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Notice Of The 17" Annual General Meeting

MNotice is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of HUM Network Limited will be held on Tuesday, November 23,
2021 at 3:00 p.m. at ICAP Auditorium, Chartered Accountants Avenue, ICAP Clifton, Karachi to transact the following
businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1- To confirm the minutes of the 16th Annual General Mesting held on July 16, 2021 and 9th Extracrdinary General Meeting held
on August 22, 2020.

2- To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the Directors’ and
Auditors' reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021 together with the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of

the Company and the Auditors' Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021,
3- To appoint Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2022 and to fix their remunsration. The Board of

Directors, on the recommendaticn of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed the name of retiring auditors M/s. EY
Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as external auditers for the year ending June 30, 2022.

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
Dated: November 2, 2021 Mohsin Nagem
Place: Karachi Company Secretary

Notes:
1. Notice of Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from November 16, 2021 to November 23, 2021 (both davs
inclusive). Transfer received in order by cur Share Registrar, M/s. FD. Registrar Services (Pvt)) Lid. 17th Floor, Saima Trade
Tower-A, LI Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000 at the close of business on November 15, 2021 will be considered in time for any
entittement, as recommended by the Board of Directors and for the purpose of attending the AGM.

2. Coronavirus Contingency - Participation in AGM through electronic
means

i) Inview of the Coronavirus situation, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has, vide Circular No. 04
dated February 156, 2021 directed listed companies to provide facility for attending general meetings through electronic
means as a regular featurs.

il Considering the above the Company has made arrangement to provide video-fink facility to members who wish to
participation in the AGM through electronic means.

iy To attend the AGM through video-link, Members are requested to register their following particulars by =ending an email at
mohsin.nasem@hum tv with subject Video-Link Registration for HUM AGM scheduled on November 23, 20217

- Folio / CDC Mumber of CMIC/ Cell/Mobile Email ID
Member (s) Account Shares Held Passport Number
Mumber/ MNumber
coc
Participant ID

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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v}

v

vi)

i)

i)

v)

v)

vi)

vi)

The Video link and login credentials will be shared with the Members whose emails, containing all the reguired particulars as
mentioned, are received at the given emall address before the close of business hoursie., 05:00 p.m. on Movember 15, 2021

In case any Members who want to attend the AGM personally are advised to follow SOPs for COVID-19 as prescribed by the
Government.

For any queries, the Members may pleass contact at the aforesaid email.

Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

A member eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint ancther member as his/her proxy to attend, and vote
instead of him/her.

A blank instrument of proxy applicable for the meeting is being provided with the notice sent to members. Further copies of
the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the registered office of the Company during normal office hours or can be
downloaded from the Company's website.

A duly completed instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a
notarized cerified copy of such power or authority must, to be valid, be deposited at the registered office not less than 48
working hours before the time of the mesting.  Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the memiber and the Proxy
shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.

In case of corporate entity, the Beoard of Directors' Resoclution / Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted
with prosgy form.

The cwners of the physical shares and the shares registered in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Lid.
{CDC) and / or their proxies are required to preduce their original Computerized Naticnal ldentity Card (CNIC) or Passport (in
case of foreign nationals) for identification purpose at the time of attending the meeting.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1, dated January
26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A For Attending the Meeting: B. For Appoeinting Proxies:

il In case of individuals, the account holder or {ii In case of individuals, the account holder or
sub-account holder and/ or the person whose sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their securities are in group account, and their
registration details are uploaded as per the registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as
showing his original Computerized National per the above requirements.

Identity Card {CNIC), or original passport at
the time of attending the mesting. {iy The prooy form shall be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CHIC

(i} In case of corporate entity, the Board of numbers shall be menticned on the form.
Directors” resolution’ power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be (iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the
produced [unless it has been provided earlier) bensficial owners and the proxy shall be
the time of the meeting. furnished with the prosy form.

{iv) The proxy shall produce his ariginal CNIC or
criginal passport at the time of mesting.

{v} In case of corporate entity, the Board of Direc-
tors' resolution power of attorney with speci-
men signature shall be submitted (unless i
has been provided earlier) along with proxy
form to the Company.

In case of attending meeting by proxy through electronic means ie., video-link facility, Cell Number and Email 1d of proxy,
shall be provided on the duly signed proxy form.
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4. Video-Conferencing Facility for attending AGM

i members holding ten percent of the total paid up capital, are resident in any other city, the company shall provide the facility of
video-conferencing to such members for attending annual general meeting of the company, if so, required by such members in
writing to the company at least seven days (7) before the date of the mesting.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of conference facility at least 5 days before the date of general mesting
along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

Consent for Video-Conferencing Facility

1We, of . being a member of Hum Network
Limited, holder of ordinary share (s) as per Register Folio/CDC Account
Mo hereby opt for video conference facility at ., Tor
participation at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Movember 23, 2021 or any adjournment
thereof

Date:

Signature of member(s)

5. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar M/s. FD. Registrar Services
{Pvt) Ltd. 17th Flocr, Saima Trade Tower-A, LI Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000.

6. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs/NTN:;:

Members are requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC2/NTN Cerificates along with the folic numbers to the Company's
Share Registrar, if not already provided, otherwise payment of dividend would be withheld in terms of section 243 of the
Companies Act, 2017 ('the Act') and clause & of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations").

7. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

The Annual Report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 has been placed on the Company's website at the below
link: httpifwwnw. humnetwork_ tv/Annual_Financial_Reports hitmil

8. Circulation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended
June 30, 2021 through CD/DVD/USB:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No_ 470{1/2016 dated May 31, 2016, has allowed listed
companies to circulate their Annual Audited Accounts (i.e., the annual balancs shest and profit and loss account, auditor's report
and director's report) to its members through CO/DVEYUSE at their registered addresses instead of sending them in hard copies,
sublect to approval obtained from sharsholders in General Mesting. Accordingly, the company has obtained approval from
members in the 12th Annual General Meeting held on October 20, 2016. Pursuant to the approval of sharsholders, as aforesaid,

the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021, are being circulated to the members
through CO/DVD/USE.

9. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements and Reports and
notice of meeting through Email:

In terms of 3RO Mo 7872014 dated September 8, 2014, shareholders can opt to obtain annual balance shest and profit and
loss account, auditor's report and directors report etc. alongwith the notice of Annual General Meeting through email. The
Companies Act, 2017 also allow electronic circulation of annual financial statements and reports thereon. Accordingly, we are
pleased to offer this facility to our members who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements and Motices of the Company
through e-mail in future.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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For the convenience of shareholders, a Standard Request Form has been made available at our website -www humnetwork tw,
to opt receiving of future annual reports through email or in hard copies or otherwise request for any hard copy of any accounts.
The scanned copy of the duly filled & signed form may be emailed to the Company Secretary at mohsin.nasem@hum.tv or the
same can be submitted through post/courier to Company’s Share Registrar - Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited,
CDC House, Block B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400.

Members who do not provide their email ids or request for a hard copy shall continue to receive their future Annual Financial
Statements and reports through CDV DVDYUSB at the registered address.

10. E-DIVIDEND MANDATE (MANDATORY)

Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2017{Act), every listed company is reguired to pay dividend if any to their members
cempulsorily through etectronic mode by directly crediting the same in their bank account provided by them. In terms of SRO No.
11450201 7 dated 06 Movember 2017, it is mandatory for shareholders to provide their bank account details to receive their cash
dividend directly into their bank accounts, failing which the company shall be bound to withhold dividend of those members who
do not provide their bank details.

All members are required to provide to the Company's Share Registrarn, particulars relating to name, folio number, bank account
numiber, tithe of account, complete mailing address of the bank. CDC account holders should submit their request directly to their
broker {participanty/CDC. A Form is available at the Registered Office of the Company and the same are also placed on the
Company's website.

11. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the company, which remain
unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it became duse and payvable shall vest with the Federal Government
after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017.

All valued members of the Company, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend/shares, if any, are requested to contact
Company's Share Registrar, to file their claims with Company’s Share Registrar for any unclaimed dividend er ghares outstanding
in their name.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such dividend

outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date dus and payable shall be deposited to the Federal Government in case
of unclaimed dividend and in case of shareg, ghall be delivered to the SECP

12. Conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing company shall be reguired to replace its physical shares with
book-entry form in 2 manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not exceeding
four years from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2017

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to convert their physical shares into book-entry form by depositing
shares intc Central Depository Company Pakistan Limited by cpening CDC sub-account with any broker or investor accounts
directly with CDC.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Pattern Of Shareholdig

As on June 30, 2021

Number Of Shareholders Sharehoiding Stab Total Shares Held
304 1 to 100 ' 9407
763 101 to 500 61262
992 501 to 1000 ‘ 985445
D574 1001 to 5000 3100928
1236 5001 1o 10000 ' 10516005
479 10001 to 15000 384470
378 15001 to 20000 7178402
247 20001 16 25000 ‘ 5889000
189 25001 o 30000 ' 5449786
105 30001 16 35000 3594650
108 35001 to 40000 4222100

51 40001 to 45000 ' 2219010
196 45001 1o 50000 ' 9711750
13 50001 to 55000 2283501
47 55001 to 60000 3765600
25 60001 to 65000 ' 1567500
32 ' 65001 to 70000 2191065
37 70001 to 75000 2001500

24 I 75001 to 80000 1 1893500 |
12 80001 to 85000 ' 1001000
19 ' 85001 to 90000 ' 1685500
16 90001 to 95000 1499630
124 95001 16 100000 12383700
8 100001 to 105000 ' 823500
9 105001 to 110000 977500
14 110001 to 115000 1603000
15 115001 to 120000 1780500
8 120001 to 125000 ' 1000000
10 125001 to 130000 1280500
6 130001 to 135000 804500
9 135001 to 140000 ‘ 1257500
3 140001 to 145000 ' 430500
29 145001 to 150000 4343468
4 150001 to 155000 615500
4 155001 to 160000 ‘ 634950
B 160001 to 165000 ' 980500
10 165001 to 170000 1694000
3 170001 16 175000 1567000
7 175001 to 180000 ' 1246000
2 180001 16 185000 ' 363000
6 185001 to 120000 1132000
7 190001 to 195000 1353000
30 195001 to 200000 ‘ 5999000
N 200001 to 205000 ' 202000 i

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Number Of Shareholders

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

3 205001 to 210000 624500
2 210001 to 215000 423000
3 315001 to 220000 438850
5 220001 to 295000 1121500
2 225001 1o 230000 455500
1 230001 to 235000 233000
1 235001 to 240000 240000
‘ 240001 16 245000 241500
11 245001 o 250000 3739500
2 250001 16 255000 506000
1 255001 to 260000 260000
3 260001 to 265000 789500
4 270001 in 275000 1096500
3 275001 to 280000 840000
2 280001 to 285000 567500
5 285001 to 390000 578000
15 295001 to 300000 4500000
5 200001 to 305000 03500
2 305001 to 310000 615000
2 315001 to 320000 640000
2 320001 to 225000 46000
2 325001 to 330000 656000
3 345001 G 350000 1050000
5 355001 1o 360000 1794250
2 370001 to 375000 750000
1 385001 to 390000 288500
B 395001 to 400000 3400000
1 400001 to 405000 403000
1 410001 to 415000 415000
2 420001 to 425000 850000
1 425001 to 430000 430000
1 445001 to 450000 448000
1 450004 to 455000 450500
3 455001 o 460000 456000
1 460001 to 465000 462000
2 470004 o 475000 948000
1 475001 to 480000 477000
14 495001 to 500000 7000000
1 515001 to 520000 519500
2 520001 to 525000 1049900
1 530001 to 535000 532000
2 550001 to 555000 1106000
5 555001 to 560000 1113000

| 1 570001 - 575000 575000 ),

-~
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Number Of Shareholders Sharehoiding Stab Total Shares Held
1 575001 to 580000 ' 580000
3 595001 to 600000 1800000
1 620001 to 625000 _ 622000
1 630001 to 635000 633150
1 645001 1o 650000 ' 650000
1 650001 to 655000 652000
1 660001 to 665000 660200
2 670001 16 675000 ‘ 1347000
1 i 680001 o 685000 ' 683500
< 690001 16 695000 693600
1 720001 to 725000 724000
1 730001 to 735000 ' 735000
1 750001 1o 755000 ' 750500
1 770001 to 775000 775000
1 775001 to 780000 780000
1 780001 to 785000 ' 783000
3 795001 to 300000 2400000
1 820001 to 825000 835000
1 845001 to 850000 850000
2 850001 to 855000 ' 1703500
1 855001 to 860000 856500
4 895001 to 900000 3507000
2 945001 G 950000 1900000
1 960001 to 965000 ' 965000
1 980001 to 985000 281500
8 995001 to 1000000 3000000
1 1015001 to 1020000 1017060
1 1020001 1o 1025000 ' 1025000
1 1025001 to 1030000 1026500
1 1070001 to 1075000 1075000
3 1095001 to 1100000 1 3300000
1 1110001 to 1115000 ' 1115000
1 1135001 to 1140000 1136500
3 1310007 % 1315000 1311000
1 1415001 to 1420000 ‘ 1418000
1 1480004 to 1485000 ' 1482000
3 1495007 to 1500000 4500000
1 1540001 to 1545000 1541000
1 1595001 to 1600000 ' 1600000
1 1650001 to 1655000 ' 1653750
1 1745001 to 1750000 1750000
1 1795001 to 1800000 1800000
| 1965001 1o 1970000 ‘ 1970000

3 1 1995001 o 2000000 ' 3000000 p,
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Number Of Shareholders Sharehoiding Stab Total Shares Held
1 2040001 to 3015000 ' 2011000
1 2025001 to 2030000 2026500
1 2245001 to 2250000 . 2248500
1 2290001 to 2295000 2282500
1 2485001 1o 2500000 ' 2500000
1 266000 to 5665000 2660500
1 2990001 to 2995000 2893000
‘ 3000001 16 3005000 ‘ 3001500
1 i 3095001 o 3100000 ' 3100000
< 3230001 16 3235000 3234000
1 3545001 to 3550000 3550000
1 3750001 to 3755000 ' 3753000
1 3795001 1o 3800000 ' 3796500
1 4100001 to 4105000 4104000
1 4310001 to 4315000 4311500
1 4395001 to 4400000 ' 4400000
1 4875001 to 4880000 ' 4877500
5 4995001 to 5000000 10000000
1 5580001 to 5585000 5584000
1 6755001 to 6760000 ' 6760000
1 7845001 to 7850000 ' 7848000
1 8195001 to 8200000 8200000
1 10045001 G 10050000 10047000
1 11545001 to 11550000 ' 11549000
1 11970001 to 11975000 11973500
1 12995001 to 13000000 13000000
1 13680001 to 13685000 13684500
1 25795001 to 25800000 ' 25799000
1 26445001 to 26450000 26450000
1 26585001 to 26590000 26587500
1 30230001 to 30235000 ‘ 30232501
] 35895001 to 35900000 ' 35800000
1 50865001 to 50870000 50865620
3 65895001 to 66000000 66000000
1 70675001 to 70680000 ‘ 70680000
1 296960001 to 296965000 ' 226961490

8502 945,000,000 5
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Additional Information
As of June 30, 2021

' Shareholders’ Category Shareholders  Shares Held |Percentage
' Directors, heir Spouse(s) and Minor Children
Duraid Qureshi 3 229,622,000 24.30
Sultana Siddiqui 2 219,660 0.02
Mazhar Ul Hag Siddiqui 1 10 0.00
Mehtab Akbar Rashdi 1 10 0.00
Asif Yasin Malik 1 10 | 0.0
Sohail Ansar 1 1,000 | 0.00
Shunaid Qureshi 1 50,885,620 | 5.38
MUHAMMMAD AYUB 1 10,000 | 0.00
MNabigha Nasser Masood 1 10 [ 0.00
Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties 1 35,900,000 3.80
Executives 3 586,750 0.06
Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance Companies, Insurance,
Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds 9 46,897,000 4.94
Mutual Funds
Trustes NBP Stock Fund 12 43,841,000 4.64 ‘
General Public _
a. Local 8376 257,641,219 27.26 ‘
' b. Foreign 4 81,000 0.01
Foreign Companies 2 505,000 0.05
Others 83 279,049,511 29.53
“Totals 8502 945,000,000  100.00
[ Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest Share Held Percentage
Mr. Duraid Qureshi 229,622,000 24.30
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Six Years At A Glance

Key Financial Data

OPERATING DATA

2016
Revanue-hNeat 3,842 824 460
Cost of production {2,313,660,029)
Transmission Cost {26. 465 867)
Gross profit 1,542 608 584
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
{LossyProfit befors taxation Tra. 237 2
Taxation {236.301,3565)
Profit after taxation 536,935 026
Financial Ratios

2016
Currant Ratios 1.80
Quick ratic 1.80
Dabt’ Equity Ratio 026
Cash flow per share- Rs. 0.
Raturn on eguity - % 2620
Zhare Price per zhare - Bs. 10.28
Ersak-up value per share - Rs. 216
Gross Profit / (Loss) 1o Salas - %6 3813
Cost of Production To Sales- % 5868
Administrative Expenses to Salas - & 11.04
Mat profit / (Loss) to Salas - % 13.62
Interest Cover - number of times 2425
Debtors Tumover (number of days) 117
Price eaming ratio 18.09
Turn Cwer 1o Total Asset Ratio 1.24
Earnings/[Loss) per share Rs. 057

2017

4,643 648 317
(2,660,283 288)
(26.025,178)

1,807,420 854

1,005,402 036
{20,010,058)

1,015,382 078

2m7
507
5.06
0.0
0.40
44.20
11.74
J.24
4{.65
5748
12.02
2187
58.30
127
10.83
1.33

1.07

2018

4,600,478.826
(2,853 147,800)
{177.878,025)

1,578,453 061

812,155,067
(82,661,579)

728,403 488

2018
468
465
0
018
18.75
.08
.M
3424
61.90
11.50
15.83
28.38
138
10.48
0.86

0.7

2019 2020 2021
3,0790.000,138 3,670.468,088 4,327,326.066
(3,405,240 846) (2.756,142,547) (2,614,343,566)

(193,223104)  (130,068,102)  (00,436,188)
200635008 784256430  1,622.546.312
(454,725557) (136,120,065 1,107,143.402

81.157,536) 22881574 {82,746,807)
(535,883.003)  (113238.401) 1,014,306,685

2019 2020 2024

2.25 285 340

2.24 2.83 3.38

0.53 0.44 042

0.16 0.15 0.28

{6.07) [@3.71) 24 06

347 1255 a.02

3.34 3.23 430

7.20 21.34 3750

g7.84 74.01 60.41
1254 12.01 15.33
{13.47) (3.08) 23.44

2270 0.43 12.03

164 173 155

5.50) (104.73) 7AT

0.74 0.77 .82

{057 [0.12) 1.07
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Graphical Presentation

Analysis of Statement of Financial Position and Profit & Loss Account
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Break-up of Revenue Streams

10%

W Advertisement revenus - net
B Production revenue - met

® Digital revenue - net

® Subscription income - net

B Other Income

u Gain on sale of NCA held for sale

Break-up of Cost

3% o

B Cost of production

B Transmission cost

W Distribution costs

= Administrative expenses
B Other expenses

B Finance costs

® Taxation

B Advertisement revenue - net
E Production revenus - net

® Digital revenue - net

B Subscription income - nat

H Film distribution revenue - net

& Other Income

W Cost of production

B Transmission cost

W Distribution costs

= Administrative expenses
W Other expenses

B Finance 005t

W Taxation
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Breakup Value Per Share
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Building a better
working world

Independent Auditors’ Review Report
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations), prepared by the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited (the Company) for the year
ended 30 June 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
[imited primarily to inguiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

A= a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and intemal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board
of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intemal
centrols, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have
enzured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committes.

Baszed on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
applicable 1o the Company for the vear ended 30 Juns 2021.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the paragraph
18 in the Statement of Compliance:

Paragraph Description

18(e) The Company was unable to comply with the regulations 27, 28 and 34(1) of the Regulations with
respect to the time in which these were to be conducied. Subseguent to the SECP clarification, these
were conducted immediately after the clarification.

Sdi-
Ey Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: October 22, 2021
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Statement Of Compliance With The Listed
Companies (Code Of Corporate Governence)
Regulations, 2019 (“The Regulations™)

HUM Network Limited (“the Company™)

for the yvear ended June 30, 2021

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

2

]

.

.,

. The total of number of directors are 09 as per the following (A= at June 30,2021}

Male Six (6)

Female Three (3}

The compaosition of the board is as follows (As at June 30, 2021):

Category ‘ Name

Independent director Mr. Sohail Ansar
Ms. Nabigha Nasser Masood
Mr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adh

Mon-exacutive directors Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddigui
Mr. Shunaid Quresh

Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Lt. Gen.[R) Asif Yasin Malik

Executive directors Ms. Sultana Siddigui
Mr. Duraid Qurashi

Female directors Ms. Sultana Siddigui
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi

\ Ms. Nabkigha Masser Masood

o —r

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies; including this

Company;

The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to diszeminate it

throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their dates of approval or

updating is maintained by the Company;

All the powers of the Board have besn duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have besn taken by Board

Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and these Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act

and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and the
Regulations;

8. The Company iz compliant with the requirements of Directors’ Training Program provided in these Regulations. All the
Directors except one have either attended the required training in prior years or stand exemptsd, as per criteria mentioned

inthe Code;

10. The Beard has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a Awgdit Committes b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committes
Mir. Sohail Anzar — Chairman (Independent) Mr. Sohail Ansar — Chairman (Independent)
Wir. Shunaid Qureshi (Non-Executive) Msz. Sultana Siddiqui (Executive)
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Mon-Executive) Mr=. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Mon-Executive)

Lt. Gen. {R) Asif Yasin Malik (Non-Executive)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committes for
compliance;

14. The frequency of the meetings of the committees were as follows:

a Audit Committes — One (1) quarterly meeting during the financial year ended June 30, 2021.

b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committee — Mo mesting during the financial year ended June 30, 2021.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function and has also outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. KPMG
Tasser Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
comversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Cuality
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm
involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chisef executive

officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other =ervices except in
accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have cbserved IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

8. We confirm that all requirements of regulations including 3, 6, 7, 8, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
with except 27, 28 and 34(1) due the following reasons:

a The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was schaduled for August 2020. Since the number of
eligible candidates were egqual to the number of directors fixed for elaction, the Company made the announcement on
August 13, 2020 under section 15N4) of the Companies Act, 201 7. The aforesaid election of directors was guestioned
by the insligible candidates. Consequently, the elected directors also filed Suit. The Honourable Sindh High Court
through Order dated: 21.08.2020 has directed the Company that the elections scheduled to be held on August 23, 2020
would be postponed and rescheduled subject to the final decision by the learned single Judge of CMA No. 6787 of 2020
in Suit Mo. 968/2020.
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b. Due to the pending proceedings and varicus interim orders being in the field, the Company was not in a position to
decide as to whether the previous board can still approve the accounts or meeting of the new board will need to be

called for such purpose.

c. The Company sought clarification from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as well as filed an application
before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh as to whether the Company can hold a board mesting for the approval of the

financial statement and convening the annual general mesting.

d. On that the Commission has provided clarification that the previous board can continue to act in the performance of its
functions. The aforesaid letter of the Commission has been placed on the record of the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh
during the hearing on May 24, 2021 and was taken on record by the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh in the presence of the

counsels of the parties.

e. Due to the above mentioned facts, the Company was unable to comply with the regulations 27, 28 and 34(1) of the
Reguiaticns with respect to the time in which these were to be conducted. Subsequent to the SECP clarification, these
were conducted immediately after the clarification.

f‘
DURAID QURESHI Date: October 22, 2021 MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Executive Place: Karachi Chairman & Director
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Chairman’s
Review Report

| am pleazed to present annual review as Chairman of the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited for the yes

cf hz sha

reholders.
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Mr. Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui
Chairman of the Board
Date: October 22, 2021
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Hum Metwork Limited (HNL) present the Annual Report together with the Company’s audited financial statemant
for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Financial Performance

FY2021 was an unprecedentsd year on all counts, and it challenged us at several levels. Despite the disruption caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic, we tried our best to ensure normal operations and were able to insulate the business from the economic
slowdown. During the year, our net revenues increased by 18% due to positive growth in all revenus streams especially the
subscription revenue which witnessed a comparable growth of 46%¢ from last year. This shows the resilience of cur business and
our ability to navigate temporary setbacks created by external factors however, as the competition in all the segments we operate
in remained intense, we did not reduce our investments in gquality content.

The gross profit of the Company increased by As. 838 million comparad to last year resulting in gross profit margin of 37%
(FY2020: 21.3%). The reason of significant increase was mainly due to efficient cost management strategies and effective cost
cuttings which resulted in maintaining the cost within the required parameters.

The Company eamed a profit after tax of Rs. 1,014 million in FY2021 as compared to loss after tax of Rs. 113 million in FY2020
resulting in eamnings per share of Re. 1.07 in FY2021 compared to loss per share of Re. 0.12.

Principal Activities

HML iz undoubtedly one of the leading media networks of Pakistan and has predominantly been an entertainment provider for
more than a decade now. HUM i= already Pakistan's most admired media brand, and our content reaches millions of people
through cur domestic and international bouguet of channals and multiple distribution platforms werldwide, films, digital, print
media and live events. Broadcasting portfolio consists of satellite channels namely HUM TV, HUM News, HUM Sitaray, HUM
Masala and HUM World (including separate beams for Morth America, UK & Middles East).

The External Environment

The cutbreak of Corcnavirus ({COVID-19) pandemic gicbally and in Pakistan caused significant disturbance and slowdown of
economic activity. In many countries, businesses were being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods
of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and closures of
non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. The
Company demenstrated its ability & potential to stay ahesad of the industry, with a sharp focus on keeping its viewers entertained
and well informed during these times of crisia.

HML implemented strict measures at its offices to combat and reduce the spread of virus as the health and well-being of the staff
iz of paramount importance to HNL. In line with the guidelines issusd by the Government, the Company implemented Key
measures across every touch peoint to safeguard its Human Capital. HML has always been agile in adapting to change, which
made the transition to ‘Work from Home' ocperations swift and smooth, ensuring minimal disruption to the viewsrs and
maintaining business continuity. All meetings across business verticals and functions were conducted seamiessly, with optimal
utilization of digital solutions. We ensured that the employees had access to all critical business applications with undisrupted
suppoert while working from home, with zero compromise on data and content security. Strong proactive steps were taken in
transforming the workspace, Keeping social distancing norms at the fore. All the necsssary safety and hygiene protocols were
followed for the critical verticals functioning from office; including alternate seating arrangements, implementing a clean desk
policy and temperature screening at all entry points. Frequent sanitization of all surfaces was maintained, and hand sanitizers
were placed at all strategic locations within the office premises.

Operational Performance

Despite pricing challenges and overall downward trend in the industry, the network maintained and grew its dominance.

Hum Tv

Through all of itz growing years, HUM TV has played a major role in empowering women, showcasing stigmas and issues that
people shy away from, presenting them with sensitivity and gaining acceptability with the masses. This year we continued to offer
viewers with the best of Pakistani dramas. TRP-tepping dramas like “Qurbatein®, “Tera Ghum Aur Hum®, *Zebaaish”, “"Mushk™,
“Saraab”, "Phaans”, "Rags-e-Bismil®, *Sitam™ were the most watched prime time dramas.

Ramzan special series “Chupke Chupke” and “Taana Baana™ became season hits. These rom-coms did the rounds on our TV
screens this year with many loving the =izzling chemistry befween the characters. These dramas have shifted towards
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light-hearted comedy, steering away from the typical depiction of pre-marital affairs, divorce, domestic abuse and family
disputes. The bright family comedies were lauded by the audiences for their uniguenese.

Hum News

HUM MNews is following the precedent that was s=t by the flagship channel — HUM Entertainment by fecusing mainlty on the most
neglected issues of society such as women empowerment, youth and mincrities affairs. HUM Mews is thus paying special
attenticn to the data-based-journalistic stories. This helps in explaining the problem and with thie help of relevant data collected
painstakingly ultimately gives a better understanding of the issue to our viewers. HUM News iz not only striving to give hope to
our society but also revamping the Pakistan news industry by objective reporting metheds. HUM News aims to articulate dreams
and aspirations of the 21st century Pakistan and to raise the bar of broadcast journalism through factual, cbjective, balanced and
fair coverage.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, HUM News fulfilled its responsibility by providing timely news to its audience and increasing
awarensss about the pandemic amongst the masses.

Hum Sitaray

The channsl is positioned as a hybrid channel offering both narrative as well as format based entertainment shows. The content
mix consists of Dramas, Soap operas, fashion lifestyle shows, Celebrity talk shows and international contents.

Hum Masala

South Asia’s first and Pakistan's only 24-hour cooking channel HUM Masala celebrated itz 14th anniversary in a special
transmissien on Qctober 24, 2020, HUM Masala is not only immensely popular in Pakistan but has received overwhelming
response from South Asian food lovers from around the globe: The 14th anniversary celebration is a testament of the channels
dedication to provide its audience with a wide rangs of Pakistani and continental cuisines. As the pioneer 24-hour cooking
channel in South Asia, Masala has set high standards for its current and future competitors.

Digital Media Division

Digital Media has continued its consistent growth in the year 2020-21. One of the maljor breakthroughs includes significant
growth on social media platforms {Facebook, Instagram, Twitter and YouTube) following the implementation of revamped Social
Media Strategy. Ancther milestone is the malor digital sponsorship by huge brands like Kashmir, Singer Pakistan, Master Paints
and OPPO for Awards and Dramas.

Direct =ales (local web advertizers) have been ancther business avenue that has grown significantly this year as we have open
opportunities for digital sponsorship.

*Chupke Chupke” emerged as a worldwide hit, with multiple episodes trending on YouTube and hashtags trending not Just in
Pakistan, but in India and Bangladesh too.

Events & Brand Activation

Over the last decade HMNL has played a key role in supporting and developing the drama, fashion, food and music industry in
Pakistan.

Bridal Couture week (BCW)

The 18th edition of the country's biggest and most sought-after bridal extravaganza, HUM Bridal Couture Week unveiled its red
carpet here in the City of Gardens, Lahore in February 2021 which is the most opulent and highest profile bridal show in Pakistan.
It leads the bridal fashicn industry with its creative influence and has been strategically repositioning Pakistani bridal fashion in
the glebal fashion economy for the last ten years. It has become the meost aspired presentation for Pakistan’s top designers,
couture lovers, influential individuals, buyers, celebrities, socialites, and legacy brands.

Hum Style Awards

The 5th Hum Style Awards took place in July 2021 in Lahore, celebrating the best of fashion and styie from television, film, music,
sports and fashion fraternity. It was a night of glitz and glamour as stars walked on the red carpet, dressed to their nines, aftera
long hiatus.
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HUM Women Leaders Awards

The second edition of Hum Women Leaders Awards held at the Aiwan-e-Sadar in March 2021, celebrating national and
international women icons for their contributions and achievements in the fields of diplomacy, social work, education, healthcare,
human rights, Journalism and womean’s rights. The awards caremony was graced by President Dr Arif Alvi, dignitaries and créme
de la créme of the entertainment industry of Pakistan.

HUM Social Media Awards

COVID-19 has alsc changed the way the awards are held. The first-ever digital award was held in October 2020, it was a show
different from the many award shows held all the year round is the fact that HUM Scocial Media Awards 2020 was the largest
internationally recognized sccial media platform. Not only it was the first digitally based award show that has Facebook onbeard,
it is also the first one to recognize desenving individuals working in different fields on the basis of their social media presence.

Human Resource Management

The Metwork views its human resource as the most valuable asset and pays special attention towards developing an atmesphere
which fosters growth, high performance, adherence to organizational values and business ethics.

Core Values

HUM MNetwork Limited is continuously striving to provide an enabling corporate and social work environment to its employees as
this helps them to work in complete harmaony in a healthy and professional way.
For this very purpose the HUM Metwork Family has developed the following core values.

Integrity & Honesty

Respect for All
Commitment/Dedication/ Ownership
Accountability & Objectivity

Team Work

Dizcipline

Safety/Health & Hygiene

=L s L0 g =

We adhere to the above core values in all the initiatives that we undertake as this helps in prometing a culture of fairness,
oblectivity and teamwork.

Risk Management

The Company has a robust Rizk Management framework to identify, measure and mitigate business risks and cpportunities. This
framework zeeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objective and snhance the Compamy’s
competitive advantage. This risk framework thus helps in managing market, credit and operations risks and quantifies exposure
and potential impact at a Company level.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In ite ongoing efforts to empower Pakistanis from every walk of life, HUM Metwork has partnered with Telenor Pakistan to support
SIUT (Sindh Institute for Urology and Transplant), in its fund-raising campaign. The organization will support SIUT's fund-raising
efforts by matching public donations made te the institution via Momina and Duraid Foundation's EasyPaisa account. A telethon
was held in April 2021 on HUM News to encourage people to donate to this noble cause.

The collaboration between HUM Network and Telenor Pakistan to support SIUT iz yet another effort to lend a helping hand to the
nation's healthcare system and to support fellow Pakistanis in this time of nesd.

This partnership is all set to provide relief to hundreds of thousands of Pakistanis in need and will make it possible for patients to

receive free treatment for COVID-19. As a responsible corporate citizen, HUM Network confinues to ensure the safety,
empowerment, inclusion, and well-being of every Pakistani.

Employee Training & Development

As part of our annual appraizal exercize, each employee is assessed and counseled on individual basis. Training sessions are
arranged on the basis of needs identified which creates growth opportunities for employees and provide us with highly motivated
and trained resource.
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Status Of The Board During The Year

The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was scheduled for August 2020. Since the number of eligible
candidates were equal to the number of directors fixed for election, the Company made the announcement on August 13, 2020
under section 159{4) of the Companies Act, 201 7. The aforesaid election of directors was questionad by the ineligible candidates.
Consequently, the elected directors also filed Suit. The Honourable Sindh High Court through Crder dated: 21.08.2020 has
directed the Company that the elections scheduled to be held on August 22, 2020 would be postponed and rescheduled sublect
to the final decision by the leamed single Judge of CMA No. 6787 of 2020 in Suit No. 9658/2020.

As detailed above, the election of directors was subjudiced and the aforesaid ordars were still in-force, the management of the

Company was not in a positicn to prejudge the outcome of the cazes and call a board meeting for approval of the financial
staterments.

In this regard, the Company sought clarification from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as well as filed an
application before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh as to whather the Company can hold a board meeting for the approval of the
financial statement and cenvening the annual general meeting

On that the Commission provided clarification that the previous board can continue to act in the performance of its functions. The
aforesaid letter of the Commission has been placed on the record of the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh during the hearing on May
24, 2021 and was taken on record by the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh in the presence of the counsels of the parties.

In view of the aforesaid, the Company proceeded with the previous Board and the board meseting for approval of the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 was held on June 14, 2021 and the annual general meeting (AGM) for laying the
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 before the shareholders was convened on July 16, 2021. Thereafter, the
board mestings for the approval of financial statements for the periods ended September 30, 2020, December 31, 2020 and
March 31, 2021 were held on September 23, 2021.

As mentioned above, the last AGM was held on July 16, 2021 wherein the Audited Financial Statements for year ended June 30,
2020 were laid. The aforementioned reasons resulted in the delay in commencement of audit of the financial statements of year
ended June 30, 2021 and the holding of AGM for the year ended June 30, 2021 within stipulated timeline.

Future Prospects & Challenges

We have taken difficult decisions to deal with the COVID-19 crizis, but this has enabled us to continue to inwvest in and
successfully execute our strategies. We have implemented new strategies during these crisis to drive more efficiencies and
effectivensss. We monitored our performance very carsfully and the risks associated with COVID-19 and were sxtremely focused
on tightly managing our costs and cash flows.

Delivering quality content has positioned us to better respond to the changing viewers' habits and to take advantage of the
continued strong demand for quality content internationally.

By investing in our products and services, we will deliver our content in ways that work for all our stakeholders, now and in the
future, which means continuing to provide premium quality broadcasting in order to satisfy stakeholders” demand for greater
flexibility in future

Our business and financial strategies, and the operational decision are designed to mowve HNL from strength to strength, and to
ensure that its independence is pregerved in a sustainable way. As an enterprise we are well placed to deliver much better growth
forward backed by our well-defined business strategies, excellent infrastructure and robust board are confident about what we
nesd to do to ensure that we emerge as an even more resilient, digital and future focused media and entertainment business.

We have a proud past, a vibrant present and an exciting future.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) maintained the long-term and short-term entity ratings of Hum Network
Limited at "A+" and "A1", respectively. These ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk and the network’s established markeat
position.

Board Composition & Remuneration

Composition of the Board and the names of members of Board Committees may be referred to Staternent of Compliance with
CCG.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of its directors in
accordance with Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Pattern Of Shareholding

Pattern of sharsholding as on June 30, 2021 is annexed with the annual report.

Meeting Of The Directors

During the year, two {2) Board of Directors and one (1) Audit Committee mestings were held however, no Human Resource &
Remuneration (HR & R) Committee mesting was held. The reasons for non-helding of the Board and Committes mestings may
be referred 1o Statement of Compliance with CCG.

Attendance by each Director was as follows:

Nairnie of Director Board of Directors Audit Committee
Attendance Attendance
Mr. Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddigui 2 -
Ms. Sultana Siddigui 2 -
Mr. Sohail Ansar 2 1
Mrz. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi 2 1
Mr. Shunaid GQureshi 1 1
Ms. Nabigha Nasser Masood 2 -
Lt. Gen. (R} A=if Yasin Malik 2 1
Mr. Duraid Qureshi 2 -
Mr. Hasan Reza-ur-Rahim 1 -

Mr. Hasan Reza-ur-Rahim resigned as the director and Mr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi has been appointed as the director of
the Company with effect from June 14, 2021.

Auditors

The present auditors Messer EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants shall retire and may be considered for re-appointment for
the year 2021-22.

Corporate Governance And Financial Reporting Framework

= The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
cperations, cash flows and changes in equity.

*  Proper books of accounts have besn maintained by the Company.

»  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent Judgment

= [nternational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial

statements.

The system of internal control iz sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There has besn no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.

Outstanding taxes and levies are given in the Motes to the Financial Statement.

There were no trading of shares by the Chief Executive Officer, Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary,

their spouse and minor children:

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Dividend And Appropriations

Based on these results, the Board announced a final cash dividend of Re. NIL per shars {i.e. Nil %a).

October 22, 2021
Karachi

==

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGUI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Report Of The Directors On Consolidated
Financial Statements

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to submit the Annual Consclidated Financial Statements along with the
Auditor's Beport thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The Group consists of another wholly owned local subsidiary Skyline Publications {Private) Limited and three wholly owned
foreign subsidiaries in US, UK and UAE namely HUM TV Inc., Hum Metwerk UK Limited and HUM Network FZ-LLC respectively.
Another subsidiary by the name of HUM Mart (Private) Limited is an entirely different field i.e. an e-commerce operations by the
brand name of Hum Mart.

The group recorded revenue of Rs. 4,994 million and profit after tax of As. 961 million for the financial year ended 2021. The
results translate into earmings per share of Rs. 1.05.

The Directors' Report on HUM Metwork Limited for the yvear ended June 30, 2021 has been separately presented in the annual
report.

October 22, 2024

Karachi
e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDICGUI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director
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Code of Conduct

1. Introduction

The provisions of this code as set forth in sections 1 to 15 are mandatory, and full compliancs is expected under all
circumstances.

Bvery director and every employee s responsible for complying with this code. Directors/Employees uncertain about the
application or interpretation of any legal requirements should refer the matter to their supervisor or to the Board, who, if
necessary, should sesk appropriate legal advice.

Failure to comply with the code could result in severe consequences for both the individual and the company. The compary will
impose appropriate discipline which may include discharge for viclation of the code. Furthermore, conduct that viclates the code
may also viclate federal or provincial law and could subject both the company and the individual to prosecutions and legal
sanctions.

2. Conflicts of Interest:

The Company expects that directors/employees will perform their duties conscientiously, honestly, and in accordance with the
best interests of the Company. Directors/Employees must not use their positions or the knowledge gained as a result of their
positions for private or personal advantage. Regardless of the circumstances, if directors/employees sense that a course of
action they have pursued, or are presently pursuing, or are contemplating pursuing may involve them in a conflict of interest with
their employer, they should immediately communicate all the facts to their supervisor or to the Board.

3. Gifts and Entertainment

Employess shall not on behalf of the company, furnish directly or indirectly, expensive gifts or provide excessive entertainment or
benefits to other persons.

Employses whose duties permit them to do so, may furnish modest gifts, favors and entertainment to perscong other than public
officials, provided all of the following criteria are met:

i The gifts are not in form of cash, bonds or other negetiable securities and are of limited value so as not to be capable of
being interpreted as a bribe, payoff or other improper payment;

i they are made as a matter of general and accepted business practice;
i they do not contravene any laws and are made in accordance with generally accepted ethical practices; and
T if subsequently disclosed to the public, their provision would not in any way embarrass the company or the recipients.

For example, reascnable expenses of the entertainment of current or prospective business associates or customers are
permissible by employees whose duties embrace the providing of such entertainment, provided prior approval from the
supervisor iz obtained and proper accounting is made.

4. Relationships With Clients and Suppliers

Employess should aveid investing in or acguiring a financial interest for their own accounts in any business organization that has
a contractual relationship with the Company, or that provides goods or services, or both, to the Company if such investment or
interest could influence or create the impression of influsnicing their decisions in the performance of their duties on behalf of the
Company.

5. Public Officials

All dealings between employses or directors of the company and public officials should be transparent.

Even the appearance of impropriety in dealing with public officials is improper and unaceceptable. Any participation directly or
indirectly, in any bribes, kickbacks, illegal gratuities indirect contributions or similar payments is expressly forbidden, whether or
not they might further the business interest of the company. Maintenance of a high standard of integrity is of the utmost
impartance to the company:.

Since the furnishing, on behalf of the company, of even an inexpensive gift or a modest entertainment or benefit to a public official

may be open to the interpretation that it was furmished illegally to secure the use of hisz/her influence as public official, no such
gift, entertainment or bensfit may be furnished by an employee or director.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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6. Political Contributions

The use of the company’s funds, goods or services as contributions to political parties, candidates or campaigns is specifically
forbidden.

Contributions inclede money or anything having value, such as loans, services, entertainment, trips and the use of the company’s
facilitics or asssts.

7. Personal Gain

Employees and Directors shall not use their status to obtain personal gain from those doing or seeking to do business with the
company.

Except as hersinafter provided, employees and directors should neither seek nor accept gifts, payments, services, fees, special
valuable privileges, pleasure or vacation trips or accommodations or loans from any persons (except, in the case of loans, from
perzons in the business of lending and then only on conventional terms) or from any Company or group that does or is seeking
to do business with the company or any of ite affiliates, or from.a competitor of the company or any of itz affiliates. However,
employ=es and directors may accept modest gifis, favors or entertainment upto the maximum limits prescribed by the Board of
Directors of the Company from time to time provided that doing so is consistent with the tests relating to the furnishing of gifts
set forth in Section 3.

8. Inside Information

Employees and Directors shall not use for their own financial gain or discloss for the use of others, inside information cbtained
as a result of their position within the company.

Employess and Directors may find themselves in violation of the applicable securities laws if they misuse information not
generally known to the public and either trade or inducs others to trade in the stock of the company or in the stock of another
company. Specific confidential information would include financial information, information conceming acquisitions or
dizpositions of properties and proposed acquisition or margers with other companies.

Ins furtherance of this policy, the company has adopted a statement of policy regarding insider trading, which each director, officer
and employes who has access to material non-public information will be requested to sign.

9. Disclosure of confidential Information

Certain records, reports, papers, processes, plans and methods of the company or to which the company has been permitted
access are considered to be secret and confidential by the company or the party who has permitted access thereto, and
employees and Directors are prohibited from revealing information cencerning such matters without proper authorization.

Directors, individuals, clients, agencies, investors and the public should have information about the company as is necessary for
them adeguately to jJudge the company and its activities. The company believes that full and complete reporting to governmental
agencies and the provision of information to the public as required constitutes a responsible and workable approach to
disclosure. However, the company except as required by law, will not disclose information important to its competitive
effectivenass or which might viclate the private rights of individuals, enterprises or institutions. Employee and Directors are
therefore prohibited from discussing or disclosing any secret or confidential information about the company er in the possessicn
of the company unless such disclosure has been authorized by the Board of Directors.

Employses shall comply with departmental policies and procedures relating to the retention and orderly destruction of the
company’s documents.

10. Authorization and Recording of Transactions and
safekeeping of Assets

The company’s books and records must reflect, in an accurate, fair and timely manner, the transactions and disposition of assets
of the company. Employvees responsible for the company’s books and records must ensures that this occurs.

All tranzactions must be authorized and executed in accordance with the instructions of management and the Board of Directors.
They must be recorded so as to permit the accurate preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and other generally accepted laws applicable to such statements and to maintain accountability for assets.
Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the authorization of management.

The uze of company funds or assets for any unlawful or improper purpose is strictly prohibited and those responsible for the
accounting and record keeping functions are expected to be vigilant in ensuring enforcement of this prehibition. The recorded
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accountability for azsets will be compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action will be taken
with respect to any differences.

11. Discrimination-Free Work Environment

The policy of the company is to provide a working environment free of discrimination and harassment in which individuals are
accorded equality of employment opportunity based upon merit and ability.

Discriminatory practices based on race, sex, color, national or ethnic origin, religion, marital status, family status, age or disability
will not be tolerated. Employees ars entitled to freedom from sexual and all other forms of personal harassment in the workl place.

It is not a discriminatory practice to make a distinction between persons based on bona fide occupational requirements. Since
bona fide cccupational requirements are narrowly defined, such distinctions should not be undertaken without first obtaining
express authorization.

12. Protection of the Environment

The company and its directors and employess shall treat the protection of the  environment as an integral factor in all decision
making.

The company is committed to the protection of the environment. To comply with  this commitment, the company’s policy is to
meet or exceed all applicable governmental requirements. Employses must report to their superior all circumstances in which
toxic substances are spilled or released into the environment. Viclations of environmental laws, even if unintentional, can carry
ssvere penalties, and could result in the prosecution of the company or the employees involved or both.

Failure to comply with the company's instructions for the protection of the environment may result in disciplinary actions.

13. Competition and Trade Practice Standards

The company shall compete vigorously and creatively in its business activities, but its efforts in the marketplace shall be
conducted in a fair and ethical manner in strict compliance with applicable competition and trade practice laws and regulations.

Under no circumstances shall any employee or Director of the company be a partly to any collusion or concerted effort of any
type involving any competitor vendor, supplier, customer or other party, which is in restraint of trade or viclation of laws and
regulations designed to foster competition. Because laws relating to competition are complex, employees and Directors should
refer matters about what they are in doubt to their superior or should seek the advice of the company's counsel.

14. Standards of Conduct

though the various matters dealt with in this code do not cover the full spectrum of employee or Director activities, thay are
indicative of the company’s commitment to the maintenance of high standards of conduct and are to be considered descriptive
af the type of behavior expected from employvess and Directors in all circumstances.

15. Distribution

Each director and each employee of the company who has executive, managerial or supervisory responsibilitiss, or deals with
governmental officials or political parties or candidates on behalf of the company, or who has access to confidential information,
will be provided with a copy of this code. To ensure proper understanding of the code, any gquestions as to its application to the

area of responsibility and Jurisdiction of the Director or employee will be explained fully by his / her superior or by the audit
committes.

At commencement of employment and at least once a year thereafter each such employee shall sign the prescribed from of
acknowledgement which will be retained by the Chief Financial Officer or the Chairman of the audit committee that each such
individual under his / her jurisdiction has completed the reguired form acknowledging that he / she has read or reread, as the casze

may be, the current version of the code of ethics & business policies and has complied with its terms.

Each director shall sign such an acknowledgment to the audit committes at the commencement of his or her term.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Whistle-Blowing Policy

1. Purpose

To encourage employess to disclose any malpractice or misconduct of which they become aware and to provide protection for
employses who report allegations of such malpractice or misconduct. The main purpose of this whistle blowing policy is to give
all employees an oppertunity to disclose matters they feel need to be reported in the interest of fair-play and larger benefit of the
organization; high standard of corporate governance; compliance with legal requirements and protection of the Company’s
interest.

2. Policy

The whistle blowing policy iz designed to encourage employees to report alleged malpractice or misconduct, to ensure that all
allegations are thoroughly investigated and suitable action taken where necessary. Any whistle-blowing employee iz protected
against adverse employment actions (discharge, demotion, suspension, harassment, or other forms of discrimination) for raising
allegations of business misconduct. An employee is protected even if the allegations prove to be incorrect or unsubstantiated as
long as thers is no evidence of willful misreporting. Employses who participate or assist in an investigation will alzo be protected.

3. Requirement of policy

This document thus s=ts out a formal whistle-blowing policy, consisting of safe and effective procedures for misconduct
disclosure or reporting so that appropriate remedial action can be taken. A written, formal policy is also a means of preventing
and deterring misconduct that might be contemplated but has not yet taken place. It is also a transparent method of addressing
issues relating to whistle blowing, such as answering standard questions, giving assurances, providing information and offering
explanations.

4. On what should one blow the whistle

What is reportable misconduct?

Any serious concemns you may have about any aspect of the operations of the Hum Metwork Limited {the Company) and those
who work in the Company can be reported under this policy. This may be a conduct that:

* |z against the governing rules, procedures, and policies, or established standards of practice of the Company. amounts to
improper, unathical, or unlawful conduct;

*  Amounts to waste of company's resources; makes you fesl uncomfortable in terme of vour experience with the standards
you believe; or

*  Amounts to an attempt to cover up any of these types of actions. Conduct becomes reportable when it happens or when it
iz reazonably likely to occur. Harm to the Company or to its integrity may cccur when any of this conduct is unchecked or
unaddressed. Importantly, in determining whather to report conduct, harm is not enly measured in terms of menitory loss to
the crganization, or damage to a particular program or initiative, but the harm may alzo be done to the integrity and
reputation of the Company itself, or its survival and/or growth.

Reportable conduct falls into the following categories:

4.1 lllegal or unlawful conduct

Conduct may be illegal or unlawful in terms of the Rules and Regulations of the Company and other applicable laws. We all have
legal responsibilities, cbligations or duties. Criminal offences - such as theft, fraud, corruption (for example, bribery), or money
laundering - are in breach of legal duties and therefore constitute reportable mizconduct.

4.2 Un-procedural conduct

Conduct may be un-procedural since it violates clearly communicated procedures (in the form of policies, regulations, or rules)
governing the operations of the Specific rules and processes, together with other best practice procedures, guide accounting
practices and controls, financial reporting, auditing matters, the transfer of funds te recipients, approved recipient accounts, and
the like. Such procedures are important for good governance and breaching them may expose the application of funds to rigk of
lozs or real loss.
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4.3 Unethical conduct

Conduct may be unethical since it undermines universal, core ethical values, such as integrity, respect, honesty, responsibility,
accountability, fairness. For example one could exert undue pressure on a person in pesition of power in order to gain an
advantage. That would be unfair to others and as such unethical, afthough neither unlawful nor un-procedural. But not all
unethical conduct is reportable. For example, some kinds of conduct may be disrespectful and therefore undesirable, without
harming any serious interests other than personal feelings. This would not be reportable misconduct.

4.4 Wasteful conduct

Conduct constituting a gross waste of resources is a reportable category in its own right since responsible stewardship of
resources is as crucial to the success of the Company as all employees have an obligatien to ensure that all resources are used
prudently and efficiently. f resources are spent in a wasteful manner, and in breach of the public trust under which they are
provided, and an employee knows about this then this would be reportable under the whistle-blowing mechanism.

5. Whistle-blower protection

HML shall take all necessary actions to safeguard the interests of the whistle-blower. Where an individual makes a report under
this policy in good faith, reasonably believed to be true, there will be no retaliation (please read detail below) against the reporter
should the disclosure turn out to be misguided. Retaliation means any direct or indirect detrimental action recommended,
threatened or taken because an individual reported conduct described in Section 4 of this policy. When establizshed, retaliation is
by itzelf misconduct which may be pursued under the appropriate mechanisms - for example, through disciplinary action initiated
through mechanisms of HR Pelicy er more broadly and as appropriate, through other mechanisms of the company’s rules.
Reporting under this policy, however, in no way immunizes or shields a whistle-blower against action following from his or her
own misconduct, which includes willfully making allegations through the whistle-blowing mechanism that the individual knows to
be false or makes with an intent to misinform.

6. Whistle-blowing procedures

HNL encourages all its employees to act responsibly at all times and protect themselves and the company against any illegal or
immoral acts ises section 4) by immediately reporting any such actions to the Designated Perscn.

Designated Persons (DPs)

The
. Company secretary, and
. Head of Internal Audit

Shall be the "Designated Persons" (DPs), and all information shall be directly conveyed to the DPs by the whistle-blower.

Access to the Designated Person

The whistle-blower shall have direct access to the Designated Persons at all imes. This right of the whistle-blower shall be
upheld under all circumstances and respected by the management of the Company.

Medium of Reporting

Reports to the Designated Persons can be made by: Official email address of the Designated Persons.

Follow up Procedure

The DPs will initiate an investigation and take any conseguent action as deemed appropriate and will record the =same for
information of the Board of Directors, keeping at all times, the confidentiality of the Whistle Blower's identity.
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Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

Wa have audited the annaxed unconsolidated financial statemants of Hum Network Limitad (the Company), which comprisa tha
unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 30 Jung 2021, and the unconsolidated statament of profit or loss, unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the uncansolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows
lor the yaar then ended and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we hava obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, weara necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial
position, unconsolidated statement of prafit or loss, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the uncansolidated statemeant
of changes in equity and the unconsclidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof contorm with the
accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of
2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2021
and of the profit, the other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) 82 applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
undar those standards are further dascribad in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements saction of our
reporl. We are Independent of the Company In accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current year. These matters were addrassed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed (n our audit

1. Net realizable value of television program costs

As ol the year end, the balance of tefevision program cosls
amounted to Rs. 452,448,811 (30 June 2020: 466 123,750)
which represents unamortized cost of completed television
programs and telavision programs in production.

As per the accounting policy of the Company, telavision program
costs and acquired television program licenses and righls are
charged 1o expense based on the ratic of the revenues eamed
till date to total revenues to be earned from the program
including future estimatad revenues, less cost expensed in
orior years on an indlvidual program basls,

Allocation of television program costs over sevaral accounting
periods based on estimates of revenus involve significant
Judgamant of tha managameant which may have a significant
impact on the unconsclidated financial statements. For this
reason, we have idenlified this area as key audit matter.

Refer notes 3.5, 8 and 25 to the unconsolidated financial
statements,

Our audit procedures amongst others, comprised reviewing
the appropriateness of the accounting policy of the Company
in accordanca with the appiicable financial reporting standards.
Further, wa obtainad undarstanding of the revanue estimation
and amortization process of the Company.

In this regard, we salscied a sample of lelevision programs
and considered the factors used by the management for
revenue astimation and amartization of television program

cost including:

» historic experience of revenue eamed by similar
programs;

8 ratings of tha program from available
evidances;

. ratas uzad by the Company and its fluctuation based
on the trend analysis; and

. we also considered subsequent events which may

have an impact on unamorized cost.

We also evaluated whether adequate disclosures have been
made in the accompanying uncorsolidated financial staterments
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

2. Impairment assessment of investment in subsidiaries

As disclosed in note 6, the Company carries investmant in
subsidiary companies amounting to Rs 18B.898 million.

In respect of the above investment in subsidiary companies,
the impairment triggers were |dentified by the management
and accordingly, Impairment tests ware carried oul in
accordance with the reguirements of the applicable accounting
standards. Such impairment tests involve estimation of future
cash fiows from the operations of the above enities to determine
the recoverable amount in respect of the above refarred
invesiments.

Due 1o the management judgments and estimates and other
uncertain factors involved in these impairment tests carned
oul by the managemeni, we have considered the determination
of the recoverable amount of investments as a Key Audit
Matter.

Our key procedures In relation to the impairment tests cartied
aut by the management for investment in subsidiary companias
were as follows:

» we considerad the triggers and indicators
reguiring impairment assessmenl in respect
ot the above assets;

- we assessed the appropriateness of the
methodology used by the management for
carrying out the impairment tesl in accordance
with the reguirements of the applicable
accounting standards;

. we reviewed the key inputs and assumptions
used to prepare the future cash flow projection
of the respective enfities including the
commercial assumptions used for this
purpose. We involved our internal specialists
to partorm such review. In this regard, we also
considared the business plan of the subject
entities and the actual results achievad in
redation to the previous plan; and

. we also appled sansitivity analysis on kKey
assumptions and evaluated the results;

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in
the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with
the financial raporting standards,
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management s responsible for the other information. The other information comprses the information included i the Annual Repo,
but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our ppinion on the unconsolidated financial statemants doas not cover the other information and we do not exprass any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with aur audit ol the unconsolidated finarcial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
50, consider whether the ather information is materally inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge
cbtained in the audit or otharwisa appears 1o be materially misstated. If, based on the work wa have parformed, we conclude that
there is a malerial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Managermeant is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolldated financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
for such intarnal contral as managemant detarmines is necessary to enabla the praparation of unconsolidated financial stataments
that are frea from matarial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparning the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managemeant either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but lo do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseesing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsclidated Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whale are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aoditor's report that includes aur opinion. Reasoanable assurance
is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstaternant when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or grror and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these unconsalidated financial statemants.

Ag part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise profassional judgment and mainlain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement ol the unconsolidated flinancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidance that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than lor one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

. Obtain an understanding of intarnal control relavant to the audit in ordar to daesign audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass
of the Company's internal contral.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the geing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerlainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast signiticant doubt on the Company's ability to conlinue as & going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s reporl to the related
disclosuras in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modily
our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audil evidence obtained up lo the date of our auditar's
report. Howevar, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease o continue as a gaing
conGern,
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. Evaluate tha overall prasantation, structiure and content ot the unconsolidated financial statemants,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and avenls in a manner that achigves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant sthical requirements regarding Independsnce,
and to communicate with them all ralationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our indepandence, and
where applicable, related sateguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board ot Directars, we datermine these matters that wera of mast significance in the audil
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or reguiation preciudes public disclasure about the matier or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repon because the adverse conseguences of dolng so would reascnably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audil, we furlher report that in our opinion:

aj proper books of account bave been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Acl, 2017
(X1X of 2017);
b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,

tha unconsolidated statemant of comprehansive income, the unconsolidated statemant of changes
in equity and the unconsalidated statement of cash flows tegether with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 2017) and are in agreemenl
with the books of account and retums;

c) investments made, expendilure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source undar the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1880).

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this indeapendent auditor's report is Omar Ghughtai.

Sd/-
EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountant
Place: Karachi
Date: October 22, 2021
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note —cees RUPEES —=ssusies
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and aquipment 4 1,263,816,621 1,365,363 429
Intangible assets ] 20,007,542 32,107 487
Long term Investments & 188,898,481 326,898,481
Long term deposils and prepayments T 31,120,555 27,917 160
Telavision program costs 8 352,064,012 260,737 951
Defarrad tax asset 9 121,432,046 144,885,503
1,977,339,257 2.259.910.011
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 16,660,901 16,984,145
Cumrent partion of television program costs 8 100,385,799 105,385,798
Trade dehis 10 1,956,785,375 1,716, 753,677
Short term investments 11 502,415,157 241,505,002
Advances 12 129,006,777 90,637,954
Trade deposils and short-term prepayments 13 21,102,013 19,118,741
Oiher raceivables 14 144 616,512 120,803 353
Taxation = net 211,788,308 182,756,633
Cash and bank balances 15 355,827,585 141,629,483
3,438,586, 427 2 644 665,877
Mon-current asset held for sale 16 - 16,507 087
TOTAL ASSETS 5,415,927 684 4,921,082 8975
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2020: 1,500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Re.1/- each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000, 000
Issued, subscribed and pald-up capital 17 845,000,000 945,000,000
Unapproprigted profit 3,118,470,793 2,104,074,108
4,063,470,793 3.049.074,108
HNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term lease liablitles 18 92,051,392 103,701,273
Long term financing 19 248,521 449 837,839,369
Dafarred [noome - Governmant grant 20 560,658 -
341,133,409 541,540,642
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and othar payables 21 381,944 377 492 872413
Advance from cuslomers 28,583,206 13,628,128
Accrued mark-up 8,092,693 2,860,434
Short term bormowings 22 - 189,067,264
Unclaimed dividend E,048,490 5,048 430
Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,152
Current portion of deferred income - Government grant 20 4,495,607 -
Current portion of long term lease liabilities 18 29,564,860 29,573,737
Current portion of long term financing 19 352, 479,000 196,311,600
1,011,323,392 830,468 225
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,415,827 684 4,821 082 975
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
.'A .-{ '_-:3. -~ ll,'i:;:
i e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIaul MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Mote
Revenue 24
Cost of production 75
Transmission cost
Gross profit
Distribution costs 28
Administrative expenses 27
Other income 28
Gain on sale of non-current asset held for sale 16
Other expanses 24
Operating profit
Finance costs 30
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxaticn |
Profit / (loss) for the year
Earnings / (loss) per share — basic and diluted (Rupee) s

The annexad notas fram 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsalidated financial stataments.

\_-56.-'_ 3

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

:"];: L -."E‘: L

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ sSIDDIQUWI

Chairman

2021 2020
sermemmnes RUPEES —meeeemar
4,327,326,066 3679.488,088
(2,614,343, 566) (2,756,142, 547)
(90,436,188) (138,060,102}
{2,704,779.754) (2,895,211.649)
1,622,546,312 784,256 438
(235 410,544) {279,841.775)
(663,205,199) {475,129,826)
160,572,087 173,651,157
476,832,913 -
(153,626,320) (B87,605.183)
1,207,508,659 105,330,806
{100,365,167) {241,450.871)
1,107,143 492 {128,120,065)
(92,746,807) 22 881,574
1,014,396,685 (113,238,491}
1.07 (0:12)
/,ﬂ
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
e RUIpEES -
Profit / {loss) before taxation 1,014,396,685 {113,238,491)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined benafits plan - net of @Ex - 5,191,764
Total comprehensive profit / {loss) for the year 1,014,396,685 (108,048,727)
The anrexad notes fram 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
8
L -~ ——
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up Unappropriated
capital profit Total
Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2018 945,000,000 2,212,120,B35 3,157,120,835
Loss for the year (113,238,491) {113,238,481)
Other comprehensive income - 5,191,764 5,191,764
Total comprehensive loss for the year B (108,046,727) {108.,046,727)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 945,000,000 2,104,074,108 3,049,074,108
Prafit for the year - 1,014,396 685 1,014,396,685
Other comprehansive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,014,396,685 1,014,398, 685

Balance as at June 30, 2021

945 000,000 3118,470,793 4,063.470,793

The annexed noles from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial stalements.
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"
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note ——massannee Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 33 787,835,853 280,428 530
Tawes paid (98,325,024) (71,831,296)
Finance costs paid {95,132,908) {244,080,531)
Profit received on depesit accounts 28 16,634,989 13,005,882
Long tarm deposits T {3,203,395) (302,167 )
Television program costs & 8,673,938 (133,509,334)
Met cash generated from [ (used) in operating activities 616,583,554 (156,287,918
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (110,529,571) (40,798 620
Addilions to intangible assets 5 {292,400) (1,008,000)
Short term invesimants - net {162,756,066) 503 B56 977
Dividend received 28 177,973 150,000
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 4.4 16.481,.506 45 641,494
Proceeds from sale of non-current asset held for sale 16 493,340,000 -
Net cash generaied from investing activities 236,421 442 588,041 851
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Leases rentals paid (21,645,375) (24,877,232)
Long term financing — net (428,094,255) (316,404,093
Met cash used in financing activities {449,739, 630) (341,381,325)
Met increase In cash and cash equivalents 403,265,366 100,372,610
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (47,437,781) (147,810,381

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances
Shor-term running finance

355,827,585

355,827,585 47.437.781)

141,620,483
(185,067,264)

355.827,585 47 437 781)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

i s S
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 HUM Metwork Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on 25 February 2004 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (lhe Ordinance) now Companies Acl, 2017, The shares of the Company are guoted an
Fakistan Stock Exchange.

1.2 The Company's principal business is to launch transnational satellife channels and sims at presenting a wide vanety of cultural
heritage. Its core areas of operation are production, advertisement, entertainment and media marketing. It covers a wide variaty
of programmes with respect to information, entertainment, news, educstion, health, food, music and society.

13 Geographical lecation and address of business units

Registered office Plot No. 10/11, Hassan Ali Street, O, |.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan,
Head office — Karachi B.R.R Tower, Hassan Al Street, Off. I.I. Chundngar Road

City offices — Karachi Alfalan Court, |l Chundrigar Road

City office — Islamabad 2A, I1&T center, sector G-6/1

City office — Lahore House # 58, R-24, Maszon Road

City office — Peshawar Plot Na. 7-A, 28 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City office — Quelta House # 3, Phase |l, Shahbaz town

1.4 These are separale financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidianes are slaled al cosl less
impairment, if any.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21  Statement of compliance

These unconsclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intermational Accounting Standard Board
(I1A5B) as notified under the Companies Act 2017 (the Act); and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued
under the Act have been followed.

2.2 Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been preparad under the historical cost convention except for:

-  Praperty, plant and equipment which are carried at revalued amaount in accardance with 1AS 16 "Property,
Plant and Equipment” as disclosed in note 3.1 and 4.1; and

-  Employees’ retirament benefits which is carried al present value of defined benefil obligation net of fair value
of plan assets in accordance with the requirements of |AS 19 "Employee Benefits”, as disclosed in note 3.11
and 21.1.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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23

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted the following standards, amendments,
inlerpretation and improvements to IFRS which became effective for the current vear:

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments)
IFRSS8/IAS 30/ IFRS T Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(Amendments)
1451 /1AS5 8 Definition of Material (Amendments)
Effective date
{annual periods

Improvement to accounting standards issued by the IASB (2018 — 2020 beginning on or

cycle) after)

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework {Amandments) January 01, 2022

1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended J 01, 2022
Use (Amendments) e L

1AS 37 Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfiling a Contract January 01, 2022
(Amendments)

145 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current January 01, 2023
{Ameandments)

IFRS 10/ IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its ;
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments) etk et nglieng

IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 {Amendment) January 01, 2021

IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 April 01, 2021
{Amendments)

1451 Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendmeants) January 01, 2023

IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimales {Amendmenls) January 01, 2023

1AS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

1,
single transaction (Amendments) January 01, 2023

Improvement to accounting standards issued by the IASB IASB effective date (annual

(2018 — 2020 cycle) periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 9 Feeas in the "10 parcent’ test for the
derecognition of financial liabilities CApany i, Ll
1AS 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurement January 01, 2022
IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives January 01, 2022

The above standards, amendments of IFRSs and improvemeants to accounting standards are not expected 1o have
any material impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

Standard IASB effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after)
IFRS1 First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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24  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the unconsclidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and accompanying
disclosures. Uncertsinty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the camying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future perinds.

The estimates and associated assumpticns are based on histoncal experence and various olher factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounling estimates are
recognized in the perind in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the perind of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future penods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which
are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation / amortisation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation / amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is
made for possible impaimment cn an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources
available with the Campany. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, with correspanding effects on the depreciation [ amortisation
charge and impairment.

Investment in subsidiaries (note 6)

The Company value its investment in subsidiaries at cost less impairment, if any. The Company determines whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for Individual investments. The determination of fair value of ungucted
subsidiaries Involves Inherent subjectivity, key assumptions (such as future cash flow forecasts, discount and growth
rates and volalility), and estimation relation to valuation inputs and techniques. Any change in these assumplions and
estimates may have significant impact on the fair value of investments with corresponding impact in statement of profit or
loss.

Television program costs (note 8)

Television program costs represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. In order to determine the amount to be charged to statement of profit or loss, the management estimates
future revenues from each program. Estimates of future revenues can change significantly due to a variety of factors,
including advertising rates and the level of markel acceptance of the production in different geographical locations.
Accordingly, revenue estimates are reviewed periodically and amortisation is adjusted, if necessary. Such adjustmeants
cauld have a material effect on resulls of operations in future periods.

Income taxes (note 9)
In making tha estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account the applicable tax laws
and the decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.7)
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade debts and other receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for Company's various customear that have similar loss patterns.

The provision malr is initislly based on the Company's historical observed defaull rates. The Company will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit lnss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, il forecast economic
conditons are expected to deterorate over the next year which can lead to an increassd number of defaulls in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical obsarved defaull
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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The assessment of the correlalion between histoncal observed defaull rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions.
The Company's historical credil loss experience ‘and lorecast of economic conditions may also nel be representative of
customer's actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs an the Company's financial assets exposed lo
credit risk is disclosed in note 38.5.

Contingencies (note 23)

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future
events cannol be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the
value of contingent assels and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence [ non-occurrence of the uncertain fulure
events.

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 17)

The Company cannol readily determine the inlerest rate implicit in the lease, thersfore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate ('IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. The |IBR is the rate of interest thal the Company would have 1o pay o borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary 1o oblain an assel of a similar value to the right-of-use
assel in a similar economic anvircnmen,

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 17)

The Company determines the leasa term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, tagethar with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease i it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it iz reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination option, The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether il is reasonably cerlain whether or not o exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. Thal is, il
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renawal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its contral that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31 Property, plant and equipment
3.1.1 Operating fixed assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method sc as to write off the historical cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is
available to use and no deprecialion is charged for the month in which assel was disposed of.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvemeants, if any, are capitalized when il is probable that respective fulure economic benefits will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plant and equipment |5 derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognized.

The assels' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

31.2 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
lisbilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-iine basis over the shorter of lease term
or useful life, except for the leases In which ownership of the underlying assets transfer 1o the lessee by the end of the
lease term or cost of right of use assels reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase aption, the Company depreciate
those right of use asset over the useful life of the underlying asset.
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3.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment and consist of expenditures incurred and advances made in
respect of specific assets during the consiruction period. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are
availablg for use.

3.2 Mon current assets held for sale

Mon current assets are classified as assels held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considerad highly probable. They are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value lass cost 1o sell.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded 35 met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required o complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sall will ba withdrawn,
Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within cne year from
the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment are not depreciated once classified as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the unconsalidated statement
af financial position,

33 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assels acquired in
a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recagnition, intangible assets are carried
gt cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed al leasl al each financial year end. The amortisation expense on
inlangible assets with finite lives is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the expense calegory consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured as the difference belween the nal
disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the asset and are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognized.

34 Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiary is a entity over which the Company has control. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has
rights, to variable refurns from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those returns through its power
over the invesiea. Generally, there is prasumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. In assessing control,
potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable are taken into account.

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the camying
amount of the investmen! lo assess whelher there is any indicalion thal such invesimenls have sulfered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Such impairment losses or reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profil or loss,
Thesa are classified as "long term invesimant’ in the unconsolidated financial statements.

3.5 Television program costs

Television program costs represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and televislon programs in
production. These costs include direcl production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are
stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated amaortisation and net realizable value (NRV). NRY is estimated by the
management on the basis of future revenue generation capacity of the program. Acguired television program licenses and
rights are recordad when the license period begins and the program is availabie for use.

Television program costs and acquired lelevision program licenses and rights are charged to expense based on the ratio
of the revenues eamed lill date to lotal revenues (o be earned from the program including fulure estimated revenues less
cost expensed in prior years on an individual program basis.
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3.8 Inventories
Thesa ara valued on weighted average cost basis and are stated at the lower of cost and NRV,
3.7 Financial instruments

A financial instrument s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ong entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Linder IFRS @ Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at following;

{a) at amortised cost
(b} at fair value through profit or loss(FYTPL); and
{c) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH),

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assel's confractual cash flow
characteristics and the business mode! for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables, the Company initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In arder for a financial asseal to be classified and measured at amorized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI1)" on the principal amount outstanding. This
assassmant is referrad to as the SPP| test and is performad at an instrument level. The Company’s business madel for
managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows, The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the dale that the Company
commils to purchase or sell the assel

(a) At amortised cost
A financial assel is measured at amortised if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in crder to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates o cash flows thal are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amoun! outstanding.

{b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and Interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FYOC! as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is & trade receivable withoul a significant financing component that is initially measured at the
lransaclion price) is initially measured al fair value plus, for an itern nol al FVTPL, transaction costs thal are directly
attributabla ta its acquisition,

(c) At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debl instruments is measured gl fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are mel;

- The financial assel is held within a business model with the abjective of bath halding to collect contraclual cash flows
and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amaunt cutstanding.

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably ts equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVOC!| when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Subseqguenl measurement
For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assels are classified into following categories.

- Financial assets al amonised cost (debl nstruments).

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)
- Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels al amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assels al amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective Interest (EIR) method and are subject
to Impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for rading, financial assels designated upon initial recognition at
FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily required 1o be measurad at falr value. Financial assels are classified as held for
trading if thay are acquirad for tha purpozsa of selling or repurchasing in the naar tarm. Financial assals with cash flows
that are nol solely payments of principal and inlerest are classified and measured at fair value through profil or loss,
Imespective of the business model, Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments 10 be classified at amontized cost or
at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly raducas, an sceounting mismateh

Financial assets atl FVPL are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair valua with nat changes in
fair value recognised in unconsolidaled statement of prafil or loss.

This calegory also includes denvative instruments and listed equity invesimenis which the Company had nol imevocably
elected to classify at FVOCI. Dividends on listed equity Investments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impaiment
losses of reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in OC! Is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)
Thesa assets are subsaquently measured at fair value, Gains and losses on thass financial assets are naver recyclad to
profit or loss, Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of paymeant has
been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
assel, in which case, such gains are recorded In QCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through QCI are nol
subject to impairment assessment.

As at the date of statemant of financial position, Company is not having any equity instrument designated at fair valus
through OCI,

Derecognition
A financial assat (or, whare applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) (s primarily
derecognised (i.e. rermoved from the Company's unconsolidated staternent of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

The Company has transferred ils rights 10 recelve cash flows from the assel or has assumed an obligation 10 pay the
recaived cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangament; and aither (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, bul has transferred control of the assel.

When the Company has transfermed its rights 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered |nto a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluales if. and to whal extent, il has relained the risks and rewards of ownership,

Whaen it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assat, nor transferred control
of the assel, the Company conlinues to recognise the transferred assel to the extent of its confinuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original camrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.
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Impalmment of financlal assets

The Company recognigas an allowance for sxpactad credil lossas (ECLE) for all debl instrumants not hald at fair valua
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference belween the contrectusl cash lows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
anhancamaniz that are inlagral io the coniractual terms.

ECL= are racognised in two stages. For eradil axposuras for which thare has nol baan a significant incraase in cradil risk
since milial recognition, ECLs are provided for credil losses thal resull from defaull events thal are possible within the
nexl 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
rick since initial recognition, a lass allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
axposura, irraspactiva of tha timing of the dafaull (A lifetime ECL)

For trada dabiz, lha Company applias a simplified approach in ealculating ECLs. Theralors, the Company doas not track
changes in credil nsk, bul mslgad recognises a loss allowance based on lifetme ECLs &l each reporling date. The
Company has established a provision matrix that Is based on its historical credit loss experence, adjusted for forward
Inoking factors specific to the deblors and the economic environmeant.

The Company considars a financial assat in dafault whan contractual paymeants are 80 days past dus. Howaver, in cartain
cases, the Company may also consider a inancial assel 1o be in defaull when inlemal o extemal information indicales
that the Company is unlikely lo receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial assel is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows,

ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as denvatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriale.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
direclly altribulable transaclion cosls.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as al fair value through profit or loss. Gains or Iosses on liabiliies held for trading are
recognised in the stalement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition al fair value through
prafit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are salisfied. The Company
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Aftar initial recognition, bormowings and payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profil or loss when the labilities sre derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cosls in the stalement of prafit or loss,

Borrowings are classified as cument liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional night to defer the settlement of
the liability for at least 12 menths after the reporting date. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of borrowings In
foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
exisling liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is {realed as the deracognition of the onginal
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

3.8 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and setile the labilities simultaneously,
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38  Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods or services o the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earier). Contract liability are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

310 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the assef's recoverabla amount is estimated to determine the extant
of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in stalement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value in
use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of meney and the risk specific to the assets for which the estimate of future
cash flow have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment. assels are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

3.11 Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition
assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that assets
may be impaired. If such indication exisls, the estimated recoverable amount of thal assel is delermined and any
impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

312 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assels and liabilities in the unconsolidated statement of financial position based on currentinon-
current classification. An asset is currenl when it is:

« Expected to be realised or Intended to be sold orconsumed in the normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the repeoriing pericd

Cr

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assels are classified as non-current.

A llability Is current when:

* |t is expected to be setided in the normal operating cycle

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* I iz due fo be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period

Or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabiliies.

313 Taxation

Current
Provision for current lax is based on the taxable income in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences arising at the
statement of financial position date between tax bases of assets and liakilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the exiant that il is probable that the future taxable profils will be available against
which the assets may be ufilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
ralated tax benefit will be realized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax asset Is reviewed at each statement of financlal position date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferrad tax
assat o be moognized

Daferrad tax aszeiz and lisbilibes are measurad al tha (ax rate thal are axpacled (o apply 1o the penod whan ha assal s
realised or the llability s setlled, based on lax rales (and lax laws) thal have been enacted or substantively enacted al the
statement of financial position date.

314 Cash and cash aquivalants

Thaza are camed 8l cogl. For the purpoze of slatement of cash lows, cash and cash equivelents compnsa of cash m
hand, bank balances and short term running finance.

3.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs direclly attributable 1o the
Issue of new shares or options are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

316 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract Is, or contains, a lease. That Is. if the contract conveys
the right to contral the use of an identified assat for a pariod of time in exchange for consideration

3.16.1 Company as a lesses

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
represanting tha right 1o usa tha underlying assets.

i) Lease liabilities

Al the commencemanl dale of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabililies measured al the presenl value of lease
payments to be made over the lease lerm. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expectad to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lsasa payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
oplion reasonably cerain lo be exercised by the Company and paymenis of penallies for lerminating the lease, il tha
termination oplion is reasonably certain o be exercised. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rale are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce invenlories) in the period in which the event or
condition that tnggers the payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments at the lease
commancement date, the Company uses Lhe inlerasl rale implicil in the lease. In case where the inlerast rate implicil in
the lease is nol readily determinable, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate. Afler the commencemen! date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased (o reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, tha carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if thare is a modification, a changa in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an oplion lo purchase lhe underlying assel.

ii) Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

Tha Company delerminas tha lease lerm as the non-cancallable term of the lease, logether with any pariods covared by
an oplion to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to lerminate
the lease, If it is reasonably cerain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether il is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminaie the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there s a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or
to terminate (e.g.. construction of significant leasehold improvemenis or significant customisation of the leased asset)

iii) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Company cannol readily determine the interes! rate implicil in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) lo measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a

similar term, and with a similar sacurity, the funds necassary to oblain an assal of a similar value 1o the right-of-use assat
in a similar economic environmeant,

iv) Short-term leases

The Company applies the shor-lerm lease recognition exemption to its short-lerm leases of office premises (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on shorl-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the leass lerm.
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3.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initislly recognised 2l fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently carried al amartized
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiss unless tha Company has an unconditional | contractual right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.

318 Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. As the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
owver the perods that the related costs, far which it is intended to compensale, are expensed.

3.19 Unclaimed and unpaid dividend

Dividend declared by the Company, in the preceding three years, which remains unclaimed or unpaid as on the statement
of financial position date is recognized as unpaid dividend. Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding three
years from the statement of financial position date are recognized as unclaimed dividend.

3.20 Provisions

Praovisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

3.21 Revenue recognition

Advertising revenues are recognized at a point in time when the related advertisement or commercial appears before
public i.e aired.

Production revenue; Production revenue is recognised at a point in time when production work appears before public,

Digital revenue: Advertizsing revenues from digital properties are recognized on the basis of number of impressions on the
advertisernent aired on websile.

Subscription incoma arises from the monthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Company. Revenue is
recognised in the manth the service is rendered.

Film Distribution Revenues: Revenua from film distnbution is recognized at a8 paint in ime upon receipt of related sales
reparts from cinemas.

Credit limits in contract with customers ranges from 2 to 90 days.
3.22 Other income
Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipt basis.
Profit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognized when it is declared and right to receive is established.
Interest / markup income is recognized on accrual basis.
Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis.
3.23 Expenses

Expanses ara recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distnbuwtion costs and administrative
expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of production. Allocations between cost of
production, distribution and administrative expanses, whan required, are made on a consistent basis.

3.24 Staff retirement banefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company oparates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, bath by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary.
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3.25 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated inlo Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dales of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilitias in foreign currencies are ranslated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange
rate at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assets and liabilties are translated using exchange rate that
existed when the values were determined. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transaclions and from the translations at the year-end exchange rales of monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in
forelgn currencies are taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss currently.

3.26 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs thal are directly attributable to the acguisition and construction of assets and incurred durng the period in
cannection with the activities necessary o prepare the assel for its intended use are capitalized as a part of the cost of
related asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expanse in the period in which they are incurred,
3.27 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these are
appraved.

3.28 Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation that arises from past evenis and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the ccourrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncerain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events bul is not recognised because il s not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.29 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period,

3.30 Functional and presentation currancy

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation

3.31 Segment Reporting

Segement reporting is based on the reporting operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a
component of the Company that engages in bussiness aclivities from which it may eam revenue and incur expenses. An
operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Company to make
decisions about resources o be allocated to the segment and assess |ts performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Mote June 30, June 30,
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2021 2020
smsmssmcaes RUPEES =mecmeaeme
Operating fixed assets 41 1,067,367,531  1,219.674,736
Right of use assets 4.5 109,028,621 128,754 816
Capital work-in-progress 4.6 87,420,469 15,833,877

1,263 816,621 _ 1,365 363 429
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41 Operating fixed assets

Cost Accumulated degreclation Book value Deprecistion
Ao Addilions* | At At Change | As e ns ot Rnte
tranatars from
transfers from O™
ROLUA™™ |
duly 01, {dinpnunia| June 30, duly 11, idizpoeale) for tha Juna 30, June 30 R
2e20 transhors. 2031 imza yaar 2021 e Pl @nmum
Rupeas
O
Leasahakd land® T04, 147,370 7o 147 370 45,040,873 18,237,857 01,887 440 T32.208.0340 208 -2A3
Hwlding on imaseho'd End* 108, Be0.E11 108,880 571 61,568,038 T804, 387 58177 425 50,713,088 11
Leasehold mprovemanis B2, 342,754 B4 761 100488 545 155,708,502 5445616 181455118 9,334 307 23
Fumiyne arel lilings A0, 058 85T - A0 085 62T 15,840 327 3,479,784 23330911 B, 758 228 14
Wehicles B1 MAE1H 308 622 " T4, 207 445 56,651 421 & 642,890 54,132 554 20,084 Ba2 53
15,164,322 = BT TS
[dATT 31T (20445 402)
Ausdin vimual aouipment G50, 035,905 L ReE I SAT. 243253 218,969,423 B 348,015 A0 5F9 148 1E2.814 307 25
{1,900 ) (BaE, 23]
Lisinking aquipme 75, 484 76 TR22 408 = T7.A08, 758 48 502 8a0 X854 749 50,347 429 26,858, 56 10
Offece: gouwpment 715,490,656 ZB53 141 = 115444 317 BT 835,154 11,518,121 5,142,285 arane naz 15
(2,508, 4807 (1411, 020)
Campiiers 15481211 DE0d 4 - TH2.250 805 151,345,478 22332 10850680 11360425 k]
(2 B15,873) (2,735, 789]
Jume 30, 2021 23 YA A 9,042 979 x 2181,035. 719 914,061,326 185,515,520 1.083,672 1848 1,067 267,52
LAY 8T T
B, 003, T 4) |25, 176, 503)
Cost Accumulated depreciation Book walug Dapiaciatian
As ol Agddbians™ I Az at asal Change | Az at as at Rate
transfers from tranafers frosm
RO | ROHIAR ¢
(reclassification)
duty 01, " [disposals) duna 30, duly 81, (disgesala) for the i 33, Juna 30. k]
2018 transfers 2020 2013 year 2020 2020 por Enniem
Chwned
Lezasehald land * 756,571 484 5043¢,003 ™" Tl 147 378 35235861 15,774,428 45,845,573 Td& <67 Bl 204 -213
121 857 .001) *** (5,330,814) =
Biliting on easahold ad* 108,035 404 1885007 ** 05 R 541 43 506 ALY TR 51 RES 158 B3 972 473 1
Leasshald mprovsmants 1ER, 134,658 5823118 2 182 342 T4 136 454 455 A5 775 814 165, TiNG 602 35 A3 263 &3
(6,644 20} [8.518.771)
Fumicuire el fitings 40,050,837 = AD 052 63T 16,316,654 3.523,690 0840 027 20,278,310 10
Wehiclin 148,774,101 &snpEr A4 213 89 A3, 390,048 17,154 188 B& EE1 481 4 RE2 238 k]
43489.285 ImEre Mz
{B2.007 244 162,351 54
Audio vislal acupment 556, X508, 601 0,665 A07 T 580,035 805 235 882 685 BE. 724, 458 16869473 241 068 132 25
(¥ B0, Edif) [3EaT,150)
Lisbriing eauipmes 75,474, 763 . T5 B4 763 47 347 470 3,745,761 #6557 680 78791 5&3 1
CHPcs g e 139, 742,808 | sy 115,000 655 62,715,088 i3 415,803 BT 85 184 AT af4, 472 13
%5, E5R,720) (8 455 473)
Compiiers 189,571,397 6,160,514 175 462 271 124,231 384 2T A1 454 151,345,174 24, M7 033 a3
|97, od) (287, 100)
Jime 30, 2020 2,943,600,850 B3 033078 133736133 TE3,772,508 211,385,338 914,061,396 1.219,674,736
43 489 a8 ** AT 2
21,857 001) ™ {5.350,814) "~

{144,538, 730) [T, 341, 5468)

o Includes asset under common ownership under Diminishing Musharaka arangement.

**  Addifions of Rs. 39,042 878 {2020: Rs. 83,033,078), as shown above, include an amount of Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 53 434,083)
transferrad from capital work in progress during the pariod,

== Includes transfers from right of use assets 1o owned assets. (Refer nole 4.5)

E a2

Reclassified 1o non-curmen! assets held lor sale (Refer note 18)
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4.2 Particular of Immovable Asset in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Addresses Total Area
Karachi Plot Mo, 10711 hassan ali streal, off L1 Chundrgar road. 2,070 s yards
Islamabad Plot Mo 24, 1&T cenfre sector G-&1, 10 sg.ht
Istamabad 6-T km, kashrmic highway, adjacent to Sectar H-17 303 5 yands
2021 2020

Mote —eee RUPEES =smrmiems
43  Depreciation for the pericd on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Cosl of production 25 148,330,676 168,740,193
Distribution costs 25 BT0.064 1,141,360
Administrative exponsas 27 36,313,880 41.513, 785

185,515,520 211,385,338
=ﬁ
4.4 The details of operaling fixed assals disposed [writtan off, during the perod are as follows:

Accumulated  Met book Sale Modes of
Description Cost depreciation walue procegds Gain Diposals Particulars of Buyer
Office equipment
2,508,480 1.411.020 1,087 460 1,371,550 274,080  Negotiation Akbar Engineering
Vehicles
As per
Company
180718 4332360 1,857,345 2,196,604 330,255 Palicy Mr. Badar liram, an employes.
As per
Company  Mr, Muhammad Abbas Hussain,
6,218,883 4,353 490 1,566 403 2210616 344 213 Pakey Chial Financial Ciflesr
As per
Cornparny
2500200 1652745 BT 455 a74 595 127,140 Paolcy Me. Masir Jamal, an emploves
As per
Company Mr. Duraid Qureshi, Chief
5 F77.0m 4,043 564 1,733,127 1,844 513 211,386 Pokcy Exacutive
As par
Comipany
2,713,640 1,890,548 814,002 992 900 178,808 Policy Mr. Khalid Soorty, an emploves
As per
Company  Mr. Kamren Shamshad Shmed,
1,620,859 1,045,744 584 148 918,381 334,233 Palicy an employes
As per
Company
2,000,704 1,633,058 1,366,736 1,852,288 485650 Pokcy Mr. Amir Zia, an employes
Insurance
1,153,474 483,381 GB0,093 1,197,000 536,907 claim Adamjee Insurance
liems having book value
ol less than Rs. 500,000 5,211,535 A 313187 508 248 2,522 961 1.924 612  Negoltiation Various
2021 36,903,714 25,178,503 11,725,211 16,481,506 4756295
2020 114,538,200  T4.341.548 40,106,742 45841404  5.544,752

—_— e e
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2021 2020
Note smnemsss RUPEES srmsssnee
4.5 Right of use assets
Year ended June 30
Opening net book valua 129,754 818 205,224,716
Additions in lease liahilties 9,951,424 4,701,600
Change due to modification during the year a5193 (31,825,299)
Translar to aparating fixed assals- book valus (5,800,547) {14.,910,383)
Less: Dagreciation charge for the year 453 (24,822,265) (33.335,818)
Clozsing net bonk value 108,028,621 128,754,816
As at June 30
Cost 169,937,566 165,841,496
Accumulated depreciation (60,908,945) (36,086,680)
Met book value 108,028,621 128,754,816
4,51 Breakup of net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:
2001 2020
seseees (RUpBES) wonmeeees
Land and building 89,984,187 108,023,399
Vehicles 20,476,037 21731417
110,460,224 129,754,816
4.5.2 The nght-of-use assels are deprecialed on strasght line basis over the lease tarm.
4.5.3 Depreciation for the period on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:
20 2020
Mote —mrmens RUPEEE =memmeenm
Cosl of production 25 13,400,475 20,321,304
Distribution costs 26 2,639,022 2,120,139
Admmnistralive expenses 27 8,782,768 10,884 5375
24,822,255 33,335,818
Braakup of depreciation of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset le as follows:
201 2020
e RUPERS ==emmeee=
Land and building 18,074,403 19,037,661
Vehicles 6,747,862 14,298,157

i L o | 1
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2021 2020
Rupees ———-
48 Capital work-in-progress
Leasehold Land — 1,420,469 19,3583 377
4.6.1 Movemant in capital work-in-progress curing the period:
Balance at beginning of the vear 15,933,877 59,031,934
Additions during the peiod 71,486,592 16,336,036
Transfers during the pariod - (09,434,093)
Balance at end of the period #7.420,469 15,833,877
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value Amortisation
As at Additions Az at Ag at Faor the As at as at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, period June 30, June 30, %
2020 2021 2020 2021 2021 PET ANNLM
Compuler softwares  5g 435 718 130400 58466118 37402085 7,708,595  45200,680 13,265,433 20-33
License fee 10,500,000 10,500,000 9385424 366850 0,752,274 747726 86T
Trade mark 533,721,500 162000 33883500 23572202 4316900 27RRO122 5,004 378 20
Al 8T 102,557,218 292,400 102,840,618 70449731 12392345 2842076 20,007,542
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value Amortisation
As at Additions As at As at Faor the As at as at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, year June 30, June 30, b
2019 2020 2018 2020 2020 PEr annum
Computer softwares 5 435,718 - 58,335,718 20077132 8414953 37402085 20,843,653 M-33
License fee 10,500,000 3 10,500,000 BO0SEB0 475544 9§ 385474 1,714,576 BGT
Trade mark 42,713,500 1,008,000 33721500 18,010,085 5553167 23572222 10,149,278 20
June 30,2020 101,549,218 1,008,000 102,557,218 56,006,067 14443664 70449731 32,107,487
2021 2020
51  Amaortisation for the period has been allocated as follows: Note s QUPEES smies
Cost of production 25 9,596,124 10,649,802
Admimistralive expanses 27 2,794,221 3.793 862
12,392,345 14,443 664

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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& LONG TERM INVESTMENTS - unquoted subsidiaries

Country of Holding /

incorporation Note el o
s RUPBES —memmem—ms
United States
HUM TV, Inc of America s
10,000 Common stock at § 0.01 (5 100) 8,603 B.B03
Advance for future issue of shares (% 200,000) 18,716,750 18,716,750
18,725,353 18,725,353
HUM Network UK Ltd United Kingdom 100%
553,677 Ordinary Share of 1 GBP (GEP 553.677) 95,923,751 95,923,751
Shky Line Publication (Private) Limited Fakistan 100%
3,999,997 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 39,999,970 39,900,070
Provision for impairment 6.1 {39,999,970) [39,999,970)
United Arab
HUM MNetwork FZ LLC Emiratas 100%
2400 Ordinary Shares of AED 1000 each (AED
2,400,000) 69,802,371 59,802,371
Advance for fulure issue of shares (AED 175431) 4 446 966 4 445 266
74,249,337 74,249,337
HUMM Co. (Private) Limited Pakistan 100%
4 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 40 40
HUM Mart {Private) Limited Fakiztan TO%
14,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each 140,000,000 140,000,000
Provision for impairment 8.2 (140,000,000) -
140,000,000

188.898.451 328,898,481

6.1 The Company owns 100% shareholding of Sky Line Fublication {Private) Limited (Skyline) as at 30 June 2021 100% (2020 100%],
The principle business of the subsidiary is publishing a monthly English magazine and production and sales of documentary films. The
subsidiary company has aamed a profit afler tax amounting to Rs, 1,000,782 (2020: incurred loss of Rs. 12,085,550) and accmulated
loss amounting lo Rs. B7 436,109 (2020 Rs. 88 526,891). As al year end the Company is carrying iis investment in Skyline as a
subsidiary company sl cosl less imparment lossas, if any.

Shytine is not generating sufficient cashflows and profits and there is no recoverability of investment foresean in fulure peariod by the
Company therefore, the management has decidad 1o impair the ull cost of investment,

6.2 The Company camied out a review of the recaverable amount of the investment in subsidiaries. The Company estimated the
racoverable amount by using value-in-uss method and market approach and based on that amount concluded that the recoverable
amount is higher than the carrying amaunt. The key assumptions in the value-in-use calculations ara tha terminal growth rate and the
risk-adjustad pre-1ax discount rate,

6.3 Az at the year and date, HUM Mart is not ganerating sufficlant cash flows and profits. The Managameant (s changing the existing businass
maodel of the Company to make it prafitable. Due to the existing losses and in accordance with the reguiremants under applicatia financial
reporting framework, the mangement has recorded the impairment loss against investment in these unconsolidated financial statements.
Management will reconsider the recoverability of investment al 2ach reporting date and provisioning for impairment will be re-assessed

accordingly. g —
mmmemememe RUPBEE —eeemeanes
T LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits
- Lease - 1,322,057
- Rent 6,761,458 5,821 458
- Trade 15,975,435 15,400,141
- Others 4,173,504 4,273,504
26,910,397 27,917,160
Prepayments
- Software develpoment fee 4,210,158 3
31,120,555 27,917,160
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10

101

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS

Linreleased / released less amortisation
In production

Less: Current portion

DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unrealised loss on short term investments - net

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unused tax cradite on subscription income

Provisions

Unrealised loss on shaort term investments - net

Long term lease liabilities - net

Accelarated lax depreciation and amortisation

TRADE DEBTS — unsecured

Considered good
Less: Allowance for ECL

Allowance for ECL

Balance al the beginning of the year
Provision recognised durlng the vear
Balance at the end of the year

Particulars of receivable from foreign jurisdictions:

United Arab Emirates
United Kingdom
United States of Amarica

2021 2020
Note smeseecess  RUPEES =s=s-ees==
430,167 561 427 380,500
22,282,250 38,743,250
452,449 811 AB6, 123,750
(100,385,799) (106,385,700}
352.064.012 360,737,851
(14,003,897)
- 89 558,636
98,532,348 46,431,207
- 1,388.007
3,512,963 830 469
33,390,632 6,677,184
135,435,943 144 BAS5 503
121,432,046 144 BAS 503
10.4 & 10.5 2,017,639,207 1,763 780,589
10.1 (60,853,832) (47,026,812)
1,956,785, 375 1,716 753 677
47,026,912 47,026,912
13,826,920 -
60,853,832 47 026,912
75,895,667 84 589,792
87.464 218 100,932 674
133,164,533 97 452 537

282 985,003

286,524 418

These receivables are on contracl basis and there are no defaulling parlies as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020

Include amount receivable from the following relaled paries;

HUM TV Inc,
HLUM Metwork UK Limited

The aging of trade debts from other than related paries is as follows:

Meither past due nor impaired
Pasl due but not impaired

- 01 to 30 days

- 31 to 60 days

- Ower 60 days

The aging of trade debts from related parties is as follows:

Meither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired

- 01 to 20 days

- 31 to 60 days

- Ower 60 days

2021 2020
Mote mrmrmes RUQBES === —
73,597,309 73,370,300
87,464,218 100,932,674
161,061,527 174,302,974

1,422,280,534 800,247 483
208,088,877 351,056 402
164,747,058 279,454 5684

61,461,151 53,718,166

1,856,577, 680 1,584 477 615

174,302 974
174 302 974

161,061,527
10.6 161,061,527

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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10.6  The maximum amount outstanding from related parlies at any time during the period calculated by reference o

maonth end balances are as follows:
Mote

HUM TV Inc.
HUM Metwork UK Limited

11 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

Bank of Punjab
2,033 TFCs having face value of Rs.99,860 each

U Microfinance Bank Limited

8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,992 each
{2020: 8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,994 each)

Mutual Funds

Askari High Yield Scheme
21,885 units having net asset value (NAV) of Rs.102.1229 per unit

AKD Opportunity Fund
2,199,809 units having NAV of Rs. 136.7162 per unil

AKD Golden Arrow Stock Furd
0,449 241 units having NAY of Rs. 16.6266 per unit

11,1 These camy interest ranging from 10.60% to 10.94% (2020: B.68% to 16 98%).
12 ADVAMNCES - unsecured, considered good

Interast fres advances to:
- Producers
- Suppliers
- Employees
- Executives

13 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits
- Rent

Prepayments
= Insurance

- Rant

- Other

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2021 2020
-—-—--— Rupees
73,507,300 243 (51,336
100,932,674 100,932,674
174,520 983 344 584 010
= 198,901,230
42,302,020 42,603,862
2,254 800 -
300,745,572 -
157,108,756 -
502,415,157 241,505,002
94,929,111 52,272,091
24,715,168 27,970,135
8,704,959 9,738,180
657,539 657,530
129,006,777 00,637,954
514,500 BE54,500
17,088,354 15,872,880
160,800 268 498
3,338,359 2,213,853
20,587,513 18,455,241
21,102,013 19,119,741
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14

4.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

15

151

2021 2020
MNaote wemmmemnes RUPEEE =emema
OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Sales tax receivable 14.1 110,954 312 101 406,385
Due from related parties 14.2 90,715,880 B5471,159
Incomea’mark-un accrued - B0 589
Other 551,439 551,439
202,221,731 187 498 572
Provision for impairment 14.5 [57,605,219) {57,605.219]
144.31&& 128, 883,353

BAs per rule 3{5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule 2014, registered persons as recipient of advertisement services shall
withheld whole of sales tax applicable on the persen providing advertizement sarvices, Accordingly, the company s unable 1o adjust its input tax
deducted an purchases of taxable goods and services as 100% of the oulput tax on the Company's taxable sendces are being withheld by the

recipient of these services, However, Company is in correspondence with the redevant autharities through its legal advisor (o resolve the matter

20 2020
s Rupegs —-——-—-
Due from related paries
HUM TV, Inc. 30,052,260 26,551 421
HUM Mart {Private) Limied 1,347,185 514 518
Sky Line Publications (Private) Limsted 50,346,535 576805219
90,715,380 B5,471,158
The aging of receivables from relaled parbes is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired 1,248,468 1,433,365
Past due but not impairad
- B0 ta 50 days 1,547,421 574,813
- ouer 90 days 87,820,001 83,452 981
a0 ?‘I%Q-BI] Bh 471 154
The maximum amaount cutstanding from related parties al any time during the period calculated by reference to month end balances are as follows,
MHaote 2021 2020
s RUPESE emmemen
HUM TV, Inc. 30,052,260 26,951,421
HUM Mart {Private) Limited 1,317,185 514,519
Skyline Publications (Private) Limited 59,346,535 57,605,219
90,715,980 B5.471,159
Prowision for innpaimment
Balanca &t tha baginning of tha year {57,605,219) -
Provision made during the year - - (57,505,219
Balance at the end of the year {57,605,219) {57,605,218)
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash In hand 364,439 ATE, T80
Cash at banks
= In CUMENt ACCOLINTS 64,944 325 19,008,153
- in deposit accounts 1514 200, 518 761 121,154 550
155 463,086 141152 703
355 az?isus 141 EE ﬁ

Thease carry profit at the rates ranging from 5.5% o 6% per anndm {2020

2 8.5% 1o 11.25%) par annum,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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16 NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

On 16 July 2020, the management of the Company disposed off land located in Karachi al consideration of Rs.
493,340,000 having fair value of Rs. 472,958,100 based on the independent valuation carried out on 30 June 2020 and
net book value of 16,507,087,

17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2021 2020 2021 2020

(Mumber of shares) e Rupees
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each

500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445,000,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 445 000,000 445,000,000
945,000,000 845,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000

17.1  As at June 30, 2027, instituions and othars held 665,950,488 and 279,049,517 shares, respectively (June 30, 2020:
604,869,034 and 340,030,966 shares). Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in
proportion to the shareholding,

2024 2020
Note ~ —  =eemeeeee- Rupees
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opening balance 133,275,010 185,475,241
Additions during the period 7874151 4,701,600
Change due to modification during the year 35,193 (31,925, 299)
Mark up on lease liabilities 30 15,301,368 22,515,209
Less: Lease rentals paid (34,869,470) (47,492 441)
Closing balance 18.1 121,616,252 133,275,010
Current portion of long-term [ease liabilities 29,564,860 28,573,737
Long-term |ease liabilities 52,051,392 103,701,273

18.1  Includes lease finance facility entered into by the Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting to Rs
91,750,000 (2020: Rs. 115,000,000) oul of which Rs. 66,358,190 (2020: Rs. 101,173,870} remains unutilized al period
end. Lease rentals are payanle in monthly installments latest by September 2022,

2021 2020
19 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured Mote === === Rupees
Islamic banks
Diminshing Musharaka - | 19.1 269,420,550 409,771 846
Diminshing Musharaka - |1 19.2 167,048,496 312185127
456,469,046 721,966 973
Less: current maturity (257,640,427) (169,835 542)
198,828,619 852,131 411
Conventional bank
Term Finance Loan - 212,183,996
Salary Refinance Loan 19.3 144,531,403 -
144,531,403 312,183 996
Less: current maturity (04,838,573) {26,476,068)
49,692,830 285707 838

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

248 521,449 B37,830 3680




i Annual Report 2021

184

19.2

183

20

201

21

21.1

21.2

Represant Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2020: § months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly Instalments commencing
afler a grace period of 12 months from the date of first disbursement i.e. from June 201€. The loan is secured by way of
reqgistered mortgage over the huilding on leasehold land.

Reprasant Diminishing Musharaka carrying profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2020: 6 months KIBOR
plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 egual monthly instalments commencing after a grace period of 18
months from the date of first disbursement i.e. December 2017, In 2020, the Company has availed the principal deferment
facility for LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circutar no. 13 of 2020 to dampen adverse effecls of the COVID-18 and
to provide relief to the businesses. Hence, the financing is repayable by December 2023, Financing is secured by way of
Equitable Morigage over registered office, first par passu constructive morlgage charge over land and first hypothecation
charge over plant, machinery & equipmenlL

Represants long term-financing from an istamic bank obtained dunng the period of Rs. 200 million under the refinance
scheme for payment of wages and salaries by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). The loan carry markup rate at the rate of
SEPF rate + 3% however, the [pan have been recognised at the present value. The loan is repayable in 8 equal quarterly
installments commencing fram January 2021 discounted at effective rate of interest. The differential markup has been
recognised as goverment grant which will be amortised to interest income over the period of loan. The facility is secured by
way of registered equitable mortgage over land and property with 30% margin,

2021 2020

Deferred Income - Government grant Note —— RUpEES

Opening balance - .
Received during the year 13,459,991 -
Released (o the statement of profil or loss 28 (8,403,726) -
Closing balance £20.1 5,056,265 -
Current portion {4.495,607) -
Mon-current partion 560,658 -

Gowernment grant has been recorded pursuant to a salary refinance scheme infroduced by the State Bank of Pakistan
{IH&SMEFD Circular Nos. 07 &14) to provide loan to businesses at concessional rates to finance salary expense during
the COVID-12 outbresk. The grant has been provided to the Company as a reimbursement of average wages and salaries’
bill for the months of April, May and June 2020 subject to Company's undertaking that no employees have been laid off,
due/owing to cash flow limitations, for a period of three months betweean April 01, 2020 to June 30, 2020.

2021 2020
Note e RUp2Es

TRADE AND OTHER PAYAELES

Creditors 21.1 217,409,409 300,271,132
Accrued liabilities 294,418,693 77,6854 739
Due to related party - HUM Network FZ LLC 36,225,396 46,791,822
Withholding tax payable 15,161,701 42 230,503
Payable to provident fund 21.2 1,563,648 1,273,701
Others 17,165,530 15,650,426

581,944 377 492 872 413
Include amount payable 1o the following related parties;

M.D Production (Private) Limited 1,669,008 95 840,684
Digital Entertamnment World (Private) Limited - 45,002,945

1,669,008 140,943 629

Investmants out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the
rules formulated for this purpose.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Note wm—semes RUPBES —semeeeen
22 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS — secured
Short-term running finance- conventicnal banks 221 - 189,067,264

224 The Company has short-term running finance facilities from various convenfional banks samounting o Rs, 425,000,000 (Junes
2020: Rs. 425,000.000) which remained unutilised at year end {June 2020: Rs. 235.932.736). These faciiities carrying markup
ranging from 1 month to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2020: 1 month to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%). These
facilites are secured by way of pari passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current assets of the Company.

222 The Company has local bill discounting facilities amounting to Rs, 175,000,000 (June 2020: Rs. 175,000,000) which remain
unutilized at the year end. These faciliies carrying mark-up reles ranging from 2 months KIBOR + 009% to 1% (June 2020: 3
months KIBOR - 0.9% to 1%). These faciites secured by way of pan passu charge and first hypolhecalion charge on all
current assets of the Company.

22.3 The Company has facility against letiers of credit aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 (June 2020; Rs. 50,000,000} which remain
unubilized at the year end, These facifliies secured by way of lien over import documents.

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
231 Contingencies

For the tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 wharain carain disallowanceas / addbacks wera mada to the taxable incoma of the Company. The Company filad
an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) agains! the aforesaid order who decided the case against Ihe. Company.
The Company challenged the aforesaid order of the CIR (A) befare the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). Pursuant to the
above appeal, the ATIR has now passed an appellate order whereby the order passed by the ACIR has been remanded back on fhe
ground that proper opportunity of being heard was not provided to the company. Mo notice has yet been issued for fresh proceedings.

The tax authorities passad an order under saction 122 (5A) of tha Incoma Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tha tax year 2014 wherehy
a lax demand of Rs 168,166,692 was crealed. The Company has filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) (CIR (A)) in respect of the aforesaid order, which is pending adjudication.

Furtharmore, the Company has obtained stay from recovery of tax in respect of the above tax demand from the Sindh High
Court {the Court), tll the decision of appeal. The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is confident that the ultimate

oulcome will ba in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these financizl
statemenls.

23141 For tax related matters, refor note 31 to these unconsolidated financial stalements.
23.2 Commitments
23.21  Purchase of lelevision programs commitments with M.D Production (Private) Limiled - a relaled party as al June 30, 2021

amounted to Rs. 175,514,000 (June 30 2020: Hs. 155,579,500). Commitment for purchase of television programs with ather
than related parties as at June 30, 2021 amounted to Rs. 71,736,000 (June 30, 2020; Rs. 84,222 500).

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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24.2

25

REVENUE — net

Advarisemeant ravenua
Production revenus
Digital revenue
Subscription incomes
Film distribution revenue

Revenue is net off the following items:

Sales tax
Discount to customerns

Represents revenue from the following geographical regions:

Asla
America

COST OF PRODUCTION

Cosl of outsourced programs
Cost of in-house programs
Cost of inventory consumed
Salaries and benefits
Depraciation

Traveling and conveyance
tilities

Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription
Commurnicalion

Sacurity charges
Amaortization

Consultancy

Printing and stationery

In production television programs — opening
In production 1elevision programs - closing

Released | unreleased programs - opening
Released | unreleased programs - closing

2021 2020
Note - RUpe#s -——

3,508,022, 187 3,086,247 608

67,299,884 51,495,210

47,036,575 42,880,157

704,967,420 483,802 T84

- 15,042,231

241242 4,327,326,066 3,670,468 088
502,997,087 440,971,672

330,388,488 248,715,703

833,385,575 H80,687 375

3,828,961,128 3402.021,047

498,364,938 277,427,041

4,327,326,066 3,679,468,088
1,449,206,697 1,480,732 577

128,361,607 238,684,117

2,721,280 343,582

251 601,660,804 E76.880,163
438453 161,731,151 189,061,407
35,312,405 39,778,606

20,732,088 16,375,383

535,389 1,830,183

25,091,917 22,813,782

39,595,665 20,734 444

103,226.704 50,054 845

15,982,786 17.554.272

382,000 612,213

51 9,598,124 10,649,802
5,466,961 4,956,301

1,064,049 1,581,224

2,600,669,627 2,781,651,881

38,743,250 54213 016
(22,282,250) (3B,743,250)

2,617,130,627 2,737,122 547

427,380,500 386,400,500
(430,167 ,561) (427,380,500)

2,614 343,566 2,756,142 547

Include Rs. 23 6356 656 (2020: Rs. 26,580,044) in respect of staff retiremant bensfits.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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26 DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Note
Advertisement and promotion
Salaries and benefits 261
Trawveling and conveyance
Rent, rates and taxes
Ltilities
Daprecialion 438453
Cammunication
Insurance
Repair and maintenance
Fees and subscription
Printing and stationery

201

2020

——--— Rupees -——-—

91,004,045
120,538,937
10,485,718
90,983
1,751,418
3,509,986
1,267,513
2,524,783
1,926,678
2,119,504
190,579

135,202,148
122174629
9,815,760
8,808
B67,803
3,261,499
1,391,337
2,716,465
2,186,613
1,884 746
231 967

— 235410544 _ J7AbAl77

261 Include Rs. 5 162 805 (2020 Rs, 4 987 023) in respect of stafl reliremeant benafils.
27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benafils 271
Technical advisory fee 27.2
Dapreciation 438453
Amortisation 51
Repair and maintenance

Cammunication

Traveling and conveyance

Fee and subscription

Utilities

Legal and professional charges
Prinfing, stationary and perodicals
Rent, rales and laxes

Insurance

Auditors” remuneration 21.3
Securty charges

Danation 274

401,738,686

41,400,000
45,096,648
2,784,221
39,774,884
5227144
18,579,225
19,281,925
25,875,191
29,295,203
5,618,270
9,492,188
5,173,203
5,518,954
8,139,457
200,000

214 452 378
41 400,000
52 408,160

3,793 862
27,738,789
4,371 087
52 926,755
7.580.334
24 561,629
10,413,032
4 564,302
0,366,763
4 628,769
4 B70,158
10,272,261
1480649

—663.205109 475120826

271 Include Rs. 4,903,800 (2020: Rs. 4,956,932) in respect of stafl relirement benefils.

7.2 Reprasents fee paid ta a Director for technical advisory services rendered in lerms of the technical advisory agresment duly

approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
27.3 Auditors' remuneration

Adsdit fee

Fee for consalidaled financial stalemenls
Fee for half yearly review

Tax and other assurance services

Cul of pocket expenses

2021 2020

——-— Rupees -——-—
1,500,000 535,000
550,000 550,000
450,000 325,000
2,518.954 2.276.560
500,000 783,588

5 518,954 4.870.158

274 Interest of the Directors or thelr spouses In the donationz made during the year is as follows:
Mames of interested directors and

Mame of donee and addrass nature of interest 2021 2020
remeaerens RUPEAS =eeesee

Momina and Durard Foundation (Plol Mo, 1011 Mr. Duraid Qureshi - Trustes

hassan ali street, off L1 Chundrigar road, Karachi.  Ms. Sultana Siddiqui - Trustee - 1,480,649

28 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on bank accounts 16,634, 989 13,005,862

Exchange (loss) / gain (B63,932) 15,243,773

Dwvidend income 177,973 160,000

Interest ! markup income 7,242 865 63,157,955

Government grant 8,403,726 -

Unrealised gain { (loss) on revaluation of investments 110,580,114 [4,188,063)

(Loss) f gain on redemption / sale of investments {12,426,115) 1,508 558

129,749,620 88,878,105

Income from non financial assets

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assels 4,756,296 5,644,752

Sale of content and festival revenue 26,086,181 79,128,300
30,822 477 84 773052

160,572,097 173.661,157

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

85




Annual Report 2021

2021 2020
MNote RUpEes -—————-
29 OTHER EXPENSES
Allowance for ECL 10.4 13,626,920 a7.,605.219
Provision for impaimment of investment in subsidiany il 140,000,000 39,999,870
1535526-!‘32{! 9?!&]5 189
an FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on long term financing 63,287 927 164,400 120
Mark-up on short term borrowings 20,906,003 53,548 307
Finance lease charges 15,301,368 22515208
Bank charges B6S, B6S 876,235
100,365,167 241,450,871
| TAXATION
Current 69,293,350 60,681,537
Deferred 23,453 457 (B8 873 4590)
Prior - 6,410,365

311 92,746,807 (22 B&1.574)

311 The Company has filed its return of income up to tax year 2020, The return so filed is deemed to be an assessment arder
issued by the Taxation Authorties on the date the complete return is filed. The Company s mainly subject to Minimum Tax
Regime under Section 153((1) (b)) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, thersfore, relationship between income tax expense
and accounting profit has not been presented.

3.2 The Company filed a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Court on September 27, 2018 challenging the tax under section
24 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Courl accepted the CP and granted a stay against the above section. In case
the: Court's decision is nol in favor of the Company, the Company will either be required 1o declare the dividend o the extent
of 40% of after tax profits or it will be liable to pay additional 1ax 8t the rate of 7.5% of the accounting profil before tax of the
Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018,

Tha Sindh High Courl (the Court), through its order datad 30 April 2021, daclarad tha insartion of saction 54 of the
Ordinance as ultra vires to the Constitution of [slamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 and therefore struck down the provisions
of the aforesaid seclion. Accardingly, in light of the above judgement of the Court, the provisions of section 5A of the
Ordinance are no longer applicable on the Company, until such matter is decided othenvise by the Honorable Supreme
Couirt.

"3 During the year 2017, Deputy Commissicner Inland Revenue issued a show cause nolice to the Company, for the tax year
2014, showing his intention to disallow the deduction claimed on account of agency commission an alleged non-deduction of
tax on such agency commission. The Company filed & sult before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh challenging the above
showeoause nolice,

Based on a recent judgemeant of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan, suits filed by taxpavers are not to be maintained
unless 50% of the tax dua is depaosited by the petitionars. In compliance to the above order, the Company has depasitad an
amount of 24 385 012 into the Govermment treasury. The decision in respact of the Suit filad by the Company is still pending,

2021 2020
smmmmaces RUPBESE =seemce—-
32 EARNINGS | [LOSS) PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Profit / (loss) fior the year 1iﬂ14 3955505 51 13.23&491!
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
autstanding during the period 945,000,000 045,000,000
Earnings / {loss) per share (Rupee) 1.07 (0.12)

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
mememennes RUPBEE —eameaee
33 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit / (loss) betore laxation 1,107,143,492 {136,120,065)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 210,337,785 244,721 156
Amortisation 12,392,345 14,443, 664
Finance costs 100,365,167 241,450,871
Provision for employee retirement benefit - 5,832,751
Unrealized exchange loss / (gain) 863,932 {15,243, 773)
Profit on deposit accounis (16,634,989) {13,005,882)
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assels (4,756,298) (5,644 752}
Gain on disposal of non-currant asset held for sale (476,832,913) -
Lass | (prafit) on redemption [ sale of invesiments 12 426,115 (1,508 558)
Dividend income (177.973) (150, 000)
Provision for impairment 153,826,920 497,805,189
Unrealised (gain) / loss on revaluation of investments (110,580,114) 4,188,063
(118,770,021} 872,705,729
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Inventories 323,244 2548010
Current portion of television program cozsts 5,000,000 108,000,000
Trade dabis [254,722,550) 753,193,063
Advances (38,368,823) 25,780,652
Trade depasils and short term prepayments (1,882,272) (5,621,847)
Cither recaivables (14,723,159) {21,651 798)
(304,473,560) 184,347 980
(Increase) ( decrease in current liabilities
Trade and olher payables BO,071,964 {347,000, 730)
Advance from customers 14,964,078 6,495,616
787 5350853 280,428 530
34 REMUMERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2021 2020
Chief Exocutive Chiel Excowtive
Executive Directar Directars Euscutives Executive Directar Directars Exscutives
Wanageral remuneration 31,181,280 . . 167,728 678 31,181,200 174,04 7403
Fae 2,300,000 2675000
Bonus 87,753,993 87,753,993 - - - - -
Retirermant banefils - - . 12,051,188 12842819
Houss rent 14,022 589 . . 2,308,947 14,022 554 - 6B.533,947
itles 3116120 - - 13,846,433 3,116,128 - 16,220,756
Car pllowanos 20,128,072 23,500,000
Techrical advisory fae - 44,400,000 - . 41,400,000 - .
Fuel ared comveyance 1,348,577 815,040 549,085 8,785,309 1,383,515 Had, 38 489 B3 821 361
157 531 642 153,469 2,849 085 ] 553 A6 E61 515 42 234 g 3 174 B32 L
Humber '?“_'ﬂm g 7S &E‘— i i '::3 - S, E

34.1

and reimbursement of expenses retated to business travel.
34.2
HUM NETWORK LIMITED

The Chisl Exacidive and cerlain Execulives ara also provided wilth freée use of Company maintained cars in accordancs wilh Lhe Compary's palicy

The aggregate amount charged in the financial stalemeanls for meeting fee 1o non-execufive directors amounted bo Rs. 300,000 (2020: Rs. 875,000}
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Retated partess of the Company comgprise subsdianes, associaled companes, reliement funds, direclors and key managemen] personnel. Details ol ansacbors wilh relaled
partes during the panod, other ihan those which have baen disciosec eisewhars in these financial stalements are & follows

2 2020
Relationship Mature of transactions Rupens
Subsidiaries Exparses pad on behall of the Compirmy 23,426,727 26,402,224
Experses paid on behalf of the subsidary 5,478,382 TAZT 514
Pagrmupit recaivind on bhiall of subsidiary 45,212 365 27,823,260
Payrnent recaived on benall of he Company 15.045.173 2,245,812
Maragameant fes 4, 782 D00 4 814,500
Payrent rade during tne year 3,618,408 146, 709, 46
Profesdional or promotional services acquired 3,335,000 54 527 94T
Subiscription income 47 474 EB20 4 95 174
Purchases of goods 3,616,408 B, 708,345
Assoclatsd Companies Purchases of Isl=vision programs rights 1,262,466 297 1,142 964,102
Expenses pasd an hehalf of the: assackie 2,447 DBO 18,238 05
Payrmant mrade during frhe pecod 1,324,362 543 1. XA7, 379, 266
Others Contrizution bo the arovidar fund 33,702.061 M6 52,599

Al irgnsactions with relaled parties are entered inlo al agreed fems duly approved by Ihe Boarg of Directors of the Compary. The outstarding recedvable and payable balances of
the refatec parties ara discloses n tha eepactive nolas (o these uncorsidated fmancial statemants

151 Fallosang are the related narties with whom the Company had entered into transaclions or have amangemsant [ agreemernt in placa:

Aggregate Y
S.No. Company Name Basis of association af
sharehalding
1 Skviing Publlcatians (Privaie) Limétad Bubsidiary 100%
2 HLIM TV Inc. Eubsidiary 100%
3 HUM Metwark FE LLC Eubsidiary 100%
4 HIUI Metwork UK Limited Hubsidiary 100%
5 HUIM Tdaet (Privale) Limited Subsidiary T
B h.D Productions (Prvate) Limied Associated company (36.1,1) -
T Momina & Duraid Films (Private) Limited Agsocialed company (36.1.1) .
B Momina and Durgid Foundation Aazocisted company (36.1,1) -
a HUM Metwaork Limited- Employess” Provident Furd HRetiremen: Fund E
i} Mz Sultana Siddiqui Director 0.02%
1 Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Saddigui Director -
12 Mr. Duraid Qureshi Director 24.30%
13 v, Shunasid Cureshi Chirecior 5.30%
4 Mre. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi Cirector =
15 L1 Gen (R} Asif Yasin Mallk Director -
il Mr. Mbaharmmad Al Yaunus Adhl Director -
17 Mr. Schad Ansar Director -
18 Ma. Nabigna Massser Masoos Drirector -
19 Mr, Musharamesd Abbas Hussam Ky managamant Parsonnal -
0 Br. hohsin Meeam Key management Persannel -
A541  These enlites are associaind companins ¢ pnderakings of they Company ander Comparies A, 2017
5.2 Subsidiaries incorporated outside Pakistan:
MName Country of Incorporation
HUM TV, Inc, United Stales of America
HLIM Metwork FZ LLC Urited Arak Emirales
HUKM Netwaork LIK Linsitad United Kingdom

353 None of the key management parsaonnel had any arangements with the Company other than the employment contract.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Note RUPBES s=semeee

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

36.1 Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Financial assets at amortised cost
- Long term deposits T 31,120,555 27,917,160
" Trade debts 10 1,956,785,375 1,716, 753,677
- Trade depaosits 12 514,500 664,500
- Other receivables 14 33,662,200 28,486 988
- Cash and bank balances 15 355,827,585 141,620,483

2377.910,215 1,915.451.788

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Short term investments 11 502.415.157 241 505 052

—_—rbrhr —rr e
36.2 Financial labilities as per statement of financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

- Long temn financing 18 248,521 448 837,838,360
- Dafarred Incomea - Govemnmmeant grant 20 560,658 -
- Trade and other payables 21 566,762,676 450,641,820
- Accrued mark-up 8,092,693 2,860,434
- Shaort term borrowings 22 - 188,067 264
- Current podion of defemred income - Government grant 20 4,495,607 -
= Currant porion of lang term financing 14 352,479,000 196,311,600
B Uneclaimed dividend 5,048,490 5.948 490
- Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,158

1E1 HT!I]-ESITBE 1,532-]8?4,135

T FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Tha Company’s activities exposea it to a vanaly of financial risks i e. market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit sk and liquidity rsk. The Company's overall risk managemeant pragramme focuses on the unpradictability
of financial markets and seeks o minimise potential adverse effects on the Compamy's financial performance.

The Company's senior management overseeas the management of these risks. The Company's senior management provides
paolicies for overall risk management, a5 well as policies covering specific areas such as loreign exchanga risk, interest rate
risk and credit risk, use of financial denvatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Company's
paolicy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken,

Tha Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these rizks which are summarized below:

371 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash fiows will fluciuale because of changes in markel prices. Markel prices
comprise three lypes of risk: interest rate rnisk, currency nsk and equity price risk, such as equily risk.

37.2  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
the market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term financing and finance lease obligations,
shart term borrowings and bank balances. The Company manages these risks through risk management strategies.

Sensitivity analvsis:
The following figures demonstrate the sansitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company’s profit bafore taxation:

Inr.rean_." Effect on profit
decrease in i
before taxation
basis points
Rupees
June 30, 2021 +100 (2,202,015]
-100 2,202,015
June 30, 2020 +100 [ .1=§,EEEE
400 11,140 BAZ
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373  Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial Habilities will flustuate dus o a changa in foreign
exchange rates. It anses mainly where receivables and payables axist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Company's
exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

wmeeee June 30, 2021 —-—-— sssmeee Jung 30, 2020 -e=---
AED US Dollar GEBP AED US Dallar GBP
Trade debts 1,403,932 399,380 - 1,139,901 492,354
Other receivables 190,808 - - 160,808 -
Trade and other payables {852,364) (355,706) - (1,028,292) (406,532) -
-———=— Rupees - ——— Rupees —-—-—-
Closing exchange rates 43.0 157.5 216 45.5 167.6 205

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity (o a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and GBP exchange rate, with all
ather variables held constant, of the Company's. profit befiore taxation:

Effect on Change in Effect on
Change in Change in GBP Effect on
profit before US dollar profit before

AED rate (%) P rate (%) SEils rate (%) profit befare tax

«== Rupees -- = Rupees --- === Rupees =
June 30, 2021 +10 {3,665 165) +10 __19.514.786 +10 8,626.608
-0 3,665,165 -10 (19.514.786) -10 (8,626.608)
June 30, 2020 410 __(4579182)  +10  __ 14986407 +10 __ 10.093.257
-10 4 678182 =10 (144 986 407) -10 {10,003 257)

37.4 Equity price risk

The Company's investments are susceptible to market price rsk arising from uncerainties about future values of investment
securitiss. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing fimits on individual and total investments,
Fepords on the invesiments portfolio are submitted to the Company's senior manesgemeant on a8 reqular basis.

As of the statement of financial posibon date, the exposure to investments at fair value through profit or loss was Rs. 502,415,156
{30 June 2020; Rz, 241,505,092).

37.5  Credit risk

Cradit nsk is the risk which anses with the possibility that one party 1o a financial instrument will fail to discharga its obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Concentration of cradit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability bo mest contractual obligations to be
similary affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concantrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of
the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular indusiry.

The nsk management function is regularly conducting detailed analysis on seclors ( industries 1o identify the degree by which tha
Company's customers and their businesses have been impacted amid COVID-19. Keeping in view short-term and long-term outlook
of each sector, management has taken into consideration the factors while calkculating expected credit losses aganst trade debis
and other receivables

Management of credit risk

The Company's pelicy is o enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and other
internal guidelines.

Credit risk is managed and contralled by the management of the Campany in the fallowing manner:

- Credit rating end / or credit worthiness of the counterparty is laken into account along with the financial background so as o
minimizz the risk of default,

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Company is mitigated by a periodic review of their
cradit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness and market information on & regular basis.

- Cash is held with reputable banks only.
As of the unconsolidated statement of financial positien cale, the Company is exposed to credit sk on the following assets:

2021 2020

R | RIJPHE‘E S LT
- Long term deposits 31,120,555 27,817,180
- Trade debts 1,856,785,375 1,716, 753,677
- Short term investments 502, 415157 241 505,082
- Trade deposits 514,500 BE4, 500
- Other receivables 33,662,200 28,456,260
- Benk balances 355,463,086 141,152,703
873,960, 2,156, 480,100

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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The credit guality of financial assets can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or 1o historical information abaut

counterparly default rates:

Trade debts
Customers with no defaulls in the past one year
Customers with some defaulis in past one year

Bank balances
A+
A-1
Al
Short term investments
Mutual funds AM3=+
MFR 5-Star
Al
Term linance certificate A
AA+
.q..
37.6  Liguidity risk

Mote

10

15

"

2021

2020

seemmescss RUREES =-—eeem

1,956,785,375 1,716,753 677
60,853,832 47 026.912
2.017,639,207 1,763, /B0 580
354,605,098  141.146.955
767,992 2
- 5. 748
355,463,086 141,152,703
157,108,756 5
300,749,572 -
2,254,809 g
460,113,137 D
42,302,020 2
- 198,001,230
- 42,603,862
502,415,157 241 505,002

Liguidity risk i= the risk that the Company will not be ahle to meeat its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company applies
prudent rizk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping commitied cradit lines.

Due to COVID-19 outbraak the Company's customers and their businesses have been adversely impacted. The management is
continuously monitoring the liquidily position and 5 laking necessary pracautionary measures where needed.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the following reporting dates:

Less than 3
2021
On demand i 3 1o 12 months 1 to 5 years Tatal
Rupecs

Long lerm lease liabililes - 5,979,119 23,585,741 92,051,392 121,616,252
Long term financing - B7,703,546 264,775,454 248,521,449 601,000,449
Trade and other payables 288,864,088 227,187,545 48,156,935 - 565,219,028
Deferrad Income - Governmant grant - 1,570,255 2,925 352 560,658 5,056,265

Short termn bomawing - - - - =
Aecrued mark-up 8,002,693 - - - 8,092,693
296,956,781 322,450 865 340,443,542 341,133.499 1,300,984 687

Less than 3
2020 On demand pulgltringi 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Total
Rupees

Long lerm lease liabiliies - 4,879,289 25,841,107 170,774,112 201 454,508
Long term financing 80,558,183 237 647 543 049 485 375 1,247 691,101
Trade and other payables 56,515,726 J30 410,145 62 442 248 448,368,118
Ehorl term bomowing - 189,087 264 - - 189,067,264
Accrued mark-up 2,060 434 - - - 2060434
59,376 160 544,514 381 325,830,858 1,120,258 487 2090431 g?ﬁ

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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37.6.1 Changes in liabilities from financing activities

1-Jul-20 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-21
{Rupeas in '000) s
Lang term financing 1,034,150,960 (433,150,520) - - 601,000,449
Long term lease liabilities 1332 ?E,Dtl_} {34.&69.4}'_'13' 7874151 15,336,561 121,616,252
1-Jul-18 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-20
wmmmmsmees (RUPEES iN "000) =
Leng term financing 1,350,555,062 {31E.404.093} - - 1,034,150,969
Long term lease liabilites 185,475,941 (47,492, 441) 4,701,600 (9,410,050) 133,275,010

37.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of all financial assets and habilities refiected in the unconsolidated financial statements appropriate their fair
values.

37.7  Capital risk

The Company finances s operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with 2 view of maintaining
an appropriate mix betwean varous sources of finance to minimize risk. The primary objective of the Company's capital
management is fo ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business sustain future development of the
business and maximize shareholders value. The Company manitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:

37.8

2021 2020

Note Rupegs -—-—-e-
Long term lease liabilities 18 92,051,392 103,701,273
Long term financing 19 248,521 449 837,539,369
Deferrad Income - Government grant 20 580,658 -
Trade and other payable 21 581,944 377 402 R7Z 413
Accruad markup 8,092,693 2,860,434
Shor term bomowing 22 - 189,067,264
Current partion of deferred income - Govemment grant 20 4,495 607 -
Current portion of long term leaga liabilities 18 29,564,860 28573 737
Currant portion of long term financing 18 352 479 D00 186,311,600
Total debt 1,317,710,036 1,852.226,090
Cash and bank balances 15 {355,827 585) {141 629 483)
Met debt 961,882,451 1.710,596,607
Share capital 17 945,000,000 945 000,000
Unappropriated profit 3,118,470,793 2,104,074, 108
Total equity 4,063,470,793  3,049,074,108
Capital —5.025353.244 4753967071
Gearing ratio 19.14% 35.94%

Fair value measurement

Fair valug is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betweean market

participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assels and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approxmals fair values,

The following table shows assels recognised al fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

Lewval 1: Quoted pricas In active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2; Those invelving inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), and

Level 3; Those whose inpuls for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inpuls),

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Assets measured at fair value

2021 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
{Rupees)
Short term investments ﬁ é!i !E'-’ - - M 241 ggglgg

During the period, there were no transfers between lavel 1 and leved 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of level
3 fair value measuremeant.

A7.8  Financial instruments which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statament of financial
pasition date.

38 OPERATING SEGMENTS

For managemant purposes, the Company has determined following reportable operating segments on the basis of areas of cperations
I.e. entertainment and news.

Enledainment sagment is engaged in adverisemen!, enlerlainmenl and media markeling.

Mews segments is engaged in hroadeasting of news programs,

Entertainment News Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenue
Mel revenue from exismal

custnmer IEEI'EEEE?EE an 3,480,085,360 25%&50 695 199,382,728 i 3HEEEE£N 3,679 458 DER
Reault
Sagement profil / (loss) 1.831,210,238 1,074,284 452 {444,074 470) {HG9, 869, 748) 1,387, 135,768 04,414 B84
Taxation (02,746 80T) 22 881,574
Unallocated incoma /

(expanses) -
Administralive expenses {G63,205,199) 476,128,828
Othar Expenses {153,826,920) (97,605,189
Oribhar ircome 160,572,087 173.651.157
3aln an sale of non-curnent asset held for sale 476,832,913 .
Financs cost {100,365,167) (241,450,871}
Praofit | (loss) for the pariod 4,014,396,685 (113.236.491)
Other Information
Amortization (7,157,856) {0,281, 408) (5,234,389) (5,162,258) (12,392,345) (14,443 654
Depreciation (41.079.871}) (59,343 078} (169,257 914} {185,388.078) {210,337,785) (244,731 156}
Sagment assels 372,202,939 360 548, 848 011,621,224 1.053,331,185 1,283,824 163 1,413,578,003
Unallocated Assots - - - - 4.132,103.521 3,507 104,972

372,202 939 360,646,848 911,621,224 1,053,331, 155 5.415.027 684 4 921,082,975

Capital enperdilune 'Iﬁ-l'l# 252 T2.7 351425 24 628,727 10,297 652 miuulim 83.033078
Sagrmont habilities 587,969,267 B68.553 359 ?54.457.52_4 1,202 456 608 1,352,456 891 1,872 008 867

381 Revenue from three major customers of the Company during the period constituted 64% (20200 69% - two Customers) of the total
ravanue

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees and average numbar of employees at period end and durng the period respectively are as follows:

201 2020

wmmmmmemee RUPEES ——m——
Tatal number of empioyees 711 T
Averane number of emplovees during the period 677 789

40 GENERAL
For batter presentation, cerfain prior year figures have been raclassifiad conssquent to cerain changes in cument penod presentation,

40.2  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee

4 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements have been authonsed for issue on Oclober 22, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Ii. H

: o
ilr:a:-ﬂ ! s ':_ —1". -\-EF—
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Hum Network Limited ({the Hoiding Company) and its subsidiary
ithe Group), which comprisa the consolidated statemant of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statemeant of
profit or loss, censolidated staterment of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consclidated
statament of cash fows for the yaar then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statemants, including a summary of significam
accounting policias and other explanatory information,

In our opimion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated inancial position of the Group as at 30
June 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidaled cash Mlows for the year then ended in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
section of our repart, We are independent of the Graup In accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Beard for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code). and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibllities In accordance with the Code, Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obtainad is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are thosa mattars that, in our professional judgment, waere ot most signilicance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the curent year. These matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Met realizable value of television program costs

Az of the year end, the balance of lelevision program cosls
amounted to Rs. 452 443,811 (30 June 2020: 466,123,750)
which represents unamortized cost of completed television
programs and television programs in production.
As per the accounting policy of the Company, television program
costs and acguired television program licenses and rights are
charged to expensa based on tha ratio of the revenues samed
till data to total revenues to be earned from the program
including future estimated revenuas, less cost sxpensed in
prior years on an individual program basis.

Allocation of television program costs over several accounling
periods based on estimates of revenue Invalve significant
judgement of the managemeant which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements, For this
reasan, we have identified this area as key audit mattar.
Refer notes 3.6, 8 and 26 to tha consolidated financial
statements,

Cur aod! pracedures amongst olhers, comprised reviewing the

appropriateness of the accounting poliey of the Company in

accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards.

Further, we obtained understanding of the revenue estimation

and amortization process of the Company.

In this regard, we selected a sample of television programs and

considarad the factors used by the management for ravenue

astimanon and amortization of television program cost including:

. historic exparience of revenus earnad by similar
programs;

. ratings of tha program from available evidences;

. rates used by the Company and its flustualion
based on the trend analysis; and

«  we also considered subsequent events which may have
an impact on unamortized cost.

We also evaluated whether adequate disclosures have been

made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements in

accordance with the applicable financial reparting standards.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Infermation Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Managament is responsible for the ather information. The other information comprises the informatien included in the Annual Reporn,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' reporl therson

Qwr opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thareon.

In connaction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, In daing
&0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our Knowledge
ootained in the audit or otherwise appears lo be malerially misstated. I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
thera is a material misstatemeant of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible tor the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated linancial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporing standards as applicable in Pakisian and Companies Act, 2007 and lor such intarnal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are frae from material misstatemant,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated linancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a gaing
concerm, disclosing, s applicabie, matters relaled to going concern and using lhe going concern basis of accounting unless managemeant
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operalions, or has no realistic allernative but to do so.

The Board of Diractors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is & high level of assurance, but Is not & guaraniee that an audil conducted in accordance with (SAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggragate, they could reasonably be expacted to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolldated financlal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance wilth 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we axercise professional judgment and mainiain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

§ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis lor our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
arraf. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, misrepresantations, or the
override of internal contral.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstancas, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion on tha
affectivenass of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
esfimates and related disclosures made by management.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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. Conclude on the approprigteness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related o events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Il we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atlention in our auditor's
rapart to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements ar, if such disclosuras
are inadecuate, to modify our apinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained
up fo the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure evenis or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the ocvarall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated linancial statements,
including the disclosuras, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
tranzactinng and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the tinancial information of the entities or
businaess aclivities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible lor the direction, supervision and perlormance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible far our audit apinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among. cther matiers, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identity during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statemeant thal we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related sateguards.

From tha matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we datarmine those matters that were of most significance in tha audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unlass law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determina that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected o oulweigh the public interest banafits of such communication.

The engagement partner an the audit resulling in this independant auditors’ repart Is Omer Chughtal.

Sdr-
Ey Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: October 22, 2021

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Annual Report 2021 '

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS
NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and eguipment
Intangible assets

Long lerm investments

Long term deposils

Tedevigion program costs
Deferred tax assel

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Currant portion of telavigion program costs
Trade debls

Short term investmanis

Advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayrments
Crher receivables

Taxation — net

Cash and bank balances

Mon-current assel held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AMD RESERVES

Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2020: 1,500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Re . 1/- each

lzzued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Fevenue Reserves

Attributable to owners of the Halding Company
Mon-controlling interest

NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long tarm |ease liabilities

Long term financing

Defarrad Income - Governmeant grant
Staff retirement benefils

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and ather payables

Advance from customers

Accrued mark-up

Short term bormowings

Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Current portion of deferred income - Government grant
Currznt portion of long term lsase liabilities

Currant portlon of long term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes fram 1 to 41 form an integral part of thase consolidated financial stalemants,

|_\.I
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAGQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Execintive Chairman

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MNote

W=

10
11
12
13
14

15

16

17

18
19

21

22

20
18
19

23

2021 2020

-—-— Rupges ---—- —_
1,272,025,049 1.3499,715,699
74,994,373 110,838,386
- 73,387,086
31,443,434 45 BES 076
352,064,012 360,737,951
134,673,585 161,689,721
1,.865,200.453 2,152,233,919
16,660,201 44 130,860
100,385,799 105,385,799
2,231,476,846 2,089,810,853
502 415,157 241 505,092
129,283,397 166,122,200
23,582,975 23,663,213
111,845,411 110,529,571
210,879,875 180,574,832
437,693,527 2ER BOT B23
3,764,223 BBB 3,170,420,243
- 16,507,087
5,629,424 341 5,338, 167,249

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
945,000,000 945,000,000
1,008 190,358 2,096,403, 506
4,043,190,358 3,041.403,506
{32,505,864) 1,064,284
4,010,684,494 3,042,467,790
92,051,392 104,833,723
269,229,311 B37 839,369
560,658 "
33,255,893 28 453,198
305,097,254 971,126,290
683,186,088 B57 637 341
136,766,203 238,044,221
9,907,299 3,210,149
. 189,067 264
5,048,490 5,048,490
205,159 205,159
4,495,607 L
29,564,860 35,142,045
353,568,887 196,311,600
1,223,642,593 1325.567,169
5.629,424,341 5,339.161,249
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note sesmcssies RUPEES ssescceeen
Revenue 24 4,993,729,036 4,645 325787
Cost of production 25 (2,838,603, B78) (3,188 456,727)
Transmission cost (346,613,518) {440,082,741)
{3,185,217,396) (3,628,530,468)
Gross profit 1,608,511,640 1.016,786,319
Distribution costs 26 (288,605,843} (356,436,868)
Administrative expenses 27 (928,539,710) (698,912 624)
Other expenses 28 (70,301,849) (263,202,006)
Other income b 162,914,752 276,510,077
Gain on sale of non-current asset held for sale 476,832,913
Operating profit/ (loss) 1,160,811,903 (25,255,102)
Finance costs 30 {(101,587,351) {244,973 245)
1,059,224, 552 (270,228,347)
Share of net profit of associate 6 7228162

Profit / {loss) bafore taxation

Taxation

3

1,059,224 552

(98,031,756)

(283,000,185)

15,831,667

Profit / (loss) after taxation 961,192,796 (247,168,518)
Attributable to:

Cwners of the Holding Company 994,762,944 (153,088,481)
MNon-controfling inlerests (33,570,148) (54, 080,037)

961,192,796 (247 168,518)

Earnings / (loss) per share — basic and diluted (Rupee) 32 1.05 {0.20)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

A ply X--:
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.7l o i

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMED ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
—————————— Rupees =-—ss==eee-
Profit / (loss) after taxation 961,192,796 (247,168.518)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of
profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined benafits plan - net of tax - 5191 764
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign subsidiary companies 7.023,808 7,841,238
Total comprehensive income | (loss) for the year 968,216,704 (£34.1335.518)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company 1,001,786,852 (180,055 481)
MNon-controlling interests {33,570,148) i54,080,037)
968,216,704 {234,135,518)

The annexed nates from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

DUHAID.{]UHESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI MUHAMMA/D ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenue Reserves

Issued, Foreign
subscribed exchange MNaon-
and paid-up translation Unappropriat controlling
capital reserve ed profit Sub-total interest Total

Balance as at June 30, 2019 645 000,004 151,839,386 2.124.619.601 2 276 458 087 55 144 324 3,276 603 308
Loss attrioutable to non-cantrolting interasts for
the year - - - - (54,080,037) (54,080,037}

5 = = - [54,080,03T) (54,080,037}
Loss for the year - (183,088,481} {193,088481) - {193,086.4581}
Other comprehensive incomsa - 7,841 235 5,191,764 13,033,000 - 13,023,000
Taotal comprenansive ncomsa / (loss) for the year - THB41,236 (187,896,717} (180,055,481} - (180,055,481}
Balance as at Juna 30, 2020 845,000,000 159,680,622 1,036,722,884 2,09€,403,506 1,064,284 3,042 467,790
Loss attnibutable lo non-controlling interests for
the year - - - - {33,570,148) (33,570,148

- - - - [33,570,148) (33,570,148)
Profit far the year = = 994,762,944 994,762,944 4 994,762,844
Other comprehensive income - 7,023,508 - 7.023,508 - 7,023,908
Tatal comprenaensive income | {loss) for tha year - 7,023,908 994,762,944  1,001,786,852 - 1,001,786,852
Balance as at June 30, 2021 945 000,000 166,704,530 2,031 485828 3,008,190, 358 (32,505 864) 4 010,684 454
The annexed notes from 1 w41 form an integral pad of these consolidated financizl statemenis.

- I’_Eh - .}lll;--
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations a3 634,717,149 205,153,018

Taxes paid (40,079,083) (74.833,979)

Finance costs paid (94,890,201) (247 335 272)

Profit received on deposit accounts 16,956,588 12,443,154

Long term deposits 12,421,642 14 417 284

Telavisicn program costs 8,673,939 {133.509 334)

Met cash flow / used in operating activities 537,800,034 {223.665,129)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (111,239,971) (44,455 G93)

Additions to intangille assets (2,604,635) (1.008,000)

Short term investments - net (162,756,066) BO3.856 977

Proceeds from disposal of investment in an associate 13,682,805 -

Dividend receved 177,973 -

Procaeds from sale of non-current asset held for sale 493,340,000 -

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 6,390,192 -

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 20,835,167 45 841 444

MNet cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 257,885,465 584,234 778
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing - net (411,352,771) {316,404 093)

Lease rentals paid (26,269,T60) (36.,291,798)

Met cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (437,622,531) (352,695 851)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 358,062 968 17,873,758
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 789,630,559 61,756,801
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 437,693,527 79,630,559
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank halances 437,693,527 268,697 823

Short-term running finance - {189,067 264)

437,693,527 79,630,559
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Tt e
P o i
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQWI MUHAMMAD ABEAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1.1

1.2

1.3

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

HUM Metwork Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 15984 (the Ordinance). The shares of the Holding Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Holding Company's principal business is to launch tfransnational satellite channels and aims at presenting a wide variety
of cultural heritage. Its core areas of operation are production, advertisement, entertainment and media marketing. it covers
a wide variety of programmes with respect lo information, entertainment, news, education, health, focd, music and society.

The 'Group’ consists of
Holding Company

HUM Metwork Limited

Subsidiary Companies
2021 2020
Percentage of holding

HUM TV, Inc. 100% 100%
HUM Network LK Limited 100% 100%
Sky Line Publications (Private) Limited 100% 100%
HUM Meatwark FZ LLC 100% 100%
HUMM Ca. {Private) Limitad 100% 100%:
HUM Mart (Private) Limited T0% T0%

MNature of operations of subsidiaries

HUM TV, Inc., HUM Network UK LTD and HUM MNetwork FZ LLC have been eslablished with the purpose of providing
entertainment programmes to the South Asian community by increasing presence in the United States of America (USA),
Canada, UK and UAE respectively. HUM Melwork UK LTD has 100% equity in HUM News Limited, which is engaged in
business of transmission of news for UK audience, The subsidiary companies will also serve as a platform for the Holding
Company to explore avenues for greater distribution of the Holding Company brands in USA, Canada, UK and UAE and will
establish relations with adverisers, as well as develop US-based media materals, such as dramas, documentarias and
other entertainment shows and events.

Skyline Publication (Private) Limited {SPL} is engaged in the publications of books and magzinas.

HUMM Co. {Private) Limited has been established with the purpose of developing and producing contents, shows and
programs. Currently, it is non-cperational.

HUM Mart (Private) Limited engaged in the business of online shopping far grocery, houselod iterms and consumear goods.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Geographical location and address of business units

Registered office

Head office — Karachi

City offices — Karachi
City office — |slamabad
City office — Lahore
City offica — Peshawar

City office — Quetta

HUM Metwork UK Limited

HUM News Limited

HUM Metwork FZ LLC

Skyline Publicaticn (Private) Limited

Hum Mart {Private) Limited

HUM TV, Ing,
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

Plot Mo. 10111, Hassan Ali Street, Off. |l. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
Pakistan,

B.R.R Tower, Hassan Al Street, Off. 1.I. Chundrigar Road

Alfalah Court, || Chundrigar Road

2A, 1&T center, sector G-6/1

House # 58, R-24, Masson Road

Plat Mo, 7-A, 28 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

House # 3, Phase I, Shahbaz town

38-FP Alum rock road, Birmingham, England.

2 Hemlet Mews, London

Evergreen Houes Narth Third Floor, Office Suite 311, Grafton Place,
Euston London, United Kingdom.

Office G-01 Boutigue Studio City, Dubai, UAE.

Plot No. 10/11, Hassan Ali Street, Off. |.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,

Plot # SR-7, Shed # A-2, Survey 413, Sector 7 A, Korangi Industrial Area,
Karachi.

6201 Bonhomme Road, 180N, Houstan Texas.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intermnational Accounting Standard Board (IASE) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Instiute of Chatered Accountants of Pakistan {ICAP) as

are notified under the Act; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the

Act have been followead.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, except otharwise

specifically stated.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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MHew and amended standards

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of
the previous financial year except that the Group has adopled the following amendments of IFRS which became effective
for the currant year

IFRS & - Prepaymeant Features with Negative Compansation (Amendments)
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Defarral Accounts

IFRS 16 -  Leases

IFRS 18 - COVID 189 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Satilement (Amendments)

IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associales and Joinl Ventures (Amendments)
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Improvements te Accounting Standards Issued by the |IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

IFRS 2 - Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a |oint operation

IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as squity
IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did nat have any material
effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 are
descrbed below:

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The accounting policies adopled in (he preparation of these unconsolidated financial sialements are consistent with these
of the previous financial year except that the Company has adopled the following standards, amendments, interpratation
and improvemeants to IFRS which became effective for the current year:

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendmeanis}
IFRS 9/IAS 38/ IFRS T Interest Rate Benchmark Reform {Amendments)
IAS 1/IASE Definition of Material (Amendments)

Improvement to accounting standards issued by the |IASE (2018 - 2020 cycle)

Efiective date
{annual periods
beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)
IFRS 3 Relerence lo the Conceplual Framework (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 37 Onerous Conlracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments) January 01, 2022

1AS 1 Classification of Liabilitias as Currant or Non-Current (Amendments ) January 01, 2023

IFRS 10/ IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

{Amendmenis) Not yet finalised
IFRS 9, |AS 39,
IFRS 7. IFRS 4 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 {Amendment) January 01, 2021
IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Renl Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments) April 01, 2021
IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounling Policies (Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) Uiy O, i
1AS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

{Amendments)
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IASE effective date {annual
Improvement to accounting standards issued by the IASB (2018 - 2020 cycle) periods beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 Fees in the 10 percent’ test for the derecoarition of financial

liakilities January 01, 2022
A5 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurement January 01, 2022
IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives January 01, 2022

The above standards, amendmeants of IFRSs and improvements to accounting standards are not axpectad to have any
matarial impact on tha Company's uncaneolidated financial statemants in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASE which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicahility in Pakistan:

Standard 1ASE effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Conltracts January 01, 2023

2.5 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial staterments in conformity with approved accounting slandards, as applicable in
Pakistan, reguires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions thal affect the application of policies
and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and labilties and accompanying disclosures, Uncertainly about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabiliies that are nol readily apparent from other sources,

Estimates, assumplions and judgments are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rewvisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pericd, or in the period of the
revision and future pencds if the revision affects both cument and future pericds.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which
are significant to the consolidaled financial stalements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation [ amortisation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation | amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assels is
made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Group usas the technical resources
available with the Group. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of
property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets, with cormesponding effects on the depreciation / amortisation charge
and impairmeant.

Television program costs (note 8)

Television program costs represent unamortised cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. In order to determine the amount to beé charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss, the management
estimates future revenues from each program. Estimates of future revenues can change significantly due to a varisty of
factors, including adverising rates and the level of market acceplance of the production in different geographical locations.
Accordingly, revenue eslimales are reviewed pededically and amortisation Is adjusted, if necessary. Such adjustments
could have a material effect on results of operations in fulure periads.
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Incoma taxes (note 9)
In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Group, the Group whes inlo sccount the applicable ax laws and the
decision by appellate authorities on certain Issues in the past.

Deferred lax assels are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits o the extent that il is probable that taxable profit
will be avallable against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgment Is required to
datarmine (he amount of daferred fax assals that can ba recognized, basad upon the likaly timing and level of future taxabls
prafils logather with fulura lax planning stralegias.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.9)
Tha Group usas a provision matrix 1o calculate ECLs for trade debis and other recaivables, The provision rates are basad
on days past dus lor Group's vanous customer thal have similar loss patterns

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical cbserved default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix fo
adjust the higtoncal credil loss expenance with (orwand-looking informaton. For mstance, i forecas) sconomic condiliong
are expected to detenorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changas in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the comelation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant astimate. The amount of ECLs s sansitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic condilions.
Tha Group's historical credit loss experience and forecas! of economic conditions may also nol be representative of
customer's actual default in the future, The information aboul the ECLs on the Group's financial assels exposed to credit
risk is disclosed In note 38.5.

Contingencies (note 23)

The assessment of the contingencies Inherently involves the exercise of significant jJudgment as the outcome of the future
events cannot be pradicted with cartainty. The Group, based on the availability of the latest information, astimates the value
of contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the cccurrence { non-oceurmence of the uncertain future events.

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 18)

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate impliclt in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR’) to measure leasa liabilities. Tha IBR |s the rate of interast that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
lerm, and with a similar securily, the funds necessary lo oblain an assel of a similar value 1o the righl-ol-use assel in a
similar economic environment,

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 18)

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lsase if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods coverad by an option lo terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably cerlain nol (o be exercised.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and termination option. The Group applies judgement in evalualing
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that creale an economic incanltive for it to exercise either the renawal or lermination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option (o renew or to lerminate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiary is a entity over which the Group has control. Control |s achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to

variable raturns from its involvernent with the investes and has ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Generally, there is presumplion thal a majority of voling rights resull in control,

The Group re-assess whather or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more elements of control.

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which the Group oblains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

when such control ceases. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off duning the year are included in
profil or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 16 control the subsidiary.
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The financial stalements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for tha same raporling panod 8s the Haolding Company,
using consistenl accounting policies. The accounting policies of the Subsidiary Company have been changed to conform
with accounting policies of the Holding Company. where required.

If the businass combinstion is achirvad in stages, the scquisition date carmyang value of the acguirer's praviously held sguity
interesl in lhe acquiree is remeasured lo fair value al the acquisilion dale, any gains or losses ansing from such
remeasurement are recegnised in profit or loss,

Idantifiable assals acquired, liabilities assumead and continganl liabifilies assumed in 8 business combination are mMeasurad
initially at their fair values al the acquisition dale, irespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of
cost of acquisition is recorded as goodwill, however, if the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, tha diffarencs is recagnised directly in the prafit or loes.

All intra-group balances, ransactions and unrealissd gains and Ingsas resuling from mitra-group transactions and dvidends
within lhe Group are eliminated in full,

Non-controlling interast (NCI) i that part of the net resulls of oparations and of net assats of subsidiary atinbutshis nterest
which are not owned by the Group. The Group measures NC| on proporlionate basis of the nel assels of subsidiary
company.

A change in tha ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, Is accounted for as an equity transaction. If tha
Group loses control over & subsidiary, il derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabililies of the subsidiary,
carmying amount of any NCI, cumulative translation differences recognised in other comprehensive income, and recognises
fair value of consideration received, any investment retained, surplus or deficit in profit and loss, and reclassifies the
Helding Company share of componants previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or loss account or
relained earmings, as appropriale.

3.2 Investment in associate

Associates are all entittes aver which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally represanted by a
shareholding of 20% or more but less than 50% of the veling rights. Significant influence is the power to participale in the
financial and operating policies and decision of investees. Investments In assoclales are accounted for using the eguity
method of accounting and are initially recognised al cost.

The Group's share of its associates’ post acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss and its share in
associales' posl acquisilion other comprehensive income is recognised in the Group's olher comprehensive income,
Cumulative post acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying value of the investments. Dividends received
from assoclates reduce the camying amount of the Investment. When the Group's share of losses In associale equals or
exceeds itz interest in the associate including any other long term unsecured receivable, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behall of the associale.

When FVOCI investment is converted into associated company, the balance in the surplus on revaluation of related asset
is transferred to un-appropriated profil Gain on transaction between the Group and its associale are eliminaled o the

axtent of the Group's interest in associates.

Tha cammying amount of the invesiment is lesled lor impairment, by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less cosls o sell) with its carnying amount and loss, il any, is recognised in the profil or loss.

3.3 Property, plant and equipment
3.3.1 Operating fixed assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated deprecialion and impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write off the historical
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from tha month in which tha assel
is available to use and no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset was disposed of.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
ranewals and improvermants, if any, ara capitalized whan it is probable thal respective fulure aconormic benafits will flow to
the Group.

An item of propeny, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
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from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difference batween the net
dizposal proceads and the camyng amount of tha assat) s includad in consobdated statemant of prafit or loss n the year
the assel is derecognised.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted If appropriate, at each
consalidatad statemant of inancial position data

Right-of-use asssls

The Group recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (l.e. the date the underlying asset is
avallable for use). Right-of-use assets are measurad at cost less any accumulated depreciation and Impairment lossos and
adjustad for any remeasuramant of laasa liabiliies. The cost of right-ni-use assats includes the amount of lease labiliies
recognised, inilial direct costs incured, and lease payments made al or before the commencement dale less any lease
incentives received, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-ling basis over the shoner of lease term or useful life,
except for the leasas in which cwnership of the underlying assats transfer to the lessae by the end of the |ease term or cost
of righl of usa asssts rafllacis thal the |azzes will axarciss a purchasa option, the Group dapraciata thosa nght of ues assal
over the useful ife of the underlying assel.

Capital wark-in-progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated Impairment losses and consists of expenditures incurred and advances made in
respect of specific assets during the construction period. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assels are
available for use.

Businass combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the cash pald and the fair value of other assets given, equity Instruments Issued and liabilitles incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange, plus costs directly atinbutable to the acquisition. The acquired identifiabla assets, liabilities and
contingent liabililies are measured al lheir fair values al the data of acquisition. Any axcess of the cost of acquisition over
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured al cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value may be
impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goadwill
relates. Where the recoverable amounl of the cash-generaling unil is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized.

Intangible assats

Intangible assets acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following Initial recognition, intangible assets are camied at
coslt less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amorlised over the useful ecanomic life and assessed for impalrment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assat may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite usaful life is reviewed al leas! al each financial year end. The amortisation expensa on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measurad as the difference between the net disposal
procesds and the camying amount of the assel and are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss whan the
assel is derecognised.

Television program costs

Television program cosls represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in
produclion. These costs include direct production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are
slated al the lower of cost, less sccumulaled amortisation and net realizable value (NRV). NRV is estimated by the
managemant on the basis of future revenue generation capacity of the program. Acquired television program licenses and
rights are recorded when the license period begins and the program is available for use.

Television program costs and acquired television program licenses and rights are charged to expense based on the ratio of

the revenues eamed till date o total revenues to be earned from the program including future estimated revenues less cost
expensed in prior years on an individual program basis.
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3.7 MNon currant assets held for sale

Mon current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considerad highly prabable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less cost (o sell,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the assel or
disposal group is availabla for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate
that it is unlikely thal significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Managemeant
must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expacted to be completed within ane year from the date of the
classification.

Property, plant and equipment are not depreciated once classified as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

3.8 Inventories
These are valued on weighted average cost basis and are stated a2t the lower of cost and NRV,

Frovision is made for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-irade based on management's best estimate and is recognised in
the statament of profit or loss,

39 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or aquity
instrument of another entity,

i) Financial assets

Initial recegnition and measurement
Lnder IFRS 9 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at following:

{a) at amortised cost
{b) at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
{c) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FWTOCI).

The classification of fnancial assels al imtial recogmition depends on lhe hnancial assel's contraclual cash flow
charactaristics and the business model for managing tham. With the exception of trade receivables, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through prefit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Group's business model for
manzaging financial assets refers to how it manages ils financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchasaes or sales of financial assets that reguire delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in tha market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset,

{a) At amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met;

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and
- The contraclual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outsianding.
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({b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interesl are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, imespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assats held for trading, financial assefs designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amoartised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measurad at the
transacticn price) Is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

{c) At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debt instruments is measured at fair value through OC) if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selliing; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rize on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Lipon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investiments as equity instruments designated
at FVOC| when they meet the definition of equity under |AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrumant basis.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

- Financial assats at amortised cost (debt instruments).

~ Financial assets designated at fair value through OC| with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses Wpan
deracognition (equity instruments)

- Financial assets at fair valua through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amertised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) methed and are subject to
impaimment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designaled upon initial recognition at
FWVPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acguired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near lerm. Finsncial assels with cash flows thal
are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value thraugh profit or loss, irespective
af the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria Tor debl instruments 1o be classilied at amortized cost or al FVOCI, as
described above, dabt instrumeants may be designated at FWYPL on initial recagnition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair valug with net changes in
fair value recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category also includes derivative instruments and listed equity investmeants which the Group had not irrevocably
elected lo classily at FVOCI. Dividends en listed 2quily investments are also recognised as olher income in profil or loss
whan the right of payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt Instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
nsses or reversals are recognised in the cansolidated statement of prafit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured al amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in QCI. Upon derecognilion,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCl s recycled to profit or loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through OC| with neo recycling of cumulative gains and losses (eguity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or lose Dividends ara recognisad as othar incoma in the consolidated statamant of profit or loss whan tha rght of
paymenl has baan eslablhshed, excepl whan the Group benefils from such proceeds as & recovery of parl of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity Instruments designated at fair value through OCI are
not subject to Impairment assessment,

As at the date of consolldated statement of financial position. Group Is not having any equity instrument designated at falr
valua through OCI

Derccognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of cimilar financlal assets) ls primarily
daracognisad {1 8. removad from the Group’s consolidaled stalemant of financial posibon ) when:
a The rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have explred: or

The Group has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cagh flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under 3 ‘pass-through’ arrangemeant; and aither (a) tha
Group has lransfemed substantally all the nsks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Group has neither Wansferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the nsks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues o recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvemnent. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated lisbility. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the nghts and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration thal the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss, ECLs are based on the difference between the confractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows thal the Group expects to receive, discounted al an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increasa in credit fisk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that resull from default events that are possible within the next
12-months (8 12-manth ECL). For those credit axposures for which thare has been a significant increasa in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance s required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

For trade debts, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifatime ECLs al each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on ils historical credit loss experence, adjusted for forward-looking faclors
specific (o the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are B0 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in defaull when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely lo receive the oulstanding contractual amounts in full before Leking inlo account any credil enhancemenls
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

ii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivalives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabiliies are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
direcily attributable transaction costs.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilifes held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the critena in IFRE 9 are satisfied. The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or Inss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process,

Amortised cost is caloulated by taking into account any discount or premium en acquisition and fees or cosis that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consalidated statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Exchange gain or losses anising in respect of borrowings in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respeclive camying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profil or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assats and financial liabilities are offzsat and the nat amaount is reportad in the consalidated statemant of financial
position if there Is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settiz on a
net basis, to realise the assets and setlle the liabilities simultaneously.

Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payvment is due (whichever is earlier). Conlracl liability are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carnying amounts of non-financial assels are assessed al each reporting date o ascerlain whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of
impairment less, iF any. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in consolidated staterment of profit or loss and
other comprehansive income. The recaverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value
in use, Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets for which the estimate of future
cash flow have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separalely idenlifiable cash flows (cash-generaling unils).

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are inilially recognised at cosl, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsegquent Lo initial recognition
assessment is made at each consolidated statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication
thal assels may be impaired. If such indication axists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and
any impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the camying value.
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3.14 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position basad on current/non-current
classification, An assel is currenl when it is

* Expacted to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

» Hedd primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

= Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used Lo setlle a liability for al lzast twelve months afler
the reporling penod

All other assets are classified as non-currant.

A liability is current when;

» It iz expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* |t is due to be seltled within twalve months after the repoaring period

Or

* There is na unconditional right to defer the selilement of the liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterpary, result in its setthement by the issue of eguity
instrumants do not affect ite classification.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred lax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities.

3.15 Taxation

Current
Prowvision for current tax is based on the taxable income in accordance with the applicable laws.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences arising al the
consolidated statement of financial position date between tax bases of assets and liabiliies and their carmying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements,

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets may be utilized. Defarmad tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset i3 reviewed at each consolidated statement of financial positicn date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset 1o be recognized.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expecled to apply o the period when the asset s
realised or the liability is seltled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) thal have been enacled or substantively enacted at the
consolidated statement of financial position date.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

These are carried at cost. For the purpose of consolidaled statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents comprise of
cash in hand, bank balances and shart term running finance.

347  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized al their face value. Incremental costs direclly atinbutable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

318 Leases

The Group assesses al conlract inceplion whelher a contract is, or conlains, a lease. Thal is, if the conlracl conveys the
right to control the use of an identified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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3181 Group as a lessee

3.19

3.20

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shor-term leases and leases
of low-valus asests. The Group racognises laasa liabilitiss to make lsase paymeants and right-of-uss ageate raprazenting
th& night to usa the undarlying assats.

i) Lease Habilities

Al the commencemant dale of the lkase, the Group recognises lease liabililies measured al the present value of lease
payments 1o be made over the lease term. The lease payments Include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
paymants) lass any lease incentives racalvable, variable leasa payments thal depand on an index or a rate, and amounts
axpaciad to ba paid under residual value guarantess. The lease paymants also include the axarcise price of 8 purchazsa
option reasonably cerain lo be exercised by the Group and payments of penallies for lerminaling the lease, il the
termination option is reasonably certaln to be exercised, Varable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the perod in which the event or condition
that triggars the paymant oceurs, In caleulating the prasent valus of leass paymants Al the lease commancemanl date, the
Croup uses the interest rale implicil in the lease. In case where the inlerest rate implicit in the lease is nol readily
determinable, the Group uses its Incremental bomrmowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is incraased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the Isase payments made. In addition. the camying amount
of leasa lahitias is remeasured if thare s 8 modification, a8 changs in tha leasa lerm, a8 changa in tha leasa paymants or 8
change in lhe assessmenl of an oplion o purchase the underying assel.

ii) Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, logether with any pericds covered by an
option to extend the laase if it is reasonably certain o be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate tha
lease, if il is reasonably certain nol to be exercised,

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option 1o renew or lerminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it 1o exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencament date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstlances that is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option lo renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased assel).

iii) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannol readily delerming the inlerest rate implicil in the lease, therefore, il uses ils incremental borrowing rale
{IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to bormow over a similar

term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to oblain an assat of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment.

iv) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemplion o its short-term leases of office premises (i.e., those leases

thal have a lease term of 12 months or lass from the commencemeant dale and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a siraighl-line basis over the lease larm.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, nel of transaclion cosls incurred and subsequenily carried al amaorlized
cost uging the effective interest method.,

Borrowings are classified as curment llabilities unless the Group has an unconditional / conlraciual right lo dafer seltlemant
of the liability for al least twelve months afler the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Government Grant

Governmenl granis are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all allached
condilions will be complied with. As the grant relales 16 an eéxpense ilem, |l is recognised as income on a systemalic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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321 Unclaimed and unpaid dividend
Dividend daclared by the Group, in the preceding three years, which remaing unclaimed or unpaid as on the consolidated

statement of fimancial position date is recognized as unpaid dividend. Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding
three years from the consolidated statemeant of financial position date are recognized as unclaimad dividand,

3.22 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to seftle the obligation and a relizble estimate can be made of the

amounl of obligalion. Provisions are reviewed at each consolidated statement of financial position date and adjusted lo
reflect the cument best estimate.

3.23 Revenue recognition
Advertisement revenue is recognised when the related advertizement or commercial appears before the public ie., aired,
Production revenue: Production revenue is recognised whean production work appears before public.
Digital revenus: Digital revenue is recognised on the basis of number of imprassions on the advertisement aired on websile.

Subscription income arses from the monthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Group. Revenue is
recognised in the month the service is rendered.

Film Distribution Revenues; Revenue from film distribution is recognized at a point in time upon receipt of related sales
reports from cinemas.

Sale of goods are recogrized when goods are delivered to customaers,
Cradit limits in contract with customers ranges from 2 to 80 days.
3.24  Other income
Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipt basis.
Profit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognized when it is declared and right to receive is established.
Interest | markup income is recognized on accrual basis.
Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis.
3.25 Expenses
Expenses are recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distribution costs and administrative
expenses include direct and Indirect costs not specifically part of cost of preduction. Allocations between cost of production,

distribution and administrative expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

3.26  Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan
The Heolding Company operates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Egual

monthly contributions are made, both by the Haolding Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of the
basic salary.
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3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.3

3.32

333

Forelgn currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in forelgn currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange
rate at the conselidated statement of financial posifion date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabiiities
denominated in foreign currencies are taken to consolidaled statement of prafit or oss currently.

The assels and liabilities of foreign subsidiary companies are translaled to Pak rupees at exchange rates prevalling at the
consolidated statement of financial positicn date. The income and expenszes of forelgn subsidiary companies are translated
at average rate of exchange for the year. Translation gains and losses arising on the translation of net investment in foreign
subsidiary companies are taken to equity under "Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve” and on disposal are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Bormowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in
connection with the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are capitalized as a part of the cost of
related asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and approprialion to reserves are recognized in the consolidaled financial statements in the period in which these
are approved.

Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events nol whaolly within the
control of the entity or a present cbligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because il is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Earnings per shara
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharehalders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presentad in Pakistani Rupess, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency.

Segment Reporting
Segment reporting is based on the aperating (business) segments of the Group. An operaling segment is a component of
the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam ravanue and incur axpenses. An operating segment's

operating results are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Group to make decisions about resources to be
allacated to the segment and assess its perfformance, and for which discrete financial information is available,
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20 2020
MNaote Rupees
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AMD EQUIPMENT
Cperating Fred assels 41 1,075,575,958 1,246,984, 186
Right of use assels 4.5 109,028,622 136,797 638
Capital work-n-progress 4.6 87,420,469 15.933.877
1,272 025 049 1.300,715,600
4.1 Operating fized assats
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= Includes assel under commaon ownership under Diminishing Musharaka amangemant.

= Addtions of Rs. 39,753,379 (2020. Rs. 85,530,151 ), a5 shown above, inchede an amount of Rz, NIl (2020 Rs, 59,434,093} transferred from capltal work n

progeess during the year.

™ Includes fransfers from leased to owned asssls. (Refer note 4.5)

===  Redassfied Io non-curment assets helid for sale. (Refer nole 16}

ssds Represents provision for impairment againat assets of swebsidiary.
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4.2 Particular of Immovable Asset in the name of the Group are as follows:
Location Addresses Total Area
Karachi Plot Mo 10011 hassan ali street, off 11, Chundnigas reag. 2,070 sq vards
Islamabad Plot Mo 28, 1&T centre sector G-6M1., 30,610 sq. #t
Islamabad G- km. kashmir highway. adiacent 1o Sector H-17 303 5 yards
2021 2020
Hate Rupess
43 Depreciation for the period on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:
Cost of producticn 25 154,196,333 175,501,285
Destribution cosis 26 /70 964 1,171,383
Adminstrat ve axpenses 2r 40,579,583 45,081.471
195,646 880 221,784,139
44 The delails of oparalng fixad assels disposad ( wrillen off, during the perod ame as follows:
Aecumulated  Net boak Sale Modes of
Description Cost depreciation value procesds Gain J [loss) Diposals Particulars of Buyer
Offiee equipment
2 508 480 1,411,020 1,007 480 1,371 550 274,000 Negotiation Akbar Enginesring
2,230,000 1,036,310 1,293,690 480,000 {T33,650) Megotiation Abdus Samad Khan
Vehicles
6,150,718 4 332 365 1,857 345 2,195 Bl A30285  As per Company Mr. Badar lkram, an employee.
6,219,803 4,353 490 1,866,403 2,210,616 M43 As per Company M Vubammad Abtes Hussan, Ghiel Frencial Officsr
2,500,200 1,652 745 £47 455 474,595 127,140 As par Company Wir. Masic Jamal, an amployes
5,777,081 4,043,964 1733127 1,844,513 211,386 As per Company Mr. Curgid Cureshi, Chief Executive
2,713,840 1,699,548 B14.002 92,900 178608  As per Company Mr. Khadid Scorty, an employee
1,629,689 1,045 741 ohd4 148 918,30 334231 As par Company  Mr. Kamran Shamshad Ahmed, an smployes
2,900,704 1,633 058 1,256,736 1,852,385 485650  As per Company Mir, Amir Zia, an employee
2,015,641 1,827,370 £BE, 271 088,271 A per Company e Mallk Faizal Qayyam, an empioyes
Fuolicy
1,153,474 493,381 660,093 1,197,000 36907 Irsurance caim Adamijes Insurance
Leasehold Improvemenis
6,568,854 4220035 2,347,949 2,575,000 227,081 Hogotiation OL¥ Pakistan (Private) Limited
Mems having book valug
of less than Rs. 500,000 24 082 830 20,756,740 3,526,080 3,193,351 (132,728) Megatiation WVarious
2021 BT, 494 806,671 1E,702.823 20,895,187 2.182
2020 118,706,771 77168013 41,536,758 45,841,494 4,304,736
2021 2020
Hate RUp2ES e
45 Right of use assets
Year ended June 30
Opening net book valie 136,797,636 224 340,040
Additions 9,351,424 4,701,600
Change due to modification during the yasr 35193 (31,925,284}
Transfer i operating fixed assats- book valus (5,880,547) (14,510,383}
Less: Depreciabon charge for the period 452 31,865 084 A5 400 292
Chosing met ook vaie 109,028 622 136,797 636
Az at June 30
Cost 189,053,790 164,257 720
Accumulated depreciation (80,025,168} (48,160,084}
Met book value 109,028,622 136,797 636
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4.5.2

The nght-cf-use assels are depreciated on strasghl line basis over the remaining lease tamm,

Depreciation for the pericd on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:
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2021 2020
Note e RUPEES memem e
Cast of production 25 20,442,294 26,358,006
Distribution costs 26 2,639,022 2120139
Administrative expenses 27 8, T2 768 16,931,077
31,865,084 454018,222
Breakup of depreciation of right-of-use assels by class of underlying asset is as follows:
Land and building 25117222 31,111,065
Wehicles 6,747 862 14,288,157
31,865,084 45,409,222
4.6 Capital work-in-progress
Leasehold Land B7 420141-69 15 933IETJ"
4.6.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress during the period:
Balance at baginning of the year 15,833,877 58,031,934
Additlons during the paiod 71,486,592 16,336,036
Transfers during the perod . (50,434,093)
Balance at end of the penod 87 420,469 15,933, 877
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value Amaortisation
LU Additions As at As at For the Ag al ag at rate
Juby 01, Jume 30, July 01, period June 30, June 30, k0
2020 2021 2020 2021 z0zZ1 pEr annum
Goodwall 13,862,252 a3 13,849 330 11,803, 11,803,781 2.045548
Compuler softwares  7g 05 667 130400  79.086067 39,766,700 7,764,853 47531653 31,604,514 20-33
Licensa fee 75 G&3, 208 2284 DB 52,288 400 13,558 25 5802704 14 04B.64F 38,249 852 BE7
(25, 560,771) (5,114,773
Trade mark 34,241,084 215,000 33,883,500 26604709 4420820 30,679,041 3,204,459 20
{573,5084) = (346.488) =
202 202,572,211 2,617,548 179,055,404 91,733,825 17708467 104,061,031 74,994,373
(25,560,771} 15,114,773}
z Rapresents exchangs gain on revaluaton of goodwll.
3 Repraseats provision e impammant against assess of subedlary
Cost Accumulated amortization Book valug Amortisation
Az at Additiens As at As at For the Az an as at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, year June 30, June 30, %
2019 2020 20149 2020 Z2020 pr annum
Goodwsll 13,862,252 - 13,862,252 11,803,791 - 11,803,781 2,058 461
Computer softwares 78,905,667 - 78,005 667 28229781 11544919  39.766,700 30,138 967 H0-33
Licenss fee 75.563.208 = 75,563,208 13,083,081 475544 13358625 62,004,583 6.67
Trade mark 33,233,084 1,008,000 34,241,084 20,047,625 5657084  26.504.700 7,638,375 20
2020 201,564,211 1,008,000 202,572,211 74,056,278 AT6V7 547  91,7T33825 110,838,386
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5.1

6.1

Amortisation for the period has been allocated as follows:

Cost of production
Administrative expenses

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Unguoted investment in an associate — stated as per equity

method

Digital Entertainment Word (Private) Limited (DEW)
Opening balance

Investment made during the year

Share of profit — net of tax

Provision for impairmeant

Disposad dunng the year

Closing balance

Note /
Holding

25
27

0%

6.1

20 2020
- RUpEES e
9,710,249 12,157 206
8,078,218 5,520,341

17,788 467 17,677 547

73,387 D86 T7,185824

- 7228 162
- (11,036,900)

(73,367 086) -

- 73,3687 086

During the current year, the Group in its meeting held on 08 August 2020 decided and disposed off its investment in DEW.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits

- Leasa

- Renl

- Trade
- Others

Prepayments
- Saftware develpoment fee

TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS

Linreleasad / released less amaortisation
In production

Less: Current portion

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

Unused tax credits on subscription incoma
Unrealised loss on short term investments
Unabsorbed tax losses

Provigions

Long term lease liabilities - net

Accelarated tax depreciation and amartisation

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unrealised loss on short lerm investments - net

2021 2020
sevreeeee RUPBES -coemeeme
= 1,353,257
6,761,458 8,921.458
15,975,435 31,307.175
4,496,383 4,283,186
27,233,276 45,865,076
4,210,158 -
31,443,434 45,865,076
430,167,561 427 380 500
22,282,250 38,743,250
452,449 811 466,123,750
{(100,385,799) {105,385 799)
352,064,012 360,737,951
" 90.526.694
- 1,388,007
8,614,237 11,579,987
103,229,914 50,746,755
3,512,963 731,532
33,320,368 8.716,748
148,677,482 161.689.721
(14,003,897) -
134,673,585 161,688,721
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2021 2020
MNote e RLUpees
10 TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Considered good 10.3 2,309,861,983 2,179,350, 487
Less: Allowance for ECL 10.2 (78,385,137) (89.539.634)
2,231,476,846 2,089 810,853
10.1 Parliculars of receivabla from foreign jurisdictions:
Jurisdiction
United Arab Emirates 75,895 667 04 500 792
United States of America 50, 567,224 24 082 237
135,462,891 118 682 025
These receivables are on contract basis and there are no defaulting parties as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020
2021 2020
s=s=aenee=  RUpaes
10,2  Provision for doubtiul debis
Opening balance 89,539,634 87,832 093
Charge for the year 22,865,447 25,823,089
Provision written off 34,019,944 {24,115,548)
Balance as at the end of the year 78,385,137 89 530,634
10.3  The aging of trade debts as at June 30 is as follows:
Meither past due nor impaired 1,683,507, 777 1,310,822, 787
Past due but not impairad
= MM to 30 days 239,190,089 436,947 080
- 31 1o 60 days 238,131,759 263,416,582
= Dver B0 days 70,647,211 78,624 404
2,231,476,846 2,089,810.853
2021 2020
—~——-— Rupees
1 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)
Bank of Punjab
2,033 TFCs having face value of Rs.99,860 each - 198,901,230
U Microfinance Bank Limilad
8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,992 sach
{2020: 8 400 TFCs having face value of Rs. 4,994 each) 1.1 42,302,020 42 503,862
Mutual Funds
Askari High Yield Scheme
21.865 unils having net asset value (MNAY) of Rs.103.1229 per unil 2,254,809 -
AKD Opportunity Fund
2,199,809 units having NAV of Rs. 136.7162 per unit 300,749,572 -
AKD Golden Arrow Stock Fund
09,449 241 units having NAV of Rs. 16.6266 per unit 157,108,756 -
502,415,157 241,505,082
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Rupees
These carry interest ranging from 10.60% to 10.84% (2020; 8.68% to 16.88%).
ADVANCES - unsecured, considered good
Interest free advances to:
- Producers 85,205.731 52,272,081
- Suppliers 27,081,160 39,398,193
- Employess 6,338,967 Q738185
- Executives 657,539 4,713,727
129,283,397 106,122,200
2021 2020
MNote RUDBES ==mme=n -
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREFAYMENTS
Depaosits
- Rent 711,430 664,500
Prepayments
= Insurance 20,365,662 15,972,880
- Rent 1,244,140 1,734,426
- Other 1,261,743 5,291,397
22,871,545 22988,713

23582975 23663213

OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good

Sales tax receivabla 141 110,354 312 108,626,731
Incomes mark-up accrued - 69,5849
Others 891,099 1,833,251

111,845 411 110,529,571

As per rule 3{(5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule, 2014, registered persons as recipient of
advertisement services shall withheld whole of sales tax appllcable on the person providing advertisement services.
Accordingly, the Holding company is unable to adjust its input tax deducted on purchases of faxable goods and services as
100% of the ouiput tax on the Holding Company's taxable services are being withheld by the recipienl of these services.
However, Holding Company 15 in correspondence wilh the relevant autharilies through its legal adviser lo resolve the malter.

2021 2020
e Rupgeﬂ EEEEETEEE

CASH AND BANK BALAMNCES

Cash in hand 381,740 2,018,652
Cash at banks

- in current aceounts 136,053,795 140,421,348
- in deposit accounts 151 301,257,992 126,257 823

437,311,787 _ 266,679,171
437,693,527 __268.697,823

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 5.5% 10 6% per annum (2020: 6.5% 1o 11.25%) per annum
NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE
On 16 July 2020, the management of the Company disposed off land located in Karachi at consideration of Rs. 493 340,000

having fair value of Rs. 472 858 100 based on the independent valuation carried out on 30 June 2020 and net book value of
16,507,087,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Number of sharesy — ememueeees Rupeas
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445 000 000 1ssued as fully paid bonus shares 445,000,000 445 000,000
945,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000 845 000,000

$=

17.1  As at June 30, 2021, institutions and others held 665950489 and 279,049,511 shares, respectively (June 30, 2020:
604,969,034 and 340,030,966 shares). Voling rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to

the shareholding.

2021 2020
Note RUpEes ==memmmmm-
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opening balance 139,976,668 203,492 185
Additionz during the period 4.5 7,874,151 4,701,800
Change due to modification during the yvear 35,193 (31,925,299)
Mark up on lease liabilities 30 15,529.710 24,730,643
Less: Lease rentals paid (41,799.470) (61.022.441)
Closing balance 18.1 121,616,252 139,875,668
Current porlion of long-term lease lizbilities 29,564,860 35,142,945
Long-term lease liabilities 92,051,392 104,833,723

18.1 Includes lease finance facility entered into by the Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting to Rs 91,750,000
{2020 Rs. 115.000,000) out of which Rs, 66,358,180 (2020: Rs. 101,173,870} remains unutilized at period end. Lease

renlals are payable in monthly installments latest by September 2022,

2021 2020
19 LONG TERM FINANCING Note s RUPEES —mmmmeeee
Islamic banks - secured
Diminshing Musharaka - | 18.1 269,420,550 409,771,846
Diminshing Musharaka - || 18.2 187,048,496 312195127
456,469,046 721,866,973
Less: current maturity (257,640,427) {169,835,542)
198,828,619 552131 431
Conventional bank
Term Finance Loan - secured - 312,183,996
Bounce back loan - unsecured 19.3 21,797,749 i
Salary Refinance Loan - secured 194 144,531,403 -
166,329,152 312 183,996
Less: currenl maturily (95,928, 460) {26.476,058)
70,400,692 285,707 938
269,229 311 B37 830,360

19.1  Represent Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% (Juns 2020: & months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after
a grace perod of 12 months from the date of firsl disbursement Le. from June 2018, The Ioan is secured by way af
registered mortgage over the building on leasshold land.

19,2  Represent Diminishing Musharaka carrying profit at the rate of 6 menths KIBOR plus 1% (June 2020: 6 months KIBOR plus
1% per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after a grace period of 18 months
from the date of first dishursement i.e. December 2017. In 2020, the Company has availed the principal deferment facility for
LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circular no. 13 of 2020 to dampen adverse effects of the COVID-19 and fo provide
relief to the businesses. Hence, the financing is repayable by December 2023. Financing is secured by way of Eqguitable
Mortgage over registered office, first pan passu constructive mortgage charge over land and first hypothecation charge over
plant, machinery & equipment.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Represents foreign currency loan amounting to £100,000 obtained by the Group from Barclays Bank UK PLC at the rate of
2.5% per annum. The loan is repayable in 80 equal installments commencing after a grace period of 13 months from the
date of disbursement. During the first 12 months, the UK government will pay interest due on this loan as Business
Interruption payment. The loan s supporled by the Bounce Bank Loan Scheme (BBLS) managed by the Bristish Business
Bank on bahif of the Secretary of Stale for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy.

Represents long term-financing from an islamic bank obtained during the period of Rs. 200 million under the refinance
scheme for payment of wages and sselaries by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). The loan carmy markup rate at the rate of SBP
rate + 3% however, the loan have been recognised at the present value. The loan is repayable in B equal quarteriy
instaliments commencing from January 2025 discounted at effective rate of interest. The differantial markup has been
racognisad ag goverment grant which will be amortisad (o interest incomea over the period of loan, Tha facility is secured by
way of registerad equitable mortgage over land and property with 30% margin.

2021 2020

Deferred Income - Gavernment grant Naote - Rupees

Opening balance - -
Receivad during the year 13,459,991 -
Releasad to the statement of profit or loss 29 (8,403,726) .
Closing balance 201 5,056,265 -
Current portion {4,495,607) -
Mon-current porfion 560,658 -

Government grant has been recorded pursuant to a salary refinance scheme introduced by the State Bank of Pakistan
{IHESMEFD Circular Nos. 07 &14) to provide loan Lo businesses al concessional rates o finance salary expense during the
COVID-19 outbreak. The grant has been provided to the Company as a reimbursement of average wages and salaries’ bill
for the months of Agril, May and June 2020 subject to Company's undertaking that no employees have been laid off,
duedowing to cash flow limitations, for a pariod of three months between April 01, 2020 to June 30, 2020.

2021 2020
Mote - Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 21.1 307,877,604 415,305,683
Accrued liabilitias 329,903,855 103,445,339
Payable against investment in an associate - 09,704,281
Withhalding tax payable 19,946,085 42 230 593
Payable to pravident fund 212 1,371,103 1,273,701
Others 24,087,441 35,677,744
633,186,088 B57.637,341

Include amount payable to following related party:
M.D Production (Private) Limited 1,669,008 85,840,684
Digitial Entertainment World (Private) Limited - 45,002,945

1,669,008 140,943 628

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the rules
formulated for this purpose,

2021 2020
Note s Rupees
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Short-term running finance— conventional banks 221 - 189,067,264

The Helding Company has short-term running finance facilities from various conventional banks amounting to Rs.
425,000,000 (June 2020: Rs. 425,000,000) which remainad unutilised at vear end {June 2020: Rs. 235,932 736). These
facilities carrying markup ranging from 1 month to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2020: 1 month to 32 month KIBOR
+0.75% to 1%). These facilities are secured by way of pari passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current
assels of the Holding Company.
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22.2 The Holding Company has local bill discounting facilities amounting to Rs. 175,000,000 (June 2020; Rs. 175,000,000) which
remain unutilized at the year end. These facilities carrying mark-up rates ranging from 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1% {June
2020: 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1%). These facililies secured by way of pan passu charge and first hypothecation charge
on all current azsets of the Holding Company.

22.3 Tha Holding Company has facility against letters of credil aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 {June 2020: Rs. 50,000,000} which
remain unutilized at the period end. These facilities secured by way of lien over import documents.

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
231 Contingencies

For the tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1} of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein cerlain disallowances ! addbacks were made to the taxable income of the Coampany. The Company
filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the aforesaid order whio decided the case against
the Company. The Company challenged the aforesaid order of the CIR (A) before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR},
Pursuant to the above appeal. the ATIR has now passed an appellate order wheraby the order passed by the ACIR has been
remanded back on the ground that proper opportunity of being heard was nol provided to the company. No notice has yet been
issued for fresh proceedings.

The tax authorities passed an order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014
whereby a lax demand of Rs. 168,166 692 was crealaed. The Holding Company has filled appeal before the Commissioner
Infand Revenue (Appeals) (CIR [A)) in respact of the aforesaid order, which is pending adjudication.

Furthermore, the Holding Company has obtained stay from recovery of 12x in respect of the above tax demand from the
Sindh High Court (the Court), till the decision of appeal. The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is confident
that the ultimate cutcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this
respect in these consolidated financial statements.

23.1.1  For tax related matters, refer note 31 to these consolidated financial statements.
23.2 Commitments
23.21 Purchase of telavision programs commitrmants with M.D Production (Private) Limited - a related party as at June 30, 2021

amounted to Rs. 175,514,000 {Juns 30 2020: Rs. 155,579,500). Commitmant for purchase of television programs with other
than related parties as at June 30, 2021 amounted to Rs. 71,736,000 (June 30, 2020: Rs. 84,222 500).

2021 2020
Note seaemeeee  Rupess -
24 REVEMNUE - net
Advertisement revenuea 4,057,299,047 3.504,290,142
Production revenue 67,200,884 51,495,210
Digital revenue 47,036,575 110,414 1458
Subscription income 657,492 801 636,811,833
Filrm distribulion revenue 715,601 40,630,585
Sale of goods 162,708,076 298 500 962
Sale of megazines 1,177,052 373,910
24.1/242 __4993,728,036 _ 4645325 787
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Mote mmemeseee RUpEES —eoeee-e-
2441 Revenue is net off the following iterns:
Sales tax 519,676,018 440,971,671
Discount to customers 331,818,560 248,715,703
851,494 578 689,687,374
24.2 Represents revenue from the following geographical regions:
Asia 4,196,687,167 3,818,305,019
United Kingdom 238,567,556 346,283 540
Amarica 558,474,293 379,737,228
—4.803.729.036 4645320 78T
25 COST OF PRODUCTION
Cost of outsourced programs 1,449,206,697 1,501,992 926
Cost of in-house programs 128,361,607 238,684 117
Cost of inventory consumed 153,182,250 312,023,498
Ealaries and benefits 251 620,709,408 700,813,054
Dapreciation 4384532 174,630,627 201,859,791
Traveling and conveyance 47,112,949 50,459,154
Litilities 23,035,858 19,316,327
Rent, rates and taxes 535,389 1,639,183
Insurance 25160,262 22,950,381
Repair and maintenance 63,627,522 47,279,514
Fee and subscription 103,226,704 60,023,083
Communication 16,037 576 16,378,835
Security charges 811,074 1,356,144
Amortisation 51 9,710,249 12,157,206
Website and internet charges 15,754 -
Consultancy 5,466,961 6,013,999
Printing and slationery 4,081,024 10,818,429
2.824,929,939 3,213,968 061
In production televisicn programs — opening 38,743,250 54,213,916
In production telavision programs - closing (22,282,250) (38,743,250}
2,841,390,939 3,220,436,727
Released / unreleased programs - opening 427,380,500 386,400,500
Released | unreleased programs - closing (430.167,561) (427.380.500)

2,B38,603,878 3,18B,458,727

251 Include Rs. 23,635,656 (2020: Rs. 26,580,044) in respect of staf retiremeant banefits,

2021 2020
Mote e RUPEES ——-uuaae
26 DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Advertisernent and promotion 116,127,307 184,273,278
Salaries and benefits 26.1 126,007,356 141,599,682
Traveling and conveyance 10,485,718 10,158,583
Rant, rales and taxes 90,983 8,808
Utilities 1,751,418 867,803
Depreciation 4344582 3,500,986 3,201 522
Communication 1,267,513 1.493, 880
Insurance 2,524 TR3 2. 716,465
Repair and maintenance 1,926,678 2,186,613
Fees and subscription 2,119,504 1,964 746
Commission expense 22,603,618 7.567.055
Printing and stationery 140,579 287 413
288 605 843 356 436 868
26.1 Include Rs, 5,162 605 (2020: Rs. 4,987 ,023) in respect of staff retiremeant benefits,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Note —mmeeee - Rupees
27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 271 578,988,381 410,517,254
Technical advisory fea 27 .2 41,400,000 41,400,000
Depreciation 4384532 49,362,351 62,022 548
Amaortization 2.1 6,078,218 5,520,341
Repair and maintenance 40,267,173 30,093,265
Communication 5,401,087 6,374,162
Traveling and conveyance 19,831,085 30,336,726
Fee and subscription 23,261,582 8,350,074
Utilities 31,299,904 28,592 304
Legal and professional charges 76,300,190 20,066,963
Printing, stationery and periodicals 5,722,682 7,278,650
Rent, rates and taxes 24 253,769 20,179,390
Insurance 6,036,792 5,303,920
Auditors” remuneration 273 9,272,646 9,531,001
Sacurity charges 8 B63 250 10,528 238
Donation 274 200,000 1.817.778
928.539.710 698,012,624
271  Include Rs. 4,903,800 (2020: Rs. 4,956,032) in respect of stafl relirament benefits,
27.2 Represents amount paid | payable to direclor of the Holding Company for technical advisory services renderad in terms of
tha technical advisory agreement duly approved by the Board of Directors.
2021 2020
mamnma= - Rupsaes -
27.3  Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 3,851,065 5,515,843
Fee for consolidated financial stalements 1,832,627 550,000
Fee lor hall yearly review 450,000 325,000
Tax and cther assurance services 2,518,954 2,276 560
Out of pockal expenses 620,000 863,508
9,272 646 9.531.001

e e e
274 Interest of the Directors or their spouses in the donations made during the year is as follows:

Mame of donee and address Names of interested

mr. Duraid Qurashi - Trustee
Me. Sultana Siddiqui - Trustes

fomina and Duraid Foundation (Plot No.
10/11 hassan ali street, off |.I. Chundrigar

road, Karachi. - 1,480 649
28 OTHER EXPENSE
Provision far doubtful trade debls 22,865,447 25,823,085
Provision for impairment against assets ( investment in an associate 28,262,941 11,086,900
Stock written off 5,117,655 3,581,225
Expenses for award show arrangement - 209,014 898
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 14,055,806 -
Others - 13 745 808
70,301,649 263,202 006
29 OTHER INCOME
Income [ (loss) from financial assets
Profit on bank accounts 16,956,588 12 443,154
Exchange gain 7,897,414 14,086,340
Dividend income 177,973 150,000
Interest f markup income 7,242 865 63,157,955
Governmeant grant 8,403,726 -
Urrealised gain / {loss) on revaluation of investments 110,580,114 {4,188.063)
{Loss) { gain on redemption / sale of investments {12,426,115) 1,508 558
138,932,565 BT 167 944
Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assels 2,192,344 4,304,736
Liabilities no longer payable written back - 177.185
Sale of content and festival revenue 21,284,181 74,317 800
Income from award show arrangameant - 97,733,251
Others 505,662 12,809,161
23,982,187 189,342,133

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2021 2020
Mote -- Rupees -

FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up an lang term financing 63,287 927 164,676,755
Mark-up on short term borrowings 20,906,003 53.548,307
Interest on lease liabilities 15,529,710 24 730,843
Bank charges 1,863,711 2,047,540

101,587,351 244 973 245
TAXATION
Current T2.266 427 66,068,723
Deferred 25765329 (BB.310,777}
Prior 6,410,387

311 93!031!256 ;15 831 ﬁﬁ?l

The Holding Company has filed ils return of income up to tax year 2020. The reiurn so filed is deemed to be an assessment order
issued by the Taxation Authorities on the date the complete return is filed. The Helding Company is mainly subject to Minimum Tax
Regime under Section 153((3) (e)) of the Incomea Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income tax expense and
accounting profit has not been presented.

The Haolding Company filed a Constitutional Petition (CF) befare the Court an September 27, 2018 challenging the tax under
section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Court accepted the CF and granted a stay agsinst the above section. In case
the Court's decision is not In favor of the Holding Company, the Halding Company will either be required lo declare the dividend to
the extent of 40% of afler tax profits or it will be liabla to pay additional 1ax at the rale of T 5% of the accounting profit before t3x of
the Haolding Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018, The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is confident
that the ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in
these consolidated financial stalements.

Subseguent 1o the vear end, the Sindh High Cour (the Cour), through its order dated 30 April 2021, declarad the Insertion of
saclion A of the Ordinance as ullra vires to the Constitulion of Islamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 and therefore struck down the
provisions of the aforesaid section, Accordingly. In light of the above [udgment of the Court, the provisions of section 54 of the
Ordinance are no longer applicable on the Holding Company, until such maller is decided otherwise by the Honarable Supreme
Court,

Curing the year 2017, Depuly Commissioner Inland Revenue issued a show cause notice (o the Holding Company, for the lax year
2014, showing his intention 1o disallow the deduction claimed on account of agency commission on alleged non-deduction of lax on
such agency commission, The Holding Company fliled a suil befere the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh challenging the above
showcause notice.

Based on a recent judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme Courl of Pakistan, suils ffed by taxpayers are nol 1o be maintained uniess
50% of the tax due is deposited by the petiioners. In compliance to the above order, the Holding Company has deposited an
amount of 24,395,012 into the Government treasury. The dacision in respect of the Suit filed by the Holding Comparny is stil
panding.

2021 2020
- Rupees —-—---
EARMINGS | (LOSS) PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Profit / (loss) attributabla to the owners of the Holding Company 894,762 944 {193 068 481)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period — 245,000,000 ___ 945,000,000

Eamings / {loss) per share (Rupea)
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CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit / (loss) before taxation

Adjustments for :
Depreciation
Amaortisation

Annual Report 2021

Provision for impairment against assets / investment in an associate

Frovision for employes retirament benefits

Finance costs

Exchange difference on translation of foreign subsidiaries
Exchange gain

Profit on deposil accounts

Gain on sale of non-current asset held for sale

Gain on disposal of oparating fixed assels

Lozs an disposal of intangible assets

Share of net profil of associate

(Loss) [ gain on redemption [ sale of investments
Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
Pravision for doubtful debts

(Increase) | decrease in current assets
Inventories

Current portion of television program costs
Trade debls

Advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Increase | (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Advance from customers

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2021

———--— Rupees -

1,059,224,552

2020

(263,000.185)

227,511,964 267,173,361
17,788 467 17,677 547
28,262,941 11,036,900

4,802,695 34,292 949
101,587,351 244973245
7,023,908 7,541,236
{7,997,414) (14,096,340)

(16,956,588) (12,443 154)

(476,832,913) -
{2,192,344) (4,304, 736)
14,055,806 :

3 (7,228.162)
12,426.115 (1,508 558)

(110,580,114) 4,188,063
22 865,447 25 823 0RY

(178,234,679) 573.425.440
27,469,959 17,745,971

5,000,000 108,000,000

(166,424,330)| | (213,011,700)

(25,527,189) 48,026.417
(3,187.831) (22,012,136)
(7,873,962) 83,600,388

(170,543,453) A2.348.940

25,548,747 (339,523,158)
(101,278,018) 201,501,981
634,717,149 205,153.018

The aggregale amounts charged in the consolidaled financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits 1o the

Chief Executives, Directors and Executives are as follows:

20321 20710
Chief Executive Chiafl Executive

Executive Director Directors Executives Exscutive Director Directors Executives
Maragedal romuneration 100,824,935 - 237282 249 40, 470.080 - 253,772 383
Foe i 2,300,000 - 2675000 ¥
Bonus BT, 753,993 BT.753,903 - - - -
Retirament banefis - - - 12,051 188 - - 12,642,810
House rent 14,022,581 - . 62,208,847 14, 022581 T3,M7 842
Usilisg 3118110 - - 13,846,433 116,120 16,202 362
Car alowanos 20,128,872 23,500,000 - - . . =
Trchrical advisary fes . 41,400,000 . - - 41 400,000 - -
Fual amd comvayancs 1,349, 57T 815,040 540,085 B, 795309 1363515 B34 360 400 B3 0021 387
Mumber 1 1 -] [=F4

The Chief Executives, Directors and certain Execulives are also provided with free use of Group maintained cars in accordance
wilh the Group's policy and reimbursement of expenses relaled to business travel.

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for meeting fee to 4 non-executive directors amounted to

Rs. 300 000/- (2020: Rs. 675,000/-).
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Refated parties of the Group comprise aasoc@ied underaking, resrement benelits fund and key management pecsonnal Diadails of Fansactions with relaied parlies during the
year, ofhar than thoae which have been discosed eleshens in thesa conaolidsted fingacial stalamants are Ba follows

21 2020
Relationship Mature of transactions Rupees
Associates Purchasas of lsievision arogram rights 1,263 466,307 1,142,964 102
Expensis pald on behalf of the assocate 22,443 060 16,258 705
Payment made during the perod 1,321 362,543 1,337,378.268
Cithers Cantrbutan ta the provident fund 33,702,061 36,523.099

All ransachions with relaled parbes are sntered inle at agraed errs duly approved by the Board of Direclors of the Group, The ouislandng recesvalile and pavable balances of the
teloled parties are tiackoesed in thek respective nobes to these consalidated Snancial statements

351 Folowng are the related parties with whom the Comoany had entared @ibe fransacions or have arangsment | aqreemant i place:

Mo Company Marme Baats of association Aggregate % of
sharahalding
1 b D Praductons (Private) Livied Azsneiatad company [35.1.4)
¥ komira & Duraid Fiims (Private) Limsed Azsociaied company (35.1.1) d
3 Komina and Duraid Foundation Assnciated company [35.1.7) -
4 HUM Netwrk Limited- Empiovess Provident Fund Ratirenant Func -
5 his, Sultana Siddiqui Durecior an2%
i3 kr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddiou Direcior -
7 bir. Durald Qureshi Denecsol 24.30%
a ke, Bhunaid Oureshi Direcior 5A8%
2 ks, Mahtab Akbar Rashdl Dvecion -
10 L Gen (R Al vasin Makk Demcion -
11 b, Muhammad Asub Younus Adl Diracsor -
12 k. Bohad Angars De etk
13 k= Wabaha Nasszer Masond Deracicr -
1 kv, Muhammed Abbas Hussain Fey menagenant Peronnel -
15 k., Mohnn Nasem Key managemeant Parsonnel =

3511 These enlilies are asvociabed compaes f underakings of the Company under Comganies Act, 2097,

352 Morie of 1ha ey management personnel hed any arranjemsnts with the Company other than the smalovment corrac.

021 2020
Note Rupees

36 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

381 Financial 15 a5 por stab of financial position
Financial agsuls al amorilised cost
= Lomg ferm doposhs 7 31,443,424 A5 855,078
- Trade dabls 10 2,231,476 B46 2,089.8910,653
- Trade depuosils 13 1,430 154497 150
= Other recevsables 14 BS 1,090 110528571
= Cash and bank balances 16 437603 537 268,697 B33

2 ?E?‘PH 336 2 534 400 513
Financlal assets at fair value through prefit or loss
- Shoat berm investments f —PEAS ST 2415050

4.2 Financial liabilfies as per statement of Anancial position

Financial labilities at amorised cost

Long e inancing 18 268,229,311 B37 838,369
- [Deterred moome - govemmenl aran 20 L -
- Trade and ather payahls i | 663,240,003 F15.406,T48
- Accrued mark-up 9,907 299 3210149
- Shioel l&im borrowings Fi - 16206 T 264
- Current portion of long e irancing 18 153,548 887 186,311,600
= Unclamied dividend 5848 400 5,948 480
- \Ppaid divchend 205,159 206,158

=

1,302,658 807 1,647 968,779
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a7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OB.JECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial nsks i.e. market risk {including currency rsk, inlerest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks o minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group’s senicr management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s senior managemenl provides
policias for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign axchanga risk, interast rate
risk and credit risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Group's policy
that no trading in derivatives for spaculative purposas shall be undertaken, The Board of Direclors review and agree policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

T | Market risk
Market rigk iz the risk that fair value of fulure cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprse three types of risk: interast rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk, such as eguity risk.

37.2  Interest rate risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flaws of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
the market interest rates, The Group's interest rate risk arisas from finance lease obligations, short term borrowings and bank
balances, The Group manages these rsks through risk management strategies.

Sensitivity analysis:

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before taxation:

WAETRADN | Effect on profit
deerasna iy before taxation
basis points

Rupees
+100 (2,418,993}
June 30, 2021 -100 2479853
+100 (11,216 898
June 30, 2020 =100 1,216,898

37.3 Currency risk
Farelgn currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial labilities will fluctuate due to a8 change in foreign
exchange ratas. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign cumencies. The Group's
exposureg to foreign currency risk is as follows:

20 2020
U3 Dollar GBP AED U5 Dollar GBP AED
Trade debts 871,063 1,203,781 1,399,380 apz,g44 883,174 2,829,086
Deposits and prepayments - - 271,936 1,250 - 377 218
Trade and other payablas (452,364) {355,706) (328,491) {406 532) {342,058} (121, 843)

The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporting dates:

Rupees - - RUPEES =r=—sememeee
Closing exchange rates 157.5 216 43 167 .6 205 45.50

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US deollar and GBF exchange rate,
with all other variables held conztant, of the Group's profit before taxation:

Change in Effect aon Effect on i
Change in Change in Effect on
Us dollar profit before profit before
rate (%) hoin GBP rate (%) o AED rate (%) profit before tax
= Rupeaas -- - Rupees -- - Rupeas --
30 June 2021 10 :‘_u,jg,ﬁﬂﬂ 10 18,318,420 10 5 774,148
-10 (6,594,509) -10 -10
30 June 2020 10 8340808 10 13,347 10 14 204
-10 8,540,808) -10 15,347,858) -10 !141535.2041

37.4  Equity price risk

The Group's invesimeants are susceplible to markel price risk ansing from uncertainties about future values of investment
sacurities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total
investments. Reports on the investmenls portfollo are submitled to the Group's senior managemsnl on a regular basis.

Az of the ststement of financial position date, the exposure lo investmenls al fair value through profit or loss was Rs.
502 415 517 (2020 Rs. 241 505 002).

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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7.5

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party 1o a financial instrument will fail to discharge its cbligation
and cause the other parly to incur 8 financial loss, Concentration of credil risk arise when a number of counlerparties are
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features thal would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, poliical or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to deveiopments affecting a particular industry

The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk on frade debts and bank balances. The Group seeks o minimize the credit risk
exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities whare applicable.

Management of credit risk

The Group's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Direclors and other
internal guidelines.

Credil risk i= managed and controlled by the management of the Group in the following manner:

= Credit rating and | or cradit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the financial background so as to
minimize the risk of defaull.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Group is mitigated by a periodic review of their
cradit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness and market information on a regular basis.

- Cash Is held with reputable banks only.

As of the consolidated statement of financial position date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on the following assets:

2021 2020

seemeeeee- Rupees —---—-
- Lang term deposits 31,443,434 45 BER, 076
- Trade debts 2,231,476.84E 2,089,810,853
- Short term investmenis 502,415,157 241,505 0892
- Trade deposits 711,430 19,487,180
- Qiher receivables #91,099 1,802,840
- Bank balances 437,311,787 266,679,171
3,204,249.753 2 665,260,222

Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reference o external credit ratings or to historical information about
counterparty defaull rates.

2021 2020
Note wmmeemens RUPEES ————eeae
Trade debts
Customers with no defaulis in the past ane year 2,231,476,846 2,089,810,853
Customers with some defaults in past one year 78.385,137 89,539,634
10 2,309.8661,983 2,179,350 487
Bank balances
Als 15 354,695,094 141,146,855
A1 767,892 ;
At 81,848,701 125,532,216
437,311,787 266,679,171

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Short term investments

Mutual funds AlI++ 157,108,756 -
MFR 5-Star 300,749,572 .
AT} 2,254,609 -
460,113,137 =
Term finance certificate A A2 302,020 -
Ab+ - 198,901,230
A - 42 603 862

1 502 415,157 241,505,092
376  Liguidity risk
Liguidity nsk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet ils financial obligations as they fall due. The Group applies prudent

risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping commitled credit lines. The table
below summarizes the malturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the following reporting dates:

Less than 3 3to12
2021 On demand pife it 11to S years Total
Rupees
Long term lease liabilites = 5,979,119 23,585,741 92,051,392 121,616,252
Long term financing - 95,703,546 278,573,203 248,521,449 622,798,198
Trade and other payablas 45,404 629 278,619,198 474,611,276 - 78R.635,103
Deferred income - Govermment grant - 1,570,255 2,925,352 560,658 5,056,265
Accrued mark-up 9,907,299 9,907,299

55311828 a5 BH,HB 779,635, 5?2 341,133,#95 1.558.013,117

Less than 3 ito 12

2020 On demand i e 1to 5 years Total
Rupees
Long lerm financing - 6,554,703 a0,B67,350 170,774,112 208,196,165
Leasa liabilitias - 60,558,183 237,647 543 949 485 375 1,247,691,101
Trade and other payables 84,985 899 274 735110 492,456,260 - 852,177,268
Short term borrowing - 241 505,092 - - 241,505,002
Accried mark-up 3,210,149 3,210,149
ggl‘lgﬁ gﬂ g gg QQ ﬂ,@?j 1§2 gg 352!45? z 252,779,775
37.6.1 Changes in liabilities from financing activities
1-Jul-20 Cash Flows MNew leases Others 30-Jun-21
Rupees
Lang term financing 1,034,150,869 {411,352 771} — - f22 798,198
Long term lease liabilties 139,976 668 (21,799 470} 7874151 15,564 903 121,616,252
1-Jul-19 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-20
Rupees
Long term financing 1|65D|555 i (316 404 DEIE; _ 1,034.150,969 034,150 969

Long term leas fabiliies 203,492,160~ — (61022041 —470T500" (71045667 — 1008766

37.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements appropriate their fair
values.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

135




Annual Report 2021

.7

ire

Capital risk

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view of maintaining an
apprapriate mix betwesn various sources of finance to minimize nsk, The primary objective of the Group s capilal management is
to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business sustain future development of the business and
maximize shareholders value. The Group manitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:

2021 2020

MNote — Rupgu S——
Lang term lease liabilitias 18 92,051,392 104,833,723
Lang term financing 19 269,229,311 837,839,369
Defered income - Govemmeant grant 20 560,658 -
Trade and other payable 21 683,186,088 G657 637,341
Accrued markup 9,907,299 3,210,149
Short term borrowing 22 - 189,067 264
Current portion of lang temm lease labilities 18 29,564 B60 35,142 845
Current portion of deferred income - Government grant 20 4,495,607 -
Current portion of long term financing 19 353,568,887 196,311,600
Total debt 1,442,564,102 2,024,042 391
Cash and bank balances 15 (437,683,527) {268,687 B23)
Met debt 1,004,870,575 1,755,244 558
Share capital 17 845 000,000 045 000,000
Unappropriated profit 3,098,150,358 2,086 403,506
Total equity 4,043,190,358 3,041,403,506
Capital 5048 060,933 4,756, 748 074
Gearing ratio 198.91% QB.BQ%

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwesen
market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflecled in the consclidated financial statements approximate fair values.
The following table shows assets racognised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoled prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those invalving inputs other than quoted pricas included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, aither
directly (as prices) or indireclly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that ane not based on observable marke! data (unobservable inputs).

Assets measured at fair value

2021 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupeaes)
Short term investmenis 502,415,157 - - 502,415,157 241 505,092

During the period. there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of
level 3 fair value measuroment.

Financial instruments which are tradahble in an apsn markat are revaluad at the market prces prevailing on the consolidated
statement of financial position date,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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38 OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group has determined following reportable cperating segments on the basis of arsas of

operations i.e. entertainment and news.
Entartainment segment is engaged in adveriisemeant, entertainmant and media marketing.

Mews segment is engaged in broadeasting of news programs,

Enteriainmaent Mmws Oihers Toital
202 2020 20 2020 201 2020 2021 2020
{Rupeeas)

Revenus
hat revenue from extemal

customer 4565569848 _ 4136776130 261832706 _ 208111298 166326484 30143350 4993729036 _ 4645355787
Result
Segmanl profil | floss) 2,038, 608 877 1,358,061, 348 [454,308,334) (587 4B5.681)  (62.48E 548) (111,226,204} 1.519,005,707 EA0.348.451
Taxaticn [38,001,T56] 15,831 567
Uralocatad ncoma ¢

(expangas) -
Admiislralive expenses (928,539,710 (694,91 2 524)
Crihed inceme 182,014,752 276.590.077
Gaiin am aake of pan-cLren assal hokd for ssis 476,832,913 -
Cther Expenses [70,301,845] (203,202.006)
Shane of Prof from Associale - 7228062
Financa cost {101,587 351] (244 973 245)
Profit [ (Less] for the perlod 261192796 __ (24T 16ES1E)
Difver infarmation
Amartization {12, 3% 30 0) (12,333 435) (5,234 385] (5,182 256) {180,178) (181,855} (17, T8&E 46T) (17 ETT.547)
Depreciation e G HL AL eI, IRETTN, SR B T AT
Segmen! sesels 434,454 261 449 468,113 911,621,224 1.053,331.155 843,837 105855413 1,347,019, 422 | 808 654,680
Usaloealed Assels 4 - - = : - 4,282 404599 3 T30 506563

434 454 261 4499 468 113 914,621,224 1053331155 343,937 1D5E55418 5620424341 £ 300 161,248

Segrment iabitses 568 876 ABR 101,063 509 TE2 190,619 1,133 453 067 787750 2 176 BE3 1618738847 2 906 GRS 450

kLA

33 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Revenus from three major customers of the Group are around 56% during the year ended June 30, 2021 (2020: 51%).

The total number of employees and average number of employees at period end and during tha perind respactively are a5 follows:

2021 2020
s-—-—— Rupees
Total number of amplovesas 735 7&1
Average number ol employess durng the penod 788 Fi )
40 GEMERAL
401 For beter presentation, certain prior year figures hawve been reclassified consequent o cernsin changes in current period presentation.
40.2 Figures have been rounded offl 1o the nearast Rupes
41 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION
These financial slalements have been autharised for issue on October 22, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Holdging Compeany.
5
A Yoo
. o _,_F’." " .H‘-:i"_
67 A
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

17" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Karachi

. S/o, , holder of CNIC No, ——— Resident of
——— being member of HUM NETWORK LIMITED, holding ————— ordinary shares as per Registered Folio / CDS

Account Mo, ——— herehy  appoint Mr./Ms. , resident of or

failing him' her Mr. /s, of

(iull wddress) who dsfare also member(s) of the Company, as my £ our proxy w0 attend, act and voue for med ws and on omy Cour behalf
at Annuval General Meeting (AGM) of  the Company o be held on Tuesday, 23™ day of November, 2021 at 3:00 pm at ICAP

Auditorinm, Chartered Accountants Avenue, [CAP, Clifton, Karachi and / or any Adjournment thereof,

For attending mecting by proxy through clectronic means i.e. video-link facility. please register following particulars of proxy:

Email 10 Cell Number:
As wimess my [ our hand / scal this ~ dav of 2021,
Sigmed by in the presence of;
Witness:
l. Maime:
Signature
Address:

CNIC or Passport Mo,

2 Mairmne:

Signature

Adidress:

CNIC or Passport Mi;

Note:

1. The proxy form, duby completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, HUM Network Limited. Plot No.
IV, Hassan Ali Street, Off. L1 Chundrigar Road. Karachi

2. All members are entitled 1o attend and vole at the meeting.

3 A member eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint another member as his‘her proxy to attend. and vote instead of im/her.

4. An instrument of proxy applicable for the mesting is being provided with the notice sent 1o members, Further copics of the instroment of
proxy may be obtained from the registered office of the Company during normal office hours

3 An instrument of proxy and the power of attomey or other suthorty (if s&ny ), under which it is signed or a notarily certified copy of such
poveer or authority must, e be valid, be deposited an the regisiesed office not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting,

tr. I a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one mstruments of proxy are deposited by a member wath the company, all such
instrumeents of proxy shall be remdered invalid.

= Members are requested 1o notify any changes in their addresses immadiately.

8. CDC secount holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines s 1aid down in circalar 1, dated January 26, 2000 issued by

the Securities & Fxchange Commission of Pakistn,

For CDMC Account Holders'Corporate Entities:
In addition o above, the following reqrements have o be mat:
i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two (2) persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
i) Attested copies off CNIC or passpont of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form,
1) The proecy shall produce his origmal CWIC or crigmal passport at the tme of meeting.
) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors” resolution / powver of attormey with specimen signature shall be submittcd (unless it has
been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form toe the Company.
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